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Our Business Footprint
in Hong Kong
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Core Business
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Silverage Collection
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Daycare Services
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Integrated Senior Wellness Hub

FERREEME

Enhanced Bought Place Scheme (EBPS) —
Category EA1
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Residential Care Service Voucher (RCSV)
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OUR SERVICE OFFERINGS
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We stand out in the senior care sector with our unique
and ever-expanding range of facilities, services and
professional care offerings that fulfill the various needs of

seniors at different stages of life.
BMEREEZENEE LB E  REBSRETEHERD
Rt RBELBEXEERE  MEREEAETRAERNS
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Integrated Senior
Wellness Hub
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L@ Multidisciplinary
Professional Services

Residential Care Home E’%%%E%fﬂﬂlﬁ%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Pine Care Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Pine Care Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2022 (“FY2022”).

OVERVIEW

FY2022 continues to be a challenging year across many industries, including
our own. | am pleased to report that our business continued to demonstrate
great degree of agility and resilience during the atypical times in FY2022.

Financially, FY2022 was still a difficult year which recorded loss of HK$24.0
million due to the absence of non-recurring subsidies under the Employment
Support Scheme of the Hong Kong SAR Government and the unfavourable
impact of the COVID-19 situation. Performance in relation to our PRC
operations in Zhejiang (the “PRC operation”) and our investment in a joint
venture, Patina Wellness Limited, had been adversely affected, resulting in the
impairment of assets and operating losses.

Despite all the hardships, and the unprecedented challenges presented by the
COVID-19 situation, we have stayed focus on our goals as we believe every
challenge is an opportunity. With our perseverance and by keeping ahead, |
am pleased to report that our core business remains strong with an average
occupancy rate of 92.7% compared to 94.0% for the year ended 31 March
2021 (“FY2021”), while the occupancy of our upscale residential care homes
for the elderly (“RCHES”), Pine Care Place in Yoho Mall, Yuen Long; and Pine
Care Point in Shek Kip Mei also recorded a double-digit increment of 17.6%
and 19.2% respectively for FY2022.

Excluding the effect of non-recurring adjustments and our adoption of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 16 Leases, our core
EBITDA for the year continued to record staunch performance at HK$53.7
million, which remained stable and comparable to HK$53.8 million in FY2021.

SOLIDIFY OUR REPUTATION FOR QUALITY

We are making great strides in the upscale segment. Our upscale RCHE, Pine
Care Place, had ramped up and solidified its reputation for quality in the
upscale segment, especially in areas of rehabilitation and skilled nursing care
services.

We believe that the demand for quality senior care is still seriously underserved
in Hong Kong. We are perfectly positioned to capitalise on this opportunity
with the provision of more specialised senior care services at Pine Care Point.
Despite its performance was temporarily affected by the COVID-19 situation at
the initial stage of operation, we have made significant progress in executing
our business plan and bringing the quality senior care concepts to reality. We
are optimistic that the occupancy at Pine Care Point would further increase in
the near term.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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PINE RESIDENCE — A NEW FLAGSHIP OF
SILVERAGE COLLECTION ON HONG KONG ISLAND
In terms of our expansion in the upscale segment, we have entered into a
lease with an independent third party in May 2021 of a premises with a total
floor area of approximately 35,400 square feet situated at 1 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay. With its prime location, efficient layout and ample windows
frontage, we believe that the property is ideally suited for the Group’s new
care and attention home, Pine Residence.

It is envisioned that Pine Residence will become the Group’s third foray into
the upscale market segment, following the launch of Pine Care Place in Yoho
Mall, Yuen Long, New Territories and Pine Care Point in Nam Cheong Street,
Shek Kip Mei, Kowloon. We plan to position Pine Residence as a new flagship
of our Silverage Collection with a wide range of services covering EA1 (Note),
affordable upscale and upscale residential care. Medical and professional
nursing support will be delivered by a multidisciplinary and collaborative team
including nurses, care givers, social workers, occupational therapists and
physiotherapists.

Pine Residence enjoys a prime location on Hong Kong Island, within
10-minute drive to five of Hong Kong’s leading private and public hospitals. It
will be staffed by health care professionals using a variety of advanced
gerontology methods and technologies to ensure the finest standard of
geriatric care and well-being for the residents.

The establishment of Pine Residence marks our commitment to investing in
quality senior care services. We believe it will bring a positive impact on the
Group’s branding, as well as providing the finest and most comprehensive
care for the residents. It is envisioned that Pine Residence will commence
operation in the fourth quarter of 2022.

Notes:

“Enhanced Bought Place Scheme” or “EBPS”: the scheme under which the Social
Welfare Department (the “SWD”) of the HKSAR Government has purchased residential
care places (beds) from private homes for the elderly since 1998, with a view to upgrading
the service standard of these homes through enhanced service requirements in terms of
staffing and space standards. This also helps to increase the supply of subsidised places
so as to reduce elderly’s waiting time for subsidised care and attention home places.
Elderly homes under the EBPS are split into two categories, namely EA1 and EA2, with
different space standards and staffing requirements.

“EA1”: one of the two categories under the EBPS. EA1 homes have higher requirements
in terms of staffing and per capita net floor area as compared to EA2 homes. As required
under the EBPS, the staffing requirement for an EA1 home with 40 places is 21.5,
calculated on the basis of eight working hours per staff per day, including relief staff, and
its per capita net floor area are 9.5 square metres.
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STRATEGIC REBALANCING AND REJUVENATING
Our business vision and long-term commitment are to promote the quality
standard and development of the senior care industry. We are proactive in
innovative initiatives and dedicated to incubation of new ideas in our business.
We look for strategies to achieve uniqueness and flexibility in our business.

We maintain a strong core team and dedicated supporting staff. We strive to
scale up our business growth by re-deploying and re-doubling our resources
in Hong Kong. Our portfolio of quality services, and our efforts in the
integration of information technology and products in the RCHEs operated
and/or managed by us to promote smart health and senior care within the
community are designed to offer unique value to our customers and cater for
their needs and preferences. This customer-centric culture is important in
nurturing customer loyalty in our business, which is conducive to customer
retention and consequently expansion of our market share.

In addition, we evolve towards the business model of light-assets to offer more
accessible options to both existing and potential markets. The implementation
may take the form of, among others, entering into management contracts in
which we will provide consultancy and management services of senior care
operations. We believe that the light-assets business model can create new
revenue streams, enhance innovation, and minimize operating costs and thus
help drive a higher return on capital for the Group.

The management of Patina Wellness is our first testament in the ageing-in-
place and semi-independent living segment using the light-assets business
model, which saw the largest increase in occupancy level in FY2022 (with
latest occupancy of serviced apartments above 80% and RCHE above 90%)
and achieved a high level of customer satisfaction as revealed from customer
surveys and communication from time to time. This is extremely encouraging
as we believe that high level of customer satisfaction is vital to customer loyalty
which, in turn, is strongly related to our profitability in the long run. Ageing-in-
place is a modern approach for senior care which allows for maximum
personalisation and independence for seniors and offers more privacy than a
communal setting, and our professional nursing and multidisciplinary team
aims to create a secured and comforted community environment whereby
senior residents’ well-being and healthcare needs are well supported by us.
We will identify potential scalable sites and real estate projects to replicate our
success and the business models learnt from Patina Wellness for the emerging
ageing-in-place and semi-independent living market.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Further, we strategically renew our focus in the PRC by retreating from the
under-performed PRC operation in Zhejiang. We believe that by taking a small
step backward, we can move a giant step forward to capture and leverage the
growing opportunities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(the “GBA”) of China where the plans outlined in the development blueprint for
the GBA start to come into fruition.

As senior care has shifted from reactive to proactive over the years, we trust
the above diversified approach, multi-pronged framework and corporate
strategic focus to support senior friendly initiatives will continue to provide a
constant influx of fresh perspectives necessary to keep our brand and
business relevant in the fast-changing markets both locally and in the GBA.
These, in turn, will allow us to gain an edge over our competitors and keep us
up with our business growth in the long run.

AGEING-IN-PLACE CARE AND COMMUNITY CARE

Moving forward, we would take steps in expanding our elite services to
ageing-in-place senior care services and community care development
initiatives based on our established hubs, to encompass the various needs of
seniors at different stage of life through our care-giving journey.

We recognise the market’s constant desire for choice. We will remain agile in
our business plans and service offerings with the aim of providing a wider
range of choices to the senior care market to promote the quality of senior
care that cater for both the existing and emerging markets.

OUR SINCEREST THANKS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers,
bankers and business partners for their continued trust and support. In
particular, | would also like to express my deepest and most sincere gratitude
to all our staff members throughout the Group for their passion,
professionalism and diligence in caring for our residents round the clock and
contributing to the Group.

Without their commitment and unwavering dedication, we could never have
achieved the success we have, nor established such a high reputation for
excellence in the senior care sector.

With our expansion plans in place and a team that is second to none, we are
truly excited about the opportunities and achievements that are still to come.
Tang Yiu Sing

Chairman and Executive Director

21 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The Group’s business in Hong Kong mainly comprises eight EA1 RCHEs and
two newly developed upscale RCHEs, namely the upscale RCHE, Pine Care
Place, and the RCHE specialising in dementia care, Pine Care Point.

The Group’s revenue was mainly generated from (i) rendering senior care
services including the provision of residence, professional nursing and care
taking services, nutritional management, medical services, psychological and
social care, and individual care plans; and (i) sale of senior care related goods
in Hong Kong.

Total revenue increased by approximately 9.0% to HK$267.7 million in FY2022
from HK$245.7 million in FY2021. The increase was mainly due to higher

occupancy of Pine Care Place and Pine Care Point.

Respective revenue is shown below:

EEEIRE
AEEREENEBIZEE/\MF - REELE
Bk MEF RN ShLER  ARimLER R
e K BN RAE G E IR 0 S ih R E BT AR 44T -

AEEMRAETIZELARER()RHEEEEER
% BRERMEE BXEERRHRYE 28%F
| EERE  OERASEIENREAZERNE
Ko (i) S E LA E @ -

g 2% 4258 1 2021 B R [E B9 245.7 B & 78 T8 N4y
9.0% £ 2022 A R FE /) 267.7 A BB T » sZBIN=E
DA AR HESE ANBRZEST AfE R EFt -

BWREFIRAT

FY2022 Fy2021 Change
2022 B FE 2021 I F &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FH&T
8 EA1 RCHEs J\ER— &R ER 218,766 214,465 2%
Pine Care Place — Upscale RCHE RERHESE — (IR FTRH
in the New Territories SimiEbT 27,545 20,328 36%
Pine Care Point — Upscale RCHE REREEET — (LA LEEMY
in Kowloon SimiET 18,002 9,006 100%
Others EHh 3,436 1,907 80%
267,749 245,706 9%

Average occupancy rate of Pine Care Place increased to 84.9% in FY2022 as
compared to 67.3% in FY2021, which contributed to the increase of revenue
to HK$27.5 million from HK$20.3 million in FY2021.

As for Pine Care Point, its revenue increased to HK$18.0 million in FY2022
from HK$9.0 million in FY2021 due to improvement in average occupancy
rate. Average occupancy rate of FY2022 approximated 43.4%, as compared
to 24.2% in FY2021. It is expected the occupancy at Pine Care Point will
increase at a quicker pace once the COVID-19 situation stabilises.

For the Group’s investment in a joint venture, Patina Wellness Limited, in
which the Group holds 51% of its equity interest, the performance of its
operation, Patina Wellness, had been temporarily affected by the COVID-19
situation, which led to a share of loss and other provisions before interests, tax
and depreciation (excluding the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 on its
property rental and related expenses) at HK$4.5 million in FY2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BELE W i L T

Patina Wellness is the testament to our implementation of asset-light business
model. The management team of Patina Wellness continues to explore the
opportunities to leverage the established brand and expertise of Patina
Wellness for providing management and/or consultation services to external
parties, including property owners and potential investors in Hong Kong and
the GBA.

Please refer to the section headed CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT for prospects
of the core business and new projects of the Group.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The Group’s revenue in FY2022 was HK$267.7 million, with an increase of
9.0% from HK$245.7 million in FY2021. The core business of our eight EA1
RCHEs in Hong Kong remained strong and stable, with an average occupancy
rate of 92.7%, and our upscale RCHEs showed positive growth amid the
challenges posed by the ongoing COVID-19 situation.

Revenue

Wz

&

Hk$207.7Tm
267.78 &8
1N9.0%

Core EBITDA (our key senior care services business performance indicator)
remained stable at HK$53.7 million (FY2021: HK$53.8 million).

JU

Core EBITDA
#» EBITDA

Hk$D3.7M
53.7TH&=/57C

The Group recorded a loss of HK$24.0 million in FY2022 as compared with a

profit of HK$3.2 million in FY2021, mainly attributed to the absence of non-
recurring subsidies under the Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong
SAR Government of HK$16.3 million; the impairment of assets in relation to
the PRC operation of RCHE in Wuzhen, Zhejiang of HK$5.8 million; the
impairment of amount due from a joint venture and other provisions of
HK$11.8 million; and non-cash share option expenses in relation to share
options granted by the Company of HK$3.3 million, despite moderate revenue
growth in our upscale RCHEs.
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The reconciliation of Core EBITDA and EBITDA to Profit for the year were as

follows:

(Loss)/profit for the year
Finance costs

Income tax expenses
Depreciation

Amortisation

EBITDA

Share of interests and depreciation of
a joint venture

Other income and gains/(losses), net

Excluding:

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 on
property rental and related
expenses on subsidiaries

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 of share of
results of a joint venture on property rental
and related expenses

Adjusted by:
Non-recurring government grant
of Employment Support Scheme
Impairment of amount due from a joint venture
and other provisions
Impairment of assets classified as held for sale
Share option expenses

Core EBITDA
Core EBITDA to Revenue

Notes:

“EBITDA” represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

“Core EBITDA” represents EBITDA before share of depreciation and interest of a joint
venture, other income and gains/(losses), net, non-recurring government grant for
Employment Support Scheme, impairment of assets of PRC operation, impairment of
amount due from a joint venture and other provisions, and share option expenses,
excluding the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 on property rental and related expenses.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Please refer to the preceding sections for the review of the Group’s results
and business. This section deals with other key financial data.

Depreciation

Depreciation represents depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment which comprise right-of-use assets, leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and other equipment and motor vehicles. Depreciation
remained stable and slightly increased by approximately 0.7% to HK$57.2
million in FY2022 from HK$56.8 million in FY2021.

Staff costs, multidisciplinary fees and related expenses
Staff costs remained as the largest component of our operating expenses.
Our staff costs include wages, salaries, bonuses, retirement benefit costs, and
other allowances and benefits payable to all employees of the Group. Our
gross staff costs, before netting off with government grants of HK$12.2 million
(FY2021: HK$28.2 million, in which the grants of HK$11.9 million for dementia
and infirmary and HK$16.3 million of Employment Support Scheme) for hiring
specialised professionals for our senior residents with dementia and infirmary,
increased by approximately 11.6% to HK$130.0 million in FY2022 from
HK$116.5 million in FY2021, which was largely attributable to the growth in
revenue.

Multidisciplinary fees and related expenses mainly consist of medical and
professional fees incurred for engaging external visiting medical officers,
dietitians and pharmacists, and additional manpower of physiotherapists, care
workers and health workers through employment agencies.

The expenses increased significantly by approximately 50.2% to HK$15.3
million in FY2022 from HK$10.2 million in FY2021, primarily due to the
enhancement of our nursing and rehabilitation team with more specialists and
professional workforce engaged through employment agencies.

Property rental and related expenses

Our property rental and related expenses primarily represent government rent
and rates and building management fees in respect of our properties. Property
rental and related expenses increased by approximately 37.4% to HK$9.5
million in FY2022 from HK$6.9 million in FY2021. The increase was mainly
contributed by higher turnover rent resulted from revenue growth of Pine Care
Place.
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses in FY2022 mainly consisted of (i) advertising and
marketing expenses; (i) insurance expenses; (iii) legal and professional fees; (iv)
corporate expenses; and (v) various operating expenses, with an aggregate
amount of HK$16.8 million (FY2021: HK$11.3 million).

The expenses increased by approximately 48.7% which was mainly due to (i)
the share options expenses of HK$1.0 million included in legal and
professional expenses; (i) higher legal and professional fee by HK$1.7 million
incurred for audit and various non-recurring transactions in FY2022; and (jii)
higher other operating expenses and marketing expenses by HK$1.6 million
and HK$0.4 million respectively driven by growth in revenue.

Share of loss of a joint venture

The share of loss of a joint venture of HK$13.3 million (FY2021: HK$15.8
million) represents the share of () operating loss and other provisions before
interests, tax and depreciation of HK$4.5 million (FY2021: HK$6.8 million), and
(i) interest and depreciation of HK$21.0 million (FY2021: HK$21.2 million),
offset with the effect of the adoption of HKFRS 16 of property rental and related
expenses of HK$12.2 million (FY2021: HK$12.2 million) of Patina Wellness
Limited in which the Group holds 51% of its equity interest.

Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represent interest expenses on bank loans and
interest elements of lease payments. The finance costs decreased by
approximately 28.0% to HK$10.5 million in FY2022 from HK$14.5 million in
FY2021, which was mainly due to lower interest rates in current year.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense represents Hong Kong profits tax of 16.5% on
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. The income tax expense
decreased by approximately 15.3% to HK$6.3 million in FY2022 from HK$7.5
million in FY2021, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in
assessable profits.

Loss/profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company approximated to HK$20.6 million in FY2022 as compared to
profit of HK$5.9 million in FY2021.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Net assets

Our net assets amounted to HK$183.5 million and HK$204.2 million as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively.

For illustrative purposes, by including the revaluation surplus of the land and
buildings of the Group of HK$918.0 million, being the premium of the total
valuation of HK$1,540.6 million, as appraised by an independent valuer
engaged by the Company in respect of the valuation of the land and buildings
of the Group performed as at 31 March 2022, over the carrying amount of the
land and buildings of the Group of HK$622.6 million as at 31 March 2022, the
adjusted consolidated net assets of the Group would have been HK$1,101.4
million as at 31 March 2022.

lllustrative Adjusted Consolidated Net Assets

BEFE

Net assets
lllustrative revaluation surplus of the land and

buildings of the Group (Note) sHA% (K1)
Adjusted consolidated net assets KRGS EEFE

Note:

The land and buildings of the Group are occupied and used by the Group to perform its
ordinary business and have been classified as property, plant and equipment and stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. To better illustrate the
latest market value of the net assets at the date of Statement of Financial Position, the
illustrative revaluation surplus was presented to facilitate a better understanding of the
users of the financial statements.

SANEGELR

lllustrative Revaluation Surplus

Total valuation of the land and buildings of the Group”
Carrying amount of the land and buildings of

owned assets of the Group

Revaluation surplus of the land and buildings of the Group

A appraised by an independent valuer.
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Current ratio

As at 31 March 2022, our cash and bank balances amounted to HK$29.1
million (as at 31 March 2021: HK$49.7 million) and were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars; and our net current liabilities were HK$155.3 million (net
current liabilities as at 31 March 2021: HK$40.1 million). The current ratio,
being current assets over current liabilities, was approximately 0.21 time as at
31 March 2022 (as at 31 March 2021: 0.70 time).

Decrease in current ratio was mainly due to (i) the classification of a term loan
amounting to HK$37.4 million as current liabilities, in which the term loan was
re-financed in May 2022; (i) the increase in current portion of lease liabilities in
relation to lease agreement of Pine Residence; (iii) the capital expenditure
incurred for the renovation of Pine Residence which was included in property,
plant and equipment; (iv) the purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and (v) the classification of amount due from a joint venture to
non-current assets.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing
current assets and non-current assets). As at 31 March 2022, our gearing
ratio was 50.9% as compared with the gearing ratio of 59.7% as at 31 March
2021. The decrease was primarily due to higher total assets resulted from the
recognition of right-of-use assets for the lease entered during the year.
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Maturity profile
The graph below shows the debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31 March
2022 and 2021.

Maturity Profile zsiR

FHIER
T B B R AN 5 8 70 2022 4F 12 2021 43 A 31 B W
BEIEER

Debt Maturity Profile at end of FY2022 and FY2021

20228 BB FE I 2021 (A R F E ARV E I B B R

Gross Debt Amount (HK$ million) @ &&%E (FE#T)

FY2022 20228t L& &

118.4Mete) (1) E36.0 337.5 91.7 583.6
FY2021 202181 BUFE
75.0Note) (HiED) BN 4 356.8 99.7 602.9
e Within one year or on demand e In the 3rd to 5th years

—FRHEERER REEIFEHSF
e In the 2nd year [} More than 5 years

RE25F E2AES

Note : Included revolving loans of HK$39.95 million.

As at 31 March 2022, our interest-bearing bank borrowings amounted to
HK$583.6 million (as at 31 March 2021: HK$602.9 million), among which,
assuming the aforesaid term loan would be repayable according to the
repayment schedule, HK$118.4 million, HK$36.0 million, HK$337.5 million,
and HK$91.7 million were repayable within one year or on demand, in the
second vyear, in the third to fifth years (both years inclusive), and beyond five
years respectively (as at 31 March 2021: HK$75.0 million, HK$71.4 million,
HK$356.8 million, and HK$99.7 million respectively). As at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021, all of our interest-bearing bank borrowings were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and the majority of our interest-bearing bank borrowings
were secured by the land and buildings of the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during
FY2022. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Total capital expenditure during the year was HK$40.2 million, mainly for
renovation works of Pine Residence, our upcoming new RCHE in 1 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, and our care and attention homes. In FY2021, the
Group incurred capital expenditure in an aggregate amount of HK$5.3 million,

mainly for renovation works of our care and attention homes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures undertaken by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any significant investments held.

COMMITMENT
As at 31 March 2022, the Group has the following commitments:

BATABARERE :
FEMERE

Contracted, but not provided for:
Unlisted investment
Property, plant and equipment

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, land and buildings and construction in progress with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$617.3 million (31 March 2021: HK$634.0
million), and investment in insurance contract with carrying amount of HK$3.4
million (as at 31 March 2021: HK$3.3 million) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. Save for the above, the Group had no
other pledge of assets as at 31 March 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the business projects disclosed under the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement”, the Group did not have any specific future plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2022. The Group will
fund the said business projects through internally generated funds and
available banking facilities.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to the Group’s
bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the
best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The
Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

As at 31 March 2022, if the interest rates on borrowings had been 75 basis
points higher/lower, which was considered reasonably possible by the
management, with all other variables held constant, the profit after tax for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$3.7 million (FY2021: HK$3.8 million) as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of bank loans. In addition, banking facilities
have been put in place for contingency purposes.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an on-going basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets mainly comprising cash
and bank balances and due from a joint venture has a maximum exposure
that equals to the carrying amounts of these instrument. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets, except
for a single external customer which accounts for approximately 82.3% (2021:
57.4%) of the total trade receivables.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk, and hence the
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLLJE W g L T

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of 504 full-time and part-time
employees (as at 31 March 2021: 466 employees). Our staff costs (excluding
government grants) were HK$130.0 million in FY2022 (FY2021: HK$116.5
million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive, and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis, together with
reference to the profitability of the Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks
in the industry, and market conditions, within the general framework of the
Group’s remuneration system.

In addition, the Group also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.

The remuneration of the directors is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board, according to the relevant directors’ experience,
responsibility, workload, the time devoted to the Group, the Group’s operating
results and comparable market statistics.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, aged 36, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tang graduated from
University of Western Ontario in Canada with an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with an
Executive Master in Innovation Leadership degree. He also received an
Honorary Fellowship from The Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector in 2019.

Mr. Tang has over 15 years of solid experience in property investment, asset
management and business operations. He is the founder and Chairman of
Stan Group and the Chief Executive Officer of Tang’s Living Group, a member
of Stan Group. He is also currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of ETS Group Limited (stock code: 8031) of which the shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tang is currently a director of the China Overseas Friendship Association,
a Standing Committee member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, a committee member of
the All-China Youth Federation (ACYF), chief advisor to the Honorary Consul
for Fiji in Hong Kong, a co-opted member of Task Force of The Social
Innovation and Entrepreneurship Development Fund, vice chairman of Greater
Bay Area Homeland Youth Community Foundation, a director of the board of
The Community Chest of Hong Kong, advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation
and a director of Innovative Entrepreneur Association. In 2019, he also
founded the Dongguan-Hong Kong Bay Area Association and served as the
president. Mr. Tang is a director of Starcorp Limited and Smartbase
Investments Limited (substantial shareholders of the Company), the son of the
late Mr. Tang Shing-bor (substantial shareholder of the Company) and a
younger brother of Dr. Tang Yiu Pong (non-executive director of the
Company).
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Mr. Chan Yip Keung

Mr. Chan Yip Keung, aged 39, joined the Group as the chief financial officer
in April 2015. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 30 April
2016 and was designated as an executive director of the Company on 7
September 2016. Mr. Chan was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group in October 2020 and responsible for leading, planning and
managing business development and operations of the Group.

Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in financial and capital
management, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, business
analysis and development. He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration (Professional Accountancy) from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 2005 and a degree of Master of Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September 2017.
He has been a member and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2009 and March 2018 respectively; and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute since December 2017.

He worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers from September 2005 to October
2011 with his last position being manager, assurance, institutional group. Prior
to joining the Group, from November 2011 to April 2015, Mr. Chan was the
finance manager of Mapletree Hong Kong Management Limited under
Temasek of Singapore, specialised in real estate investment trusts sector.
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Mr. Yeung Ka Wing

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, and corporate restructuring. Mr. Yeung has been
appointed as an executive director and a director of the relevant members of
ETS Group Limited (stock code: 8031), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 29 July 2015 and is the compliance officer, an
authorised representative and a member of the nomination committee and the
risk management and internal control committee of ETS Group Limited.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Simon Fraser University with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration majoring in Accounting in 1994 and obtained a
master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Western
Ontario in Canada in 2014. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management
Accountant.

Mr. Yeung was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Stan
Group. He had been re-designated as the corporate consultant of Stan Group
from an executive director during the period from 11 November 2021 to 30
March 2022. Prior to joining Stan Group, Mr. Yeung was the managing
director of FTI Consulting, a consulting company specialised in, among other
things, corporate restructuring, receivership and forensic accounting. Mr.
Yeung was an executive director of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings
Limited (now known as “Kirin Group Holdings Limited”, stock code: 8109)
(“Creative Energy”), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, for the
period from 30 January 2010 to 29 July 2010. During the term of Mr. Yeung’s
office as its executive director, the group of Creative Energy was principally
engaged in the provision of energy saving services and sales of energy saving
products. Following the completion of the restructuring of Creative Energy, he
resigned as an executive director of Creative Energy with effect from 29 July
2010.

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching, aged 59, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of experience in hospitality management and hotel operations. Mr. Cheng was
previously the General Manager of Dorsett Tsuen Wan Hotel and Silka Far
East Hotel since 2013, and he joined the Dorsett Group as the General
Manager of Silka Far East Hotel in 2007. Mr. Cheng previously worked for the
Majestic Hotel in 2000 as Front Office Manager and was promoted to Director
of Sales in 2005. Mr. Cheng was the managing director and consultant of
Tang’s Living Group. He is a member of the executive committee of The
Federation of Hong Kong Hotel Owners. Mr. Cheng is currently the executive
director (corporate management) of Stan Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Dr. Tang graduated from
Guangzhou University of Chinese Medicine. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree of
Chinese Medicine, a Master Degree of Acupuncture and Massage, a Research
Student Degree in Acupuncture and Massage (Master) and a PH. Degree of
Acupuncture and Massage. He is also a qualified Clinical Hypnotherapist
certified by the American Council of Hypnotist Examiners. Dr. Tang has over
15 years of experience in retail and Chinese medicine practice. He is currently
the founder and managing director of J. Champion Holdings Ltd and the
managing director of Tang’s Catering Group. He is also the elder brother of
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (the Chairman of the Board and executive director of the
Company) and the son of the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor (substantial shareholder
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony v, up

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony MH, JP, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 23 March
2020. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yuen graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Bachelor of Business Administration in 1977. He was awarded The Ten
Outstanding Young Persons (T A H S 4) in 1992. He is a seasoned
executive in the financial and insurance fields in which he held senior executive
positions in a number of major international and local companies.

Mr. Yuen is currently a Director of the CUHK Medical Centre Ltd. Prior to that,
he was an independent non-executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 6161), a company listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange, for the period from 14 April 2015 to 7 January 2020.
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Mr. Lam Cheung Wai
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 19 October 2020.

Mr. Lam graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in December 1981. Mr. Lam
was awarded The Ten Outstanding Young Persons (1A% H & 4E) in 1996.
Mr. Lam has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since February 1998 and a certified internal auditor of the
Institute of Internal Auditors since March 2009.

He had been an Accounting Officer in The Treasury of HKSAR Government
since July 1986 and retired in April 2017. He also served as an independent
non-executive director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code:
2298, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from June
2014 to January 2019. Mr. Lam is a co-founder of Hong Kong Rehabilitation
Power, and he served as the president of its council of management from April
1995 to December 2013. He also co-founded Empowering Life Network
Limited, a charitable organisation aiming to serve deprived youths, in 2013.
Mr. Lam was appointed as a member of the Rehabilitation Advisory
Committee of the HKSAR Government since January 2016.
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Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kam Pui, BBS, JP, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company
with effect from 19 October 2020. He has extensive experience in human
resources management and administration with local and international
renowned organisations. He has been a council member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management since June 2000 and latterly
served as its president from July 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Wong graduated
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 1996. He subsequently obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in November 2013.

He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the HKSAR Government in
2015. Mr. Wong has taken up responsibilities with governmental bodies of the
HKSAR and has been serving as an adviser for various matters concerning the
local community, including human resources, education, labour, welfare,
commerce and economic development matters, to name a few: chairman of
Cross-Industry Training Advisory Committee on Human Resource
Management, member of Committee on Self-financing Post-Secondary
Education, ordinary member of Travel Industry Authority, executive committee
member of Hong Kong Housing Society, a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute and a board member of
Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board. In October 2020, Mr. Wong was
awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star in recognition of his dedicated and meritorious
public service. As a member of the Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries and Conditions of Service, he provided invaluable advice on
civil service pay and related matters. He also serves the education sector with
enthusiasm, and has made significant contribution to the development of
post-secondary education and curriculum development.

Mr. Wong is the founder and has been a director of RESOLUTIONS HR &
Business Consultancy Company Limited, a private company principally
engaged in the provision of business and human resources solutions as well
as consultancy services, since March 2015. He served as a non-executive
director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from September
2014 to June 2018. Mr. Wong has been an independent non-executive
director of the Medialink Group Limited (stock code: 2230, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since April 2019. In August 2020,
he was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as a Part-time HR
Advisor for the new campus development at Dongguan.
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Mr. Wong Kit Loong

Mr. Wong Kit Loong, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company with
effect from 19 October 2020. He is a property management professional with
over 30 years’ experience and extensive network in the property management
and housing sectors. He had served as the chief executive officer and
executive director of the Hong Kong Housing Society from April 2009 to
March 2020.

Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor’s degree in General Business
Management from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1978. He is also a
graduate of the Advanced Management Program of Harvard Business School.
He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Housing, Hong Kong Institute of
Housing and Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

Mr. Wong has been actively involved in various public and community
services. He is currently a member of the Governing Council of Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, the Elderly Commission and a member of Land
and Development Advisory Committee. He has also been appointed as a
member of The Town Planning Board with effect from 1 April 2022. Mr. Wong
has been the Steering Committee on Qualifications Framework Fund under
Education Bureau until September 2020. He was also a member of Task
Force on Land Supply, the chairman of the Apprenticeship Training Board of
Vocational Training Council, a member of Land, Rehousing and Compensation
Committee of Urban Renewal Authority, a member of the Property
Management Industry Training Advisory Committee under Education Bureau,
the Chairman of Chartered Institute of Housing, Asian Pacific Branch, and a
member of Hong Kong Housing Manager Registration Board.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chu Lai King, aged 69, is the head of human resources of the Group.
She joined the Group in July 1989 as home manager. Ms. Chu is responsible
for recruitment and human resources matters of the Group.

Ms. Chu obtained a Diploma in Gerontology from School of Professional and
Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong in August 2005.

Ms. Yam Hau Kam, aged 55, is one of the nursing directors of the Group.
She joined the Group in February 1990 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Yam is
responsible for the quality control of the senior care services of the Group.

Ms. Yam has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for United Christian Hospital from February 1989 to
October 1989. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open
University of Hong Kong in June 2006 and completed the Assessors Training
Course (2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology in November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation
Scheme.

Ms. Pun Shuk Kan Pisa, aged 57, is one of the nursing directors of the
Group. She joined the Group in January 1998 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Pun is
responsible for the quality control of the senior care services of the Group.
Since September 2017, Ms. Pun has been responsible for the development
and management of Mainland China business of the Group.

Ms. Pun has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for Sik Sik Yuen Elderly Service from June 1993 to August
1997. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open University of
Hong Kong in June 2006. Ms. Pun completed the Assessors Training Course
(2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology in
November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme and
completed the Advance Diploma Programme in Dementia Care from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing
in April 2021.
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Mr. Lo Sze Hung, aged 38, joined the Company on 22 February 2021 as the
Chief Financial Officer to oversee the Company’s accounting and finance
matters and internal control affairs. Mr. Lo has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, finance and business advisory work. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lo worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong, from September
2006 to June 2015, with his last position as senior manager. He also worked
at Hutchison Port Holdings Group from June 2015 to July 2017, as the group
finance manager; and at Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock code:
8086), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from July 2017 to
February 2019, with his last position as the group chief financial officer and
company secretary. Mr. Lo was the assistant general manager, Finance, of
HKIA Services Holdings Limited (a subsidiary under Airport Authority Hong
Kong) from February 2019 to February 2021. Mr. Lo obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.

Ms. Ho Pui Lam, aged 35, is the marketing and business development
director of the Group. She joined the Group in 2018 as the marketing
manager. Ms. Ho is responsible for leading multimedia marketing initiatives
and go-to-market business development strategy as well as managing the
marketing and customer service team of the Group. Ms. Ho obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Arts (Communication and Media Management) from the
University of South Australia in 2010. She is a seasoned executive in digital,
content and integrated marketing with over 10 years solid experience in the
E-commerce and global digital advertising industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance in
maintaining its corporate transparency and accountability. The Board
formulates appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has been amended and restructured which
applies to corporate governance reports of listed issuers for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2022. As such, the CG Code provisions
described in this report are referring to the code provisions in the predecessor
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules unless otherwise stated.

The Board considers that during the year ended 31 March 2022, except for
the code provision A.4.1 (which was deleted following the amendment to the
CG Code since 1 January 2022), the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are
summarised below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries have been made to all the
directors and all directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”), governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant

employees in advance.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of the
Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decision and
performances in the attainment of the objectives of ensuring effective
functioning and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. All the
directors carry out their duties in good faith, take decisions objectively and act
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Board has power to make its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations. Any director may request for independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

The senior management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the
Board for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above-mentioned officers. The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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Board Composition
As at 31 March 2022, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Non-executive director

FHTES

Executive directors

HTES

EEINAEK
N2022%F3A31H  EFERMERNT :

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yip Keung

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching
HmAarE (£E)
BRESRSTE (FTE4REL)
BB E

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

eIt

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors). Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Board has met the requirements of the Listing
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

The members of the Board have skills and experience appropriate for the
business requirements and objectives of the Group. Each executive director is
responsible for different business and functional division of the Group in
accordance with his expertise. The non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) bring different business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Board committees of the Company. Through
participation in Board meetings, and taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests, the independent non-executive
directors have made contributions to the effective direction of the Company
and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
both the Group and the shareholders.

The biographical details of the existing directors of the Company and the
relationships between Board members, if any, are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual report.
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Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai

Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kit Loong
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement of views.

The Chairman provides leadership for and management of the Board. He
takes the primary responsibility to ensure that the Board works effectively,
performs its responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in a
timely manner. The Chairman is also responsible for facilitating the effective
contribution of non-executive directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive directors. During the year under review,
the Chairman has met with the non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors present.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business in accordance with the strategy, policies
and programs approved by the Board, and realization of the objectives set by
the Board into statements of vision, goals and the corresponding strategies,
plans and budgets as well as their effective implementation. He is also
responsible for providing reports and advice to the Board on the performance
of the Group’s business. The Chief Executive Officer would be well supported
by the management, who provides relevant information and recommendations
to facilitate informed decision making.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment and removal of directors are laid
down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”). According to
the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election at
the relevant AGM. In addition, any new director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his/her appointment, and any director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM. The director appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be
eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the non-
executive director and independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement and
re-election by shareholders at the AGM pursuant to the Articles. Accordingly,
the Board considers that such requirement is sufficient to meet the underlying
objective of the said code provision A.4.1.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director shall receive formal induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional
development for directors are arranged whenever necessary. In addition,
reading materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable
to the Group are provided to directors from time to time for their studying and
reference.
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The directors of the Company are required to submit to the Company details AR R EZERSHBHEZAAQNFIEREBES
of the training they received in each financial year for the Company’s  KIZHIEEE @+ SR A RBHEENEEEY508% -
maintenance of proper training records of the directors. According to the  BIZA QT B ATEZNIEIIREE - AR T EENE
training records currently maintained by the Company, during the year ended ~ Z= 202243 831 B IFEE B @2 & 45F85F A
31 March 2022, the directors of the Company have complied with the code &5 AB.51E - 2MNMIFEHEEIIMT -
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous professional

training as follows:

Type of training "°*®
g ()
Reading materials

Attending seminars/ provided by the
conferences and/ Company or

or forums external parties
HEWHE FEHADRH

BER/UWE  MPEBRENR

Executive Directors: BiTESE -

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Rk E v v
Mr. Chan Yip Keung PREESR ST A v v
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing HREF A v v
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching BB R ST A v v
Non-executive Director: FHITESE -

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong R EL v v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIFHITESE -

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony BTiERTAE v v
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai MEREE v v
Mr. Wong Kam Pui Eilibtas v v
Mr. Wong Kit Loong =R A v 4
Note: B E

These seminars/conferences/materials are related to regulatory development/updates, S & /G MHTVBAREEEE E5  EFH
directors’ duties, corporate governance or other relevant topics. B CEBANEMMBEEE -

A e WA R 2 ) 39
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Meetings

The Board schedules regular Board meetings in advance to give directors the
opportunity to participate actively, either in person or through electronic means
of communication which enable them to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously. Directors are consulted for their views
regarding inclusion of specific matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings and the draft agenda is circulated to directors for their comments.
Special Board meetings are convened as and when needed. All directors are
properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. These Board
meetings, together with the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
meetings, provide effective means for the Board and Board Committees to
perform their work and discharge their duties.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had held 4 Board
meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting,
1 Nomination Committee meeting, the 2021 AGM and 1 extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”). Details of individual directors’ attendance at these meetings
are set out in the following table:

¢

= a3

EFeR AR EHESTESI UL TES
BEeRGIBEBAUEARR KK ERNE
FRATXEHEZE - R EEBRAAE
HEFZZ YRR ERCERNEFNER &
RERNEHNETEFHAEXER - XA
FER BedRENEFESE - AEK
REFGZH LIRNFENENTBERE
BEFHEFL -ZEFEFESE EZAF
% RELFHEESSE REFERE
EeZEeHERIERETEEREENS
E e

HZE2022F3A31AILEFE - ARAI8R174
REZCEH 2RNERZE8CEH 1A
MEZBEEEeH 1RIREZESEH 2021
FREFFEFREG - LAR1RBRERERIAS (B
BREAAE]) ZECHNBERNESHER
BENTE :

2021
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZ88 FHMze8 REZEE 2021 5RE
E=£R FE-4-F EE ] g% = BEXE  RREAKE
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing HRALE 4/4 N/ATEF 11 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chan Yip Keung e 4/4 N/ATEF N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 1/1
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing BRELE 4/4 N/ATEF N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching BEmEE 4/4 N/ATEF N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 1/1
Non-executive Director: FHTEE:
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong BRAEL 4/4 N/ATEF N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: B UHH/7EE -
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony BrEREE 44 2/2 11 il 11 11
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai MERTE 4/4 2/2 11 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Pui Etolibata 4/4 2/2 N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong Kit Loong S i 4/4 2/2 N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. All
the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises a total of 3 members, being
one executive director, namely Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, and two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony (chairman of the
Committee) and Mr. Lam Cheung Wai.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has met the Listing
Rules requirements of having the majority of the Remuneration Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, as well as having the
Committee chaired by an independent non-executive director.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure, and the remuneration packages of directors and members of senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted). The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
the Board with reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee has held
1 meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”) and performed the following major
works: (i) reviewed the existing remuneration policy and structure of the
Company; (i) reviewed the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management of the Company; (iii) considered the bonus payment of executive
directors and senior management of the Company; and (iv) made relevant
recommendations to the Board.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March
2022 is set out below:

RIBECZEEATRISFANEEBASE - #H =2022
FIANNALFERAEEEXNEBRBEZE»NT
EERBES AT -

Number of
Remuneration band (HK$) individual(s)
#FEEE (GBx) AE
500,001-800,000 500,001 2800,000 2
800,001-1,100,000 800,001%1,100,000
1,100,001-1,400,000 1,100,001 £ 1,400,000 2

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of 3 members, being the
Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (chairman of the
Committee), and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen
Tak Tim Anthony and Mr. Lam Cheung Wai.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has met the code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code of having a majority of the Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, and having the
Committee chaired by the Chairman of the Board.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; identify qualified and suitable individuals to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy,
devising the criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation,
provides guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors.
The Board believes that the defined selection process is good for corporate
governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level, and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity as well as
in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited to internal
promotion, re-designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agents. In selecting candidates for directorship of the
Company, the Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her
duties and responsibilities.

Each candidate shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and his/her reference check. The Nomination Committee shall
report its findings and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship for decision.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Company believes
that greater diversity of Directors is good for corporate governance and is
committed to attracting and retaining candidate(s) for the Board with a
combination of competencies from the widest possible pool of available
talents; and to assess regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where
applicable, the senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on achieving diversity
objectives, if any. A Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company,
pursuant to which the Board and the Nomination Committee are responsible
for reviewing and assessing the Board composition under diversified
perspectives (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience) and for ensuring that changes to the
Board’s composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to
the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained during the year ended 31
March 2022. In terms of gender diversity, the Board has already developed a
roadmap in June 2022 to achieve greater gender diversity by 2024.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee has held 1
meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”) and performed the following major
works: (i) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group; (i) assessed the independence of
all the independent non-executive directors; (i) recommended the re-election
of the retiring directors at the 2021 AGM; and (iv) made recommendation to
the change of directors of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the year ended 31 March
2022.

The Audit Committee currently comprises a total of 4 members, being all the
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
(chairman of the Committee), Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, Mr. Wong Kam Pui and
Mr. Wong Kit Loong. Mr. Lam Cheung Wai possesses the appropriate
professional qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial information
and reports of the Group, and considering any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditor before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms of
appointment of the external auditor and making relevant recommendation to
the Board; and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee has performed
the following major works: (i) reviewed and approved the audit plan of the
Company’s external auditor, including the nature and scope of audit, audit
methodology, remuneration and terms of engagement in respect of the audit
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021; (i) considered
major audit findings from the auditor; (jii) reviewed and considered the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
related annual results announcement and annual report; (iv) reviewed the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
internal audit function of the Group; (v) considered the change of the
Company’s auditor; (vi) considered the re-appointment of auditor at the 2021
AGM; (vii) reviewed the interim financial statements of the Group and related
results announcement and report of the Company for the six months ended
30 September 2021; and (viii) made relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of each
Committee member are set out in the above paragraph headed “Meetings”)
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The external auditor has attended the above meetings and discussed with the
Audit Committee members on relevant audit planning and financial reporting
matters. Besides, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
management has provided such explanation and information to the Board as
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and position of the Group put
forward to the Board for approval.
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As set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report, as at 31 March 2022, the Group reported consolidated net current
liabilities of HK$155.3 million, which mainly included lease liabilities, revolving
bank loan facilities and a bank loan that is not contractually due for repayment
within the next twelve months from 31 March 2022 but classified as current
liability due to the bank’s overriding rights to demand repayment.

The directors have given careful consideration of the liquidity and performance
of the Group, various investments and capital expenditure plans and the
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

After taking into account of the projections of the Group’s cash flows from
operations, the reasonably possible downside changes to the cash flow
assumptions in the cash flow projections for the twelve months ending 31
March 2023, the successful continued availability of the revolving/other loans
facilities as well as the new and refinanced loan and undrawn credit facilities
available to the Group (as detailed in note 2.1 to the financial statements), the
directors considered that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the coming twelve months
from 31 March 2022 and continue as going concern. Accordingly, it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 on a going concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have been
designed to protect assets from misappropriation and unauthorised
transactions and to manage operational risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and makes relevant

recommendations.
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The management, in coordination with department heads and operation
teams, regularly assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, ranked these risks
according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on the Group,
provided treatment plans, and monitored the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on any findings and measures
to address the variances and identified risks. During the year ended 31 March
2022, the proliferation and continuance of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong
Kong continued to pose challenges, especially in the area of infectious control
in the Company’s care and attention homes, in which the Company has
implemented stringent preventive measures to ensure that highest standard of
hygiene protection and disinfection procedures have been maintained. Such
internal audit and assessment function aims to examine key issues in relation
to the accounting practices and all material controls, identify deficiencies and
ineffectiveness in the design and implementation of internal controls, and
propose recommendations for improvement. The Audit Committee and the
Board would review the business process and operations reported by internal
audit/management, including action plans to address the identified control
weaknesses, if any, as well as receiving status updates and monitoring the
implementation of recommended process.

The Company has procedures and internal controls measures for the
Company’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited. The Company has maintained a list of the authorised personnel,
including its directors, management and employees with access to inside
information (the “List of Authorised Personnel”) relating directly or indirectly to
the Company. The Board has reviewed the List of Authorized Personnel on a
regular basis to see if changes are required. Authorized personnel of the
Company must take reasonable care to safeguard the confidentiality of all
inside information in their possession or control. Moreover, all employees of
the Company are required to sign the employment contract with confidentiality
agreement to ensure that they are obliged not to divulge or disclose any inside
information to any outsiders. In case of discovery of leakage of the inside
information, the Board would be notified immediately, and subsequent
remedial measures would be taken.
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In addition, employee of the Company with a good faith belief that an event of
price sensitive nature exists or may exist should report to his/her immediate
supervisor/department head who is responsible for reporting the event to the
management. Management would evaluate the situation and make
recommendation to the Chairman on whether or not the issue should be
escalated to the Board. The department head is responsible for ensuring that
all events of price sensitive nature are properly reported to management who
would ensure that the event is investigated in a timely manner.

The Company also established procedures to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company to relevant
working committee when appropriate. The working committee comprising the
directors and senior management and head of Human Resources, is
responsible for evaluating every report received and decide if a full investigation
is necessary, and reporting the issue, the result of investigation and the
corrective action taken to the Audit Committee to ensure the Audit Committee
notices the issue.

An independent risk assessment and internal control review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems has
been performed by an external consulting firm, which performed as an internal
audit function during the year. The Audit Committee and the Board would
review the reports by external consulting firm of any control issues identified in
the course of their work, and discussing with auditors the scope of their
respective review and findings. Such risk assessment and internal control
review aims to examine key issues in relation to the accounting practices and
all material controls, identify deficiencies and ineffective parts in the design and
implementation of internal controls, and propose recommendations for
improvement.

In addition, in terms of operational risks, the Company has implemented
standardised management and operational procedures across our care and
attention homes, which cover areas that are required under the RCHE Code
of Practice, Residential Care Homes (Elderly Persons) Ordinance (Chapter 459
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary legislation, the Service Quality
Standards issued by the Social Welfare Department, ISO 9001 quality
management system and the ISQua standards accredited by the Hong Kong
Association of Gerontology.
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The Company has established a Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee
(“QAMC”) to oversee the quality of the operations of the senior care services.
The composition of the QAMC includes the management team, employees,
residents, families of residents and parties independent of the Company. The
QAMC is responsible for conducting surprise audits and on-site inspections at
our care and attention homes and subsequent to such audits, providing
objective feedback and recommendation to the Company to manage relevant
operational risks and improve operational processes.

The Company has participated in the accreditation program under the
Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology. Such accreditation programme promotes best practices in the
RCHE industry and conduct assessment annually. Accreditation under this
scheme ensures that the Company’s care and attention homes have, among
others, established effective governance; provided a safe, hygienic and
comfortable environment, facilities and quality services; and established a set
of planning, supervision and service improvement processes which enhance
the Company’s control over operational risks.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board, in conjunction with the
Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including the process for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance; the adequacy of resources on internal audit, operational and
compliance controls; and financial reporting function; as well as staff
qualifications, experience, training programmes and related resources. The
Board considered that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2022 was effective and adequate, the
Board also considered the resources, qualifications/experience of staff of the
Group’s internal audit, accounting, financial reporting and business support
functions are adequate and no significant areas of concern has been identified.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Lo Sze Hung, who fulfils the
qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules. Biographical details
of Mr. Lo are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” of this annual report. During the year ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Lo
has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the existing external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s existing
external auditor, in respect of their services for the year ended 31 March 2022
are analyzed below:

SMNEB R BUAT R A% BB &

RRRREINE X BN R GBS 5T BT Y
WEMARBEZ 202243 531 HIEFEFBRE
R ERRE RN A TR B A EARE |50 -

MEE 20223 A31 BILFEMNRBEMON,EA
RAEREINEAZ AN 28 KRB RTRI B IS ATAY
BRSO

Fee paid/
Type of services provided by the external auditor payable
SN BT IR ALHY AR S A Bt BB
(HK$’000)
(F#&T)
Audit service — audit fee for the year ended 31 March 2022 2B RIS — B 20223 A31HILFE

ZIREER 1,434

Non-audit service — agreed-upon procedures in EEPRTS — BEPEEENNITRERRRF
respect of interim results 381
1,815

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enables shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.pinecaregroup.com as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations and
other information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors
may send written enquiries or requests to the Company as follows:

Address: G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street,
Tsz Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: investorrelations@pinecaregroup.com
Tel: (852) 2813 8102
Fax: (852) 3020 8779

Enquiries and requests will be dealt with by the Company in an informative
and timely manner.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BERREREERR

ARREE - BRROEREBEREREEBE
RINREREEHAEEAXBRARKBO T HEH
EZ - ARETHAARBATNEHNBEAE ER
BENE2E  FHEENBERMEEEFLRER
BIRE -

7R B 3% 37 49 i www. pinecaregroup.com E £ B E
BRREREEENBRYS  MUHELRRAREHE
BEREEMNEHREFEAAREMERAH AR
B - RERZEENEBUT IR ERD S A
BRBXREARQT -

ik - BAENEEREL
BEFHES-T2REEE1HH T

TEH : investorrelations@pinecaregroup.com

TEE 0 (852) 2813 8102

#H : (852) 30208779

AREEERERERFAREERAREL -


http://www.pinecaregroup.com/
mailto:investorrelations@pinecaregroup.com

it SRR §

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Board members and senior staff will
be available to answer questions raised by the shareholders at general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company will invite representatives
of the auditor to attend its annual general meeting to answer shareholders’
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including but
not limited to the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide their full names,
contact details and identification, in the originally signed written requisition,
notice or statement (as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required by law.

With respect to the shareholders’ right in proposing persons for election as
directors of the Company, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 January
2017, the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company was adopted with effect from 15 February 2017. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, there was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
R S AN it

PURPOSE B H®Y
The Group is here to disclose its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“ESG Report”). This ESG Report aims to outline
the Group’s sustainability approaches, strategies, and performance.

AEEBUBFRERRE HeRER(RE - HaRERDME(RR HLEREAME))  ARF - HERERBREEERELE
BB ER T RERKE -

REPORTING SCOPE AND PERIOD 3R £5[E K Hi[E]

The Group identifies the reporting scope of the ESG Report by considering the financial threshold and materiality level of the Group’s ESG
impact. The Group’s revenue was mainly generated from (i) rendering senior care services including the provision of residence, professional
nursing and care taking services, nutritional management, medical services, psychological and social care, and individual care plans; and (i)
sale of senior care related goods in Hong Kong. Hence, aligned with the previous report, the ESG Report continues to cover the ESG key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) of its 11 care and attention homes in Hong Kong from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, including:

AEEEATARE HEREARTHREHERZERTUBHMIERAEERE - HEREAVENEEZRE - ALENKEES
RERES () REREEZRE - 2FEREEE  FEEERBRERE 28558 BERY - DERMEHEUARBEAZERTE &
()HELREEER - At - BRTHRE -8 ARR - g REARSNAREEAF 11 HERELZERN2021F4 A1 HE20224F3
A31BMRE e ERBRENEE ((BRERUER])  EEBRERBIE

Pine Care (Tak Fung) Elderly Centre
0Ee (8 EEH L

Pine Care (Po Tak) Elderly Centre
iR (R EZH L

New Pine Care Centre
bR EE R L

Pine Care Chun King Elderly Centre
MEREFEEZF O

Pinecrest Elderly Centre
HAREEZ AL

Pine Care Place

HRER HESD

Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre
0 (BF)EZP L

Pine Care Point
AR EEST

Pine Care Hong Fai Elderly Centre
HARS BB R o >

Patina Wellness
(includes serviced apartment and Patina Care)
R (B ERBA EERERASE)

Pine Care (Lee Foo) Elderly Centre
0 (FE) EZH O

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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REPORTING STANDARDS k5 %8l
This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange.

RIRE M REAMES BB ETRBMESE RS B RERARERSD(RE - L@ REABMEES D REERER -

SOURCES OF INFORMATION Z5 3R
The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our internal statistical reports, internal policies and other internal documents.
The Board hereby confirms that no false or misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

The Group has established internal control systems and a formal review process to ensure that any information presented in this ESG Report
is as accurate and reliable as possible.

ARE @ REAWMSAFENSEDRE RN BERS - AEEREEMAR M - EESHRE P ILEERIEGIERERAL -
AEEDHIEARERERGRERBHERIE - BERARE LS REMEMETINE R B gL 5 -

BOARD APPROVAL EEEtf
The ESG Report was reviewed and approved by the Board on 21 June 2022.

EFEEN2022F6 A21 HRBWBBARIE - 8 REEHRE -
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES #:H 4% R E| - o

This ESG Report is compiled by adopting the following major reporting principles according to the ESG Reporting Guide, namely materiality,

quantitative, balance and consistency as set out below:

AR - HEREAMESER(RE  HERELAGREEDAEINTIZERFAGEE  RFE2E - 84 FER-BL  AdmT

Reporting Principles Definition Our Response
& RA EHE R E e
Materiality The ESG issues covered in this ESG Report should Through materiality assessment, the Group has
HE2MH be significantly important to stakeholders. identified ESG topics that are material to various
stakeholders and its business. For details of the
KIRE  HERERABRSMEENRE LR assessment processes and results, please refer to
BCRBEAHFNEEK - the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment”.
REEBANEFDE REEBT = EAMIRE -
HEeREAFEE ERBZUEDTHBIERE
R F2EEFHE2E]R[EEEESE -
Quantitative The ESG Report should disclose ESG KPIs in a The standards and methodologies used in the
21k measurable way. calculation of relevant data, as well as the
applicable assumptions in this ESG Report were
RNIRE - e REAREENAIE/MARAEFE | disclosed. The KPIs were supplemented by
RIE - e RERBARERIER - explanatory notes to establish benchmarks where
feasible.
WEARGEARRE g RERMEHBEIE
EVIRAER 7704 LA RGE R AR - BIRERUEIZ M7
BT - AERIATIE R NI B o
Balance The ESG Report should fairly present the The Group has identified and disclosed the ESG
T information of the Group to reflect a issues with significant impact on the Group’s
comprehensive picture of the sustainability business, including the achievements and
performance of the Group. challenges faced by the Group, in this ESG
Report.
RIRE  HEREABREEBANMBEAEEN
8 URMAEEEEBHNIREZRESE - REBECBRENEXEBEEATENRSE - i
FRERESR  BPBREEKRLAEE K
B WARARIRE HERERMERTE -
Consistency Preparation of the ESG Report should be based The reporting scope and statistical methodologies
— 5t on consistent methods over time. of this ESG Report are substantially consistent
with the previous year, and this ESG Report has
REARRIE  HEREARABRESH A EAEEBEFN disclosed year-to-year comparative information
BE—%- where appropriate.
RRIE - L@ REAMENREBE RS X
HEFRE—H ARE  £FRELREEHK
BEEHLEIE -

A b R B
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ACCESS TO THIS REPORT 73R & XEH A =

This ESG Report has been prepared in both English and Chinese. In case of discrepancy, the English version shall prevail. This ESG Report is
incorporated in the Group’s annual report which is available on Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

ARG - LB RERMERBAPRURS - EMRAHBRRE - MIARIRARE - KR - HERELABREALEEFERSE D
H AT 2 P Aguh R AR B4R &R -

FEEDBACK = R & &&

Every opinion from the Group’s stakeholders is of the utmost important to the Group. If you have any opinions or suggestions to this ESG
Report or the Group’s sustainability performance, you are welcomed to email to info@pinecaregroup.com.

AEEFHENBEREAESEMSHEEEE - 11 MTHRNRE e hEARELAEEANIBEERRAGEME R SEE - 20
% H £ info@pinecaregroup.com ©
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ABOUT PINE CARE
R S AR

Pine Care Group was founded in 1989 with the aim to set a new standard in Hong Kong’s senior care industry. With our unwavering
dedication to quality and focus on innovation, Pine Care has grown from just care and attention homes into a market leader today, and has
become one of the most respected brands in the senior care industry. In 2017, we also became as the first senior care operator listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

As a leader in the senior care sector and a prestigious brand, we offer senior care services with caring professionals covering operations of
residential care home, integrated senior wellness hub, daycare services, as well as provision of multidisciplinary services and management
consultation services for wellness centre.

MEREEEE AN 1989F  RERBBNLERBITEITESNFEE - BERMUEENTRRSMEBRAH - RABEELERE
LEBRARBTENEEE  BRAREEETEPRIGENREZ — - N2017F  HAITKATEHIAERE M LmNZE
BRAsTREE -

ERARETENEGERAFENRE  RARKEESZEENRE  BERERS SAREELHR  AREEERYE  UkAk2
B O RHEEERBME IR AR -

——— -
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THE WARM FEELING OF HOME # FRERIR 2z =X

As we enter our golden years, we all want the same thing — a warm, safe, and comfortable environment where we can
enjoy the services of a team of caring professionals. With this in mind, Pine Care Group strives to provide a home-like
environment to our residents, emphasizing on understanding each resident’s individual needs and fostering friendships
among residents and staff. With comprehensive personal care and professional nursing services, the seniors can enjoy a
safe, private and respected ageing life.

BAOFESARTSRAREESER  REBRF - AGRERE DEROR | ERREZEEN—BERE -k
EHRaRBRORASN EIEEI?EE@_L»*L Ei5E  AORBMMMTE  REEZEMRLERBREIXNEER
BT ZEZE LR BXEENRKREE -

IMPROVING CARE SERVICE COMMITMENT 3¢ & B & iR 75 5%

We strongly believe that respect is of paramount importance. As a result, our corporate culture is embodied in the
Company’s motto of “respecting the elderly as family”, as our staff show the same level of respect to the elderly as they
would to their own family. We also place great emphasis on periodic staff training, clear and specific working guidelines
and a safe and healthy working environment, allowing our staff to develop the team spirit to the fullest. The performance
of our staff is regularly assessed to continuously improve our service quality. We believe that our team is the guarantee
of service quality.

EENHERAREMBZE  [HMEWR] RLRE LB THENES - RMINETE - BB THETHEEST
HEBM AR TEIES - RER2RENTIERE  RETAMHEBEERREM - RMATHFBHETRE T%ﬂm
THRBE R @ REHMNEBERSEHENRE
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CORE VALUES #&MBE

Respect

Respecting the elderly residents the way we would to our families

Competence
Attracting the best people possible and having the best system in place to help them reach their full potentials

Priority

Putting the best interests of the elderly residents above all else

EE
B (Wi ] evie

AT
WEIBFEAT - AWM= FE - BIE TME2mEEELE

RERE
BRERINSABUER B
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS #IE K =&

Hong Kong Association of Gerontology

BEREFEG

Award for Recognizing
Full Participation of Elderly Service
Organizations in Accreditation

ZEREEERGEHBER

-

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme
— Excellent Grade (Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre,
Pine Care Hong Fai Elderly Centre, Pine Care (Po Tak)
Elderly Centre and Pine Care Place)
BEAZERSTETE — SHTERE

(hie (B 5 ) EZh.O - RIREEREDL

R (R12) EZH O KRR HESE)

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme —
Good Grade and Good Facilities (7 of our care and attention homes)
BERRZERSTETE — RETISRBIRRERE (8 7R%ER)

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme —
Evaluation Certificate (Pine Care Hong Fai Elderly Centre)
ERRTERSTENE — FERE (DREEEZRL)

The Elderly Services Association of Hong Kong and
Hong Kong Employment Development Service

ERZERBHEREBRERRREE

The Fifth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Excellent Staff (Front-line sector)
FHETERBEH/EETRE - EFET (Figdr)

The Fifth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Excellent Staff (Professional sector)
FRERERBEHRHETRE - FRET (FEER)

The Fifth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Excellent Participation Award (5 of our care and attention homes)
FHETERBH/LETRE — Bo88:E (HTHTER)

The Fifth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Talent Awards (New Pine Care Centre)
FHEZERBEHELETRE — AABHE GRGKEZHDL)

The Golden Age Foundation
EeRRESE

-

Smart Ageing Award 2021 — Elderly Care (Bronze)
Bttt K8 2021 — BEEE (%)

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Headline Daily
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Headline Daily Headlines No.1 Awards
No.1 Excellent Elderly Senior Care Services

SR H AT AR No.1 AZ
No.1 sl %R #5

CLP Power Hong Kong
FEENERAT

Smart Energy Award 2021 — Peak Demand Management
(SME/NGO/Education Institute) (Pine Care Point)

BIEERRED ¥ KT 2021 — Bk AEEE AL AR
(RN HERFIREBR)  (REEE)

The Hon Kon CounC|I of Social Service

BELE

ar@en | 1H =

SR EHREERAS2021

ISO Quality Management Systems
ISO mEEEAL

Caring Company

[ERERE
BRERE
caringcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
SAMERFHEER

-

ISO 9001: 2015 Quality management
ISO 9001: 2015 MEEE Z 4t

U S
MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS

068

ISO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 2352

FERE 1 CC 2352

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

BEEARETEEER

Good MPF Employer Award
BeifEE

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
2022 F ]
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SIGNATURE PROJECTS - SILVERAGE COLLECTION
BHEA-HE « BE

PINE CARE PLACE 8 7E%E

Flagship in New Territories ¥1 R E &R &

Conveniently situated in Yoho Mall |, Yuen Long, Pine Care Place is a senior care home designed to combine a luxurious, home-like
environment with our innovative approach to long-term senior care services. With an area of over 33,000 square feet, Pine Care
Place offers 68 beds, averaging close to 500 square feet per resident, making us one of the most spacious senior care homes in
Hong Kong. In addition to the luxurious ambience, our service emphasizes individualized care, catering to each resident’s specific
needs.

WA BB - fIRTTE Yoho Mall | BRI A —MRERERSE @ TE[RIWRE - ESAH TR RERHLZEERT -
e MEFE 153t 381 33,000 F 77 R - Hefit 68 fETE (L - AHEIEAIG00F IR - BREEEREARMALEREZ— - R TITERE
FEREERE  NREATZEETNETLEES  TERESUEENS °

Enriching the Lives of the Senior 2 R & 4%

An extensive range of amenities is available to maintain the physical and mental health of their residents, including physiotherapy
room and sensory therapy room. Pine Care Place also offers individualized nursing care and rehabilitation programs to help the
senior to carry out appropriate training. Among Pine Care Place’s leisure facilities are a video and karaoke room, library and
computer corner, games room, indoor garden, beauty salon, coffee bar, dining room, spa and meditation room. Senior residents
can enjoy their stay and form companionships with neighbors both indoors and outdoors.

MRS RIRISRE F DR %ET#*“ﬁmyEk WIREE  RERERES KA EAZEE Jrﬂ&@l?ﬁ% BEREE
TTETINIIER - beoh - REEERELERERRE  BFEFAE - Fiok  BEE  BHEE  MEE - EE - EEE
DEE - B REE  RLEE %%ﬁ—fﬁfﬁ% BHEED S TXTEARLEE -

&)
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A Silver Lining for the Silver Age BIRBEF B W 4EE

Breaking through the traditional mode of senior care service, beautifully designed, and conveniently located across 84,000 square
feet in Kowloon City, Patina Wellness offers 79 elegant serviced apartments for active seniors and their family members. Created to
be a community, not just a residence, Patina Wellness takes a holistic approach to living, where both physical and emotional
wellbeing are paramount.

RFERLREEERGER - FASCIENIEN - Rt ER X - BEM - #ETEES4,000FHR -« RRHE7ER RS A E
L FERRENERA - HAFRRETUAEER  ZEEMVHRBESSERELREE  BREMETHFLERR -

3 A |
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PATINA CARE EiZ 7%t PATINACAre J

A New Age of Senior Care & & F X

Operating as a division within the integrated wellness hub, Patina Care, the senior nursing care home with 32 beds, sprawls

beautifully across 8,000 square feet of space in Kowloon City. With access to a spectrum of nursing care plans, rehabilitation
programs and supporting developmental services, Patina Care provides professional and individualized medical care that is
formulated based on each resident’s needs. Small, personal care groups of 10 to 11 in a cozy and home-like living environment
gives residents a strong foundation to sustain their health and welfare.

RN NLER  ERAaREHEHSIRA PHEERE - (FIRA 48,000 F AR » RHE2ABR - AL SIRREENE
AR - BIEERAEAMENBEREST SR - BBEES  BRARNEEXE  RRETKEA L ERE - FABHETNER
BS - R10ENuRES A/ EHE  AEFENFKRNEERES - HERELESRENSENEE -
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PINE CARE POINT #2848 gEm;A% = oo J
Flagship in Kowloon District 113E EiE R &

Conveniently situated in Shek Kip Mei, Pine Care Point, with an area of over 43,000 square feet, offers 103 beds in various room
configurations. While the majority of the rooms are offered as single rooms or single suites, 2-person to 4-person rooms are also
available.

It provides a thematic space on each of its floors, namely Community Space, Culture and Arts Space, as well as Elderly Vitality
Space. Each floor is fitted with numerous facilities, with services and activities designed to provide the appropriate care for our
residents with various rehabilitation and skilled nursing care services needs.

MBS N ABRE - ZHEER 43,000 F SR @ RE103EAEML - RETARFE - EhRHBDREAFREAESE @ I - 7
BEAEEMOAFAIHER -

MEREFFEHE TR LE - BFEERTRER BN ZERREEEHZER - SEZERE TANRE - BaSERE R
EE)  RBEETRERREXEERBHRERMCETAORE -

B 0 A 2%
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
H Al B9 vl w5 45 5% e s gt

Guided by our core principle of “respecting the elderly as family”, we are committed to managing the operations of our care and attention
homes in a responsible manner. We are devoted to integrating ESG considerations into our business. We believe that sustainability
encompasses not only our environmental performance and contribution to the wider community, but also underpins our core business
practices and our relationships with residents, shareholders, employees, and suppliers.

The Group embraces sustainable development in pursuit of our mission — “creating a warm and pleasant silver age for the elderly” based on
the four priority areas: (i) Pine Care Silverage; (ii) Pine Care Green; (i) Pine Care Smart; and (iv) Pine Care Caring. We support the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“UNSDGs”), which aim to end poverty, protect the planet and ensure that all people enjoy peace
and prosperity by 2030, through working on our priority areas.

RERF R LIRS  BAAEABEEN A EERIMETEELZRSNEE  UERAHERRE - RFBOHRER -
HERERTERMARMNES - ZFEE - THEERBRTHTFRANRERRAURELEROER - TREEZ TEHNEAR  8FK
DEBERARRAERFRES - IR - BETNHERNEE -

AEMERERERINRE - RAHEOASHEE : ()[REREE] - () REREE] - (i) REREE] RivIREREE ] BPsEER
R B) BEREA B A H5E%E B R (UNSDGs]) » % 212030 FAIE RN A ARLZEMTNERNFAR - REMIMERER -
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Maintaining quality senior GO0 HEATH
. AND WELL-BEING
care services

HESEEREEZERE
Goal B

To provide high quality senior care services to create the
warm feeling of home for our residents

RESERLRERREELERE  ARETIEERHOK

RESPONSIBLE CLIMATE
CONSUMPTION ACTION
ANDPRODUCTION

Pine Care
Silverage

R E

Leveraging innovation for Embracing a

enhanced silver age greener future
SIRAIH - RABRBLETE Pine Pine BERZERR
. Care Care
Goal H1E Smart Green Goal B2
To adopt smart solutions to cater *’l}\ﬁ%%‘ ﬁlé *’AE’%?}?@, To pursue a sustainable

to the needs of our residents in
support of their physical, mental
and social well-being

KASEFRBRERMOR M
F - REMMN S - DMERRER

operation pattern to
combat climate change
and protect our planet
. SRAIEELSESE
Pine Care B o Tjﬁ;ﬁ ’5?
Caring R BAAEE(L - RiE

REBEE R

DEGENT WORK D GOODHEALTH quauTY
1 ADCOMNTES | O ANoWELL3ENG EDUCATION

Fostering a caring culture for our
employee and community

EDBEXL  BEET - ERdH

Goal B&

Our Employees ZFWET :

To cultivate a corporate culture that embraces
talent development, employee wellbeing and
family-friendly practices

BEEREBIZR BIRBRNRERENGE
XMk

Our Community i1t &E:

To proactively engage in community contributions
TBRE At F R

i A Yl A
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

AEERRER

Being accountable for the long-term stable growth of Pine Care Group, the Group not only places emphasis on the economic performance,
but also commits to enhancing its ESG governance. The Group believes that an effective ESG governance structure is a cornerstone of our
sustainable growth and long-term success.

EERRNREZEEANRERTRRAE - AEETESRLERE - TEORTRE @ REHRE - ARBEREERHRE
HEREARBIARKEERERBKRIINESR -

The Board EEg&

The Board retains the ultimate responsibility for the oversight of the Group’s ESG strategy, management, performance and reporting through the
support of the ESG Working Group (the “Working Group”). The Board receives updates periodically from the Working Group on ESG risks and
opportunities, and their impact on the Group’s business. With the assistance of the Working Group, the Board (j) sets out the ESG management
approach, strategy and priorities; (i) examines and approves the Group’s ESG objectives, targets and goals, and the related policies and
frameworks; and (jii) reviews the Group’s performance periodically against ESG-related goals and targets. The Board is also responsible for
ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and approving disclosures in the ESG reports.

BEEEARE HeREARTEE ( [TIFE] ) AESAKERNRE HeREAERE B KREMREAERKAT - THEEE
HREESRHAMERE e REAARMBBUNENAREERZBNZENENER - ETEANHE T - EFSOHERE 4§
REREEH BHEEER (MR RIEARERE  HERELERIABBERIER  Rii)EHARERE - @ REGEHE Rk
HAAEENKRE - EERNEERRAEERRERRAREERRTZEREELRE  HEREARENRESE -

The Working Group L {E4

The Working Group is composed of core members from various departments, which facilitates the Board’s oversight of ESG matters. The key
responsibilities of the Working Group are (i) collecting and analysing ESG data; (i) monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance;
(iii) reviewing the progress made against the Group’s ESG-related targets; (iv) ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations; (v)
assisting in conducting materiality assessment; and (vi) preparing ESG reports. The Working Group arranges meetings regularly to evaluate
the effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and formulates appropriate solutions to improve the overall ESG performance of the
Group. The Working Group also assists in assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities, ensuring the implementation and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems. The Working Group reports the Group’s ESG-related matters and makes
recommendations to the Board periodically.

THRAmSEMIROKEEN  BYPEEEESRE  HEREREE - TIFAXTERFABRORERSITRE & REREE : ()%
ELFEAEERE M@ NERRR  (NBRENAEERE  HEMNERBERNER  (VERETERE - g LERHEBAR X
B (VIRBETEEME - RVRRERE e REAWE - TIFEEMSRTEE  AAARTBRREMEFNERREENARBIEREL FE
WEAKERR  HEREABRERE - TIEATMB LN AEERE  HEREARBIEE  BARREREE AP RETT
ZER - TIFEEHREESERAEERE e kEaBBEEREHNEESELEBER
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The Group considers risk management as an integral part of daily management and sound corporate governance. Risk management mechanism

Risk Management EEE

assists the Group to evaluate and minimise risks that may prevent or endanger the achieving of its business objectives in a dynamic business
environment where economic, industry, regulatory and operating conditions continue to change. The Group assesses and determines the ESG-
related risks and opportunities and considers their implications. The Group also formulates ESG-related controls to address significant ESG-
related risks of which the controls are operated effectively at corresponding business levels. Coupled with sound internal controls, it facilitates
a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritizing, managing, and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces in its operations. Details
on the Group’s risk management approach can be found in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

FEESEREERAATEERRFOEEANEE R - AREEES T B AEEFN G RRERER ARG REREE - 17
¥ ORRREESA TS Z ENBREHRBTEREL B RNRAR - AREFGLEEERRE e REAEENRREK ST EESH
& - ARETHERE - 4G REHBNEGIEE - WEHEARE  HekEaniBiRR - MaEEIEREERNEBRRE
MUBIE - AT EMNENESY - ZEHEEEDISERTE - 1t Bt TEREZAKEZERETHENER - EHASERREE)
ERRES - B2MAER [REBRME] —H -

Sustainability Commitment A& &%

As an enterprise that upholds corporate social responsibility, the Group acknowledges the importance of reducing its impact on the environment.
To fulfil the Group’s commitment to corporate social responsibility and allow the Group’s stakeholders to better understand the Group’s progress
in improving its ESG performance, the Group has decided to set environmental targets covering the aspects of energy conservation, emission
reduction and waste management. These targets help the Group to response to the global vision of carbon neutrality and enhance corporate
reputation. To achieve these targets, the Group actively implements the principle of sustainable development and adopts relevant measures at
operational levels. The Board has delegated the Working Group to collect relevant ESG data, analyze and review the Group’s performance, and
evaluate the Group’s progress towards the targets.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to deepen the integration of ESG concepts into its business strategy and management system and
operate its business more responsibly and sustainably in order to create sustainable value for shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.

ERBTEEMGEMANDE  ARERAREESRENFENERE - RRTAEEHEEH S EENAELEREENRHEEH
AARKENRERE @ REARANBE AEERERIREDR  REHE  RFELEVERE - %% B R HASE R E 2R T
MRS MR EEREE - BEKRBR Zli’ilizﬁ*ﬁ?%ia?‘ﬁﬁﬂw& VREERBRRMIERER - EFSCEFTIFARERARR
5 HERERHE HSMEEEAEENRBLFEREBELBROEE -

ERR - AEESEBSMARBRBEREEZRTRARE S REAHSNER  YATAEERIHENTREEEXT - /K
?%m BB E NGB ATFEARK
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

BFHnE2H

Stakeholder engagement is an integral part of our sustainable development journey. We have identified customers (residents) , employees,
government and regulatory authorities, investors, suppliers and contractors and the community as our major stakeholder groups. Engaging
with stakeholders allows us to better shape our business strategy to respond to their needs, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships.
We maintain close communication with stakeholders through various formal and informal channels in our daily operations.

The material issues of their concerns and regular communication channels are as follow:

FOE2EERMANTHEXRERLERER - HMASHHNELP(RR) - BT BUFREE#RE  REE  HEBDASEULEER
ERBMNEIZRNE - FHHEL2RERMREXBER - UEEMFAFR - FhELILNEETEE RN EFEEEDEBS
BEXEIFEANRBEBNERFEEHE -

HENREERA R MR REOBRRENT

Stakeholders Material Issues Communication Channels
BHHE BAEHE BERE
Customers (Residents) e Service quality and customer safety e Customer hotline
zP BREEEREPZE BT
(Bt kR) e Complaint handling e Grievance mechanism
BRI FR S A
e Customer privacy protection e Feedback surveys
B PRLERE BER#AL
e Customer right
BN
Employees e Health and safety e Training and employee activities
(== REREZR B3Ik 1E B)EE)
e Career development and promotion e Grievance mechanism
opportunities EREF I
BEHRLEHE

¢ Remuneration and benefits protection
i R B AR

Government and e | egal compliance e Compliance with government policies
regulatory authorities BPAE BFBUSER
BT % BSE s e Senior care industry development » Response to inquiries from government and
RETHEERE departments
Bl & B AT E P&
e Fulfilment of social responsibility
BITHEEE
Investors e Performance growth and return on investment e Convene of regular shareholder meetings
KEE RERR LA B EHRARRREARE
Information disclosure e Publication of financial and ESG reports
B T MIRE - g RERWmE
Business operation risks
(BEERR

Suppliers and

Responsible purchasing

e Supplier comparison matrix

contractors BEERE HERE LR
HERE KA R Integrity e Regular communication
MiE EHER
Community Support community engagement e Cooperation with social enterprise
g ez HMERRAE

e Promotion of public health

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

BEEMIML

During FY2022, the Group has conducted a stakeholder survey to collect opinions from stakeholders towards the Group’s ESG issues. The

procedures of the materiality assessment are as follows:

K202 TG E - REBETRHNERL  WEFNEHAEERE HEREAFENER - AREEUFEWRFNOT

Step
ez 5

Step
R

Step
SE

Identify Relevant Issues 5% 75/|#8 8% &

Identify 27 ESG issues that are material to the Group according to past
stakeholder engagement results, industry trend and Stock Exchange's ESG
Reporting Guide.

REBSERMNEBRLDNER FABB LIRS weMER
WEES  AERERH2TENASEN T BEANRE - HeREGHE °

Collect Stakeholders’ Ratings W &350 & 15

Invite stakeholders to participate in the stakeholder survey to rate on the 27
ESG issues.

BPBERFNELSEREHEE - SiZ27ERE - @ REaEBETIS

Analyze Results D45 R

Prioritize the 27 ESG issues with analysis according to the overall ratings of
stakeholders and our management.

REFNDENAREEEBUSHZEAHNEE C RPI2TIERE - A
g RERZEEBIIETIRFE - XIADHT -

e B O 0 A
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Importance to Stakeholders
HEGENERE

? o

The materiality assessment results are shown in the above materiality matrix. The 9 issues on the top right-hand comer indicate the issues that

3o

Importance to the group

\/

HAEENERY

our stakeholders are mostly concerned with and will be disclosed in this ESG Report in details.

EZMFEAERSEN DA B EMNER - 2P A LAKONIERERLRA NP RHNERREINER - B

ERERRE -

Material Issues E X:%5E

Disclosed Sections ¥ EZ&f

Staff welfare
BTREA

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
TEHE ST RER

Occupational health and safety
BEEREET S

Staff development and training

8 TE#REMEI

Health and safety of residents
REREZ 2

Customer rights

BEH

Complaint handling and customer satisfaction
KRFARBENEFPMER

Community investment

HERRE

Legal compliance
AR

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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e Respecting Employees’ Rights
BES T

e Caring for Employees’ Wellbeing
REETLE

e Promoting Career Development
HPBEER

e Guaranteeing Senior Health and Safety

REREREEZE

o Listening and Adopting Opinions
RERKNER

¢ Spreading Warmth to Community
(At [ 1R B
e Corporate Governance
EER
e Pine Care Silverage
R ME
e Pine Care Green
[N cro S

e Pine Care Caring
REREE



Other Considered Issues H 2 E Z|5E

\I,

o N7

Air emissions

RER IR

Waste management

R

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and energy management
BERBHMNAERER

Water management

KERETE

Climate change risk

FURBLAR

Green procurement

RERE

Environmental risk in supply chains

RSN RIE R

Labour practices

ERED

Responsible sourcing
EEERE

OO0 0660 666 6 6

Product and service assurance and quality
EmMRBRENEE

Customer data and privacy protection
BEREN RALRRE

Intellectual property rights management
HBERERE

Marketing, advertising and promotion
178 - BENERE

Anti-corruption

RE3

Technology and innovation
Pty K I

Economic performance

HIBERA

Information disclosure

BRI

Governance and risk management
R REARER

Tl WA R A

2022 3R

75



N

76

4 5 _,
Se 7

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ERER

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY EZEHE

Upholding good business ethics and integrity is considered as the cornerstone of the Group’s continuous development. As such, we have
outlined our requirements in the Employee Handbook, Employees’ Code of Conduct and other policies, stating that our employees are
strictly prohibited from offering bribes, accepting bribery or transfer of benefits, as well as listing the procedures for reporting conflict of
interest and handling benefits. We have also established whistleblowing channels. Employees or other related parties can report any
suspected incidents to our Audit Committee or company secretary. We would follow our standardized whistleblowing system to refer the
incidents to the working committee which is consisted of the Group’s director, head of Finance and head of Human Resources Department
to evaluate the incidents and perform follow-up actions. The working committee would report the details, investigation results and follow-up
actions of such incidents to the Audit Committee to maintain the Group’s business ethics and integrity, as well as protect the rights of the
Group and its stakeholders.

We would provide training related to anti-corruption to our employees from time to time to enhance their relevant knowledge. In view of the
spread of COVID-19, we have provided online anti-corruption training to employees during FY2022 about knowledge of anti-bribery and
handling conflict of interest. As such, the directors and staff of the Group have received a total of 9 hours and 504 hours of anti-corruption
training respectively on anti-corruption-related legislations, corporate integrity governance and ethics.

During FY2022, the Group was not aware of any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees, and was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, corruption
and money laundering, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.

HRRINBRERMAGEAEERAMERNEESEANO - UL AMCRETTFM  BRELAETIEFHRRFAEMER  JIRETE
BT HEXBRERENE - WHIHBRBMNEEREEEMNESRIE - RATREERRE  ETHEBHEBA LT RASENEZ
ZESYUNRANERREIMARERER RASKBEENRRRERS  ASENESE  WBEERANEREEMAKNIIEERZE

BREMREER ZIHEZESTENERZESERERFE  AEERNBETY  UEFHAEERSNBRERKAERE
AT A e B o f5 4 & O 2 -

KMgTESME T2 RESHEBE - R P EME - ERFEERRSRER ﬁfFﬁﬁézozzﬁﬂkﬁﬁﬁ%f@EﬁE{ﬁi&é‘
aEdl ﬁﬁlagﬁﬂﬁtﬁﬁﬁk&ﬂ?@ﬂ 1§I SHVHIEE o Bt - AEEMBEERB T ORETT AR/ K504/ MNEMREFFI
RRERBTHEBED - EEBEEL RER -

R202 W BEFE - AEESBEEREMNEMARENEEEDSTANESTEHEREN  FERYTIBEAEMNERNER BB - &
5F - SR RS 2 RRDAR LA N (B ENRREB R LR IEGD) B
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PARTNERSHIP ¥ 4¥#1E

Our suppliers mainly provide medical supplies and consumables, food and nutrient products, kitchen suppliers, housewares, stationery as
well as repair and maintenance services to us. During FY2022, we worked with 20 major suppliers, all of which were local suppliers.

Since some of the supplies including food and nutrient products, and medical supplies and consumables have a direct impact on our
residents, we are highly concerned about the quality of such supplies. We have established purchasing and supplier evaluation policy to
assess new and existing suppliers. To select prospective suppliers, well-regulated, fair and open tendering and evaluation procedures have
been established. Assessment criteria include quality of supplies, service quality, after-sales services, qualifications etc. During FY2022, the
aforementioned supplier engagement practices have been imposed on all suppliers.

The Group endeavours to support local economies and prioritizes the procurement from local and regional suppliers to lower the carbon
footprint during transportation. The Group also endeavours to engage service providers who incorporate ESG issues into their business
development and gives priority to suppliers that use environmentally preferable products and services in the selection process.

Apart from focusing on suppliers’ product and service quality, we are also devoted to promoting the positive development of the supply
chain. We are active in incorporating sustainability principles, including environmental protection, legal compliance, labour rights and anti-
corruption etc. into our supplier evaluation system, in the hope of advocating our suppliers to take up their corporate social responsibilities.
To minimize potential environmental and social risks in the supply chain, the performance of the suppliers is periodically evaluated and
monitored by the Group to ensure their compliance with relevant standards. Should their operations or product supplied fall below the agreed
standard, the cooperation may be terminated.

BHMOBEEBIZRRMETKEREERAR AakEEmAm BEAR e XEARSFURERHERERESRY - 12022
VBEE BRI HKE0FRE2HEREE  2BARMHERER -

BRSO HERREHNER  BERR £EHAaMERARSTHEARERYE RMNBHERELRESR - RACHEAHERE
REEEEEE PR EHER - REREERER  BRASHEEF  RAERARBRELFGEREF - FRENSEHERE - R
BHEZ SRRE  BES - R2022HKEFE - HMMARERNET DA HERRERER -

FERFNIFHAMEERELE T RSB RERRBERARERBRETOREN - AEETLEZESRE HekEnzAE
BARBHERORBIREE L ETEBRETELEBEMARRED LR HER -

BRTREIHERNERMRBER  RATBNESHHERNTIEER - RABBEIHERRERTE  SERERE X568  EBRE
B RESEMARBEMZEE  BREBAKENTEN EPHERBETEELSRE - REEREHERELARAERL A
B AEETEMFEMERHEHRR - BREEHTAEREREE - MUEHNELIMHRENER T IHERE  REBAEREEK
LLAtE-
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PINE CARE SILVERAGE
PR B 5

Throughout the years, Pine Care has been striving its best to maintain the highest standards of senior care services in order to uphold its
leading position in the industry in Hong Kong and promote its principle of “respecting the elderly as family” allowing every resident to enjoy
their twilight years. In the meantime, we are in stringent compliance with applicable laws and regulations and industry standards, which
include but not limited to the RCHE Code of Practice, Residential Care Home (Elderly Persons) and its subsidiary legislation, the Service
Quality, Standards issued by the Social Welfare Department, the International Society for Quality in Health Care (ISQua) standards accredited
by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology, the Fire Services Ordinance, the Dangerous Goods Ordinance and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance etc.

During FY2022, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to product
responsibility, including but not limited to Residential Care Home (Elderly Persons) Ordinance (RCH(EP)O), the Fire Services Ordinance, the
Dangerous Goods Ordinance and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong.

MRS FRBNERFLSERNLZEIERTG - UEREREBETENRGNMN - ARESDE [HEf] ORE  BEURABALE
BRF - ARHMBNZFEROEERROIMITERE - BEETEN (RZREBT) - (LEHREGD) REWBED - HEEME
BHNRBERRE  FEZFERUNEREREREBERE - CEHEND) - (EafEd) &k (EAER (LR HE) % -

R20228 B FE - ARBEW T HEEENEREREREFRBERERONER - BERINBERETRRERN (LEREH) « CF
BofEpl) - EamiEpl) R QEAER () &) -

MAINTAINING QUALITY SENIOR CARE SERVICES

HERSEERERERYE

Providing quality and caring services is considered as the cornerstone of our business. Most of our care and attention homes have already
obtained the ISO9001: 2015 Quality Management System Certificate. With regards to its requirement, we customize the Individual Care Plan
(“ICP”) for every resident. When a new resident is admitted to our care and attention homes, our nurses, social workers and physiotherapists
would evaluate his/her conditions, including but not limited to the medical history, fall risk, sensitivity, psychological condition etc., allowing
us to have a thorough understanding of the resident’s background and needs. We formulate the ICPs in a comprehensive and scientific way
according to various international and industry recognized standards to ensure all our residents’ needs are met. We would evaluate and update
each ICP every 6 months with regards to resident’s current physical and mental condition and needs.

Throughout his/her stay, a resident will receive well-rounded care and nursing services from our internal and external professionals, including
registered nurses, care workers, health workers, social workers, physiotherapists, occupational therapists, speech therapists, nutritionist,
Chinese medicine practitioners and doctors. We have implemented comprehensive quality management systems within all care and attention
homes for our employees and professionals to follow so as to maintain high quality services.

RHESEZNMUOHRBERMEBHEL - AR DREFHEBIBISO001 : 2015E BERERRE - REEENR BRIk
REFFTEFERNNEAEEAE - BEFEANER - HMSLH#EL T RYBSREMFEEAAR - BEETRIBE - BRERR
BHUE - DIEWRE - ARRMEETRESSEFE - HMSRETRANBEBEMTERITRE - AE2EMRS NI ERZOEA
HIBEE - BERBRMMA—IRE - AMIFFFSTELAREAZRHE - BIGEFAERE THERMOERRRFE -

ERAANER  HMISZHERARIMNENEREY - iFEMEL  #28 - RIES - 4T - ¥IPaE - BERAER - F:58%0 -
BEMN  PEREBESERRAREETUERRE - RACKMARKSHIEL2EMEESEERE  WEEBTMEMEXABRHSER
AR o
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To ensure our quality as well as health and safety management system has been well implemented and maintained, we set up targets for our
care and attention homes and require our employees to maintain high quality care services. Criteria of such targets include accident rate,
satisfaction rate of residents and families, number of medicine mishandling cases etc. We review the performance of each care and attention
home annually to evaluate whether they have met the targets and identify rooms for improvement. During FY2022, all care and attention
homes have met the targets.

Besides, the Group has set up the Independent Quality Assurance Committee (the “IQA Committee”) consisting of elderly residents, family
members, staff members, senior management, and independent personnel who are unconnected to Pine Care Group in any way. The
responsibility of the IQA Committee is to further enhance our level of quality by providing a fresh perspective on our operations, and offering
unbiased opinions and suggestions. Each committee member is required to conduct unscheduled visits to our operations annually and to
submit a report to the senior management with their findings and suggestions. Due to the spread of pandemic during FY2022, the inspection
was suspended. We would restart the inspection once the pandemic is alleviated.

In consideration of our high quality and comprehensive care services, we have been accredited under the Residential Aged Care
Accreditation Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology. The Association would conduct a review on our care and attention
homes to ensure they have complied with its requirements. Criteria of the review include but not limited to: overall quality management,
nutrition, service attitude, risk management, food and environmental safety, handling of medication, handling of excretion, feeding, data
management, infection control, communication and emotions of residents etc. to ensure we have implemented effective management system
to provide a safe, hygienic and comfortable environment for our residents. Moreover, representatives from the Social Welfare Department
would pay regularly visits to our care and attention homes to ensure our senior care services have meet applicable industry standards.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the disclosure of the number of sold or delivered products that should be recalled for safety and
health reasons is not applicable.

RERBMARBNERELZ2ERERERIC  RMSHEUZBRETLER  ERFETHARSERNEERS - BERREEIIMN
- -REARKBWEE ENEHHES - BHMASFETEZHARENRI - BRESERLTEFHEZUCENTT - K202 RFE
A EETBR -

Butzoh  ARBERLTRBERBEEZES ((BARBERZEE]) ZEhRERR B BT SATEERESHEHE
MEREEREYBEENEIALAANK - BERBESZZESABELALERUMBMRALELRER  WE—FPRARTRE - %
ZEeXBASFIESERSETRELS  YRAERIERARRNEEBRIME - ERMEMARE - MER 2022 M HFEE
7 BHMSERBENREMUE -

REFREZNZENEERY  HMEBEELEFRENBELERSNETINE S THRIREIETHE - BREET
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GUARANTEEING SENIOR HEALTH AND SAFETY
RERERREZE

Ensuring the health and safety of every resident is undoubtedly our core responsibility and utmost
duty in the daily operations. On top of our quality management system, we have formulated a series
of policies in terms of health and safety management, including but not limited to nutrition and dietary,
food safety and hygiene, medication, emergency handling, environmental safety etc. The following table
outlines our key measures to care for the residents:

RERROEEEZ2ERZERMNEFEENESINIERE - RERMOESEERR - &
MHIEZREREENZ2ERNEBER - BHEE T\BEB’\\Mﬁ/}B%E CRYIREMEE  BYERE
ERER  BRELEE - UTFHAR PR K E R

80

Personal care

Bh 5 R

Each care and attention home has sufficient manpower including home managers, nurses, physiotherapists,
health workers, care workers and assistants that meet the minimum requirements at all times, so as to ensure
every resident can receive personal care.

BRIk S ETARRER —ERNATFLE - EHE
VARELR P B A9 1S 88 & R

R YIEREAD  RIZE 2B MBNIES

Nutrition and
dietary
EERER

Each care and attention home would prepare its own meal plan on a quarterly basis. The meal plan is reviewed and
approved by our nutritionists to ensure it meets residents’ dietary requirements. We also adjust meal arrangement
for residents who have special dining needs, including those who suffer from diabetes, kidney diseases and high
blood pressure.

SHRESTRHTES RETCRLENEY RRFLRENEETE - ANEAEHAIAEREN
R DESERER  BRNSNESHEER -

Food safety and

Food and Environmental Hygiene Policy has been formulated to manage the personal hygiene of kitchen staff,

hygiene environmental hygiene of kitchen, purchase, storage and handling requirements of ingredients, delivery and
RY% e REE disposal of meals, and handling of cutleries to ensure food safety.
SIERMREREERR  BEFFEEINEARE  BHENRBEEE  BMIKRE @7 REE - 23K
EREE RERES  URBRRRVEZSD -
Medication A detailed medication management system has been formulated for instructing our nurses and workers on
Management storing, dispensing and disposing of medicine. Multi-way match is conducted by our employees when dispensing
By E medicine to residents to ensure it is dispensed at the right time, dose and to the right person. As some medicine
is required to be stored in refrigerator, we check its temperature from time to time to ensure it is functioning well.
We conduct safety inspection regularly to guarantee medicine is handled properly.
HIEAH AN ENER RS HERLRETRHF  REMEELEY - RMNETRBEYRSETSHRE
HEREYIRERE  HEREREEER - ARNBOEDFTLENSE R Hﬁﬁéﬂﬁ/ ERRENE
RiF - BMIMETERETENR2ER  UBRRED WL SR -
Emergency Guidelines on Emergency and Serious Incident Handling Procedures has been formulated to standardize the
handling procedures on handling emergency cases such as fire, gas leakage, flooding, poisoning, theft etc. to minimize
FE =R R the negative impact imposed on our residents.
FIEERSREEEHEERFES  FTUEHESER  WAZE  RERRE KE - 5 EBSENREL
EF - ORESRRAEAKNBETE -
Environmental Conduct environmental safety inspection in our care and attention homes on a daily basis to identify and address
safety any safety hazards. We also conduct fire drill regularly.
REZE

FAREMOEEETRELZEKE  BRNREMAL2RE - HATSEHETAERE -
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ENHANCING SAFETY MEASURES IN CARE AND ATTENTION HOMES FOR
THE SAKE OF RESIDENTS WITH FALL RISKS
BRI - BESKERBER J

We realize that residents with impaired physical mobility or cognitive impairment are at risk of falling and wandering. We pay
special attention to these residents and have implemented a series of measures to minimize such risks to guarantee their safety.

BAAR B THNRIBERAEHRNGE RS A KA S EENRR - HAFRIBEZ SRR - XHE —F5 R
RBREIREERR - REMMNZE -

Examples of measures to prevent wandering:

PRl

e Notify our staff when magnetic induction buzzer identifies high-risk
residents
BN RR B IR B3 A8 51 2 i R B B A B BV SN B

e |nstall coded locks on exits
AR LR ZEH

e Attach sensor chips on high-risk residents’ clothing
NSNSk INRT A=Y

e |nstall hidden sensors at exits
A A %2 R e 28

e |Install facial recognition anti-wandering system in upscale
care and attention homes that can sense and locate high-risk
residents’ locations and notify responsible staff
REmbt s LR E A HBI I E RS - FRGEAINLHEE SRR
RARMUE  WEMBEET

B AR A R A
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Examples of measures to prevent fall:

B LE BRI D]+ -

e FEvaluate fall risk of all residents regularly and understand their
physical conditions

FHEFT AR AR EIRRR - T BT F BEAOR

e Arrange daily exercise for relevant residents to enhance their
muscle strength and balance

ZHE B RER R SRR T

e |nstall infrared bed-exit detectors at beds of residents with higher
fall risk which can sense their motion when they leave the bed
and notify responsible staff immediately
RSk EIE R R B IRE 2R EAALIMEBER BRI - %R
TRESHRBMEEET
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MINIMIZING THE RISK OF SPREAD OF VIRUS DURING COVID-19
PR EESEERR J

iy

In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, we understand that our residents, especially those who suffer from chronic illnesses

and require frequent follow-up visits to clinics may face a higher risk of getting infected. The Group is highly concerned about the
control of the pandemic and have implemented a number of stringent measures with reference to guidelines issued by Social
Welfare Department to enhance personal and environmental hygiene in care and attention homes to minimize risk of spread of
virus:

MEERESR(FERLDNREE &Rk — FHERARMARLZEE2NRAATESERENERRR - &
SEBOMHBRSERE  TRBEEERNBELNIES] RS ERZREZERER  MREAARRRELE  ShenRsE
R E &I

e Conduct frequent sanitization
pIEEA I =
e Maintain social distancing

RIS A ERE

e Suspend all family visits according to government guidelines
RRETHES| - B A RB RS

e |nstall plastic boards at reception areas

REFFEE N BIR

e Arrange designated wheelchairs for outward medical consultation and sanitize those wheelchairs with
bleach upon return
ZHIMNBLRTHFERIETHE - WERRENZEKESHF

e Set up designated areas for residents and accompanying staff to take off protective clothing after coming
back from clinics

EoBiRRERERR  HINBLHRRREIRZEBRRRERE

e Arrange residents to conduct COVID-19 test and measure body temperature
ZHGCETHER NS EER

e Encourage residents to have meals in their rooms and avoid gatherings

SERABEREFARE  ROBE

e |nstall smartphones for residents to have video calls with their families when they are not allowed to visit
NEBREFRER A EREBERD R RE M PIURGEE

B 0 A 2%
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LISTENING AND ADOPTING OPINIONS ERERFRMEZR

Being a service-centric enterprise, we always listen to and adopt opinions from residents and their families so that we could continue to
improve our service and strive for excellence. The IQA Committee gathers representatives from residents and their families to communicate
with our management team and raise opinions in terms of our daily operations and services. Their valuable opinions are crucial for us to
understand residents’ needs and expectations. We have also established a number of channels to gather opinions from our residents,
families, employees and other parties, which includes:

ERARB AR DEE  BMARARBARGRAREZBOER  BRMAGARERERY  BaXE - LOEERBERZE
R ANRBRERERMOEEEGIELERTREEAESENRENER  AORMTHRERNTEMHE - RMIPHRLT —
FIHRBIERR B - EIFEANER 8%

e Residents’ families consultation sessions e (Case study meetings
RARBEAE A=e:

o Telephone/eman/mall e Opinion box

BiE, B, 5 BERME

e Evaluation survey e Notice board
wiHs EEURIR

* Staff Lnﬁeﬁetings  Daily communications
BEEE H®EEE

e Management evaluation meetings
ERERNEE

Any opinion or complaint collected from the above channels will be
taken seriously and timely. During FY2022, the Group did not receive
any material products and service-related complaints. In addition, we
conduct satisfaction survey each year by inviting residents and families
to rate on various aspects in terms of our senior care services. Such
aspects include employees’ attitude, accommodation, nursing services,
activities, meals etc. During FY2022, residents’ satisfaction rate reached
98%, while families’ satisfaction rate reached 97%, in which both of
them have reached our service targets.

BMe kBT REMBENEERMEF - R2022 WKFE - ALE
WEEETABEBERKBRIEHERESR - 1IN RMBFEBEREK

=
VN

RERBETREERSE S RELEEERBOBHBETT D  RIFEIRE  IF  #EERE  FY KBRS - R2022HHFE -

Br R B EES98% - MEBRIMERINED 97% - MEDTERAMIRSE B F
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PARTICIPATING IN NUTCRACKERS PUBLIC TALK
e U N CONEE 9

Pine Care Group was honoured to be invited to participate in the
Nutcrackers Public Talk organised by the Chinese University of Hong
Kong (CUHK), which focused on the impacts of the living environment on
senior health and how to improve the quality of life for the elderly.

MEREZEEREEH 2 AT BHXRBEPN/ MR DFBE - F
TR REHRERFEOZEMNMARSERENEAER -

During the talk, our Chief Executive Officer shared the living experience of
residents in Patina Wellness which is an integrated serviced apartment
for seniors. Our strategic mission is to devise and develop new strategies
and methods to promote sophistication, effectiveness and functionality in the elderly care industry for the wellness of the elderly, as well as
the well-being of the healthcare professional and staff. We are highly committed in our above initiatives and share the value of the Nutcrackers
team which focuses on the research and development of design strategies to enhance the living standards, health and happiness of Hong
Kong’s burgeoning elderly community. We appreciate the valuable opportunity to exchange views during the Talk with the Nutcrackers team
and the professionals from medical, social care and property management, which enabled us to better understand the elderly’s perspectives
and the elderly community, and provided us with insights on designing our future elderly services to meet the unique challenges, opportunities
and goals of the ever-changing elderly care environment.

R BANTREED ZHEERBARECTTHRFETNLERE - RAOIOEGIDIHERRERIDENESREERTEEE X
KRINEENE - UREBURKE  TEEXBEABRNEXENPES - M2 02T EEED - B PREIRR % HEINHEE
BEASRTT B AN EBZFHROEFEER  RREFFEE - BM T SBGLEERSEREL MABELER  LelERYEE
ENEEADBRRN  ARMETHREENERHREFLE  TRBERMARHERNEERBREA THE O REEERENER
B HOBEER

PROTECTING PRIVACY {REEFL[E

The daily operations of our care and attention homes involve a large amount of privacy data of the residents, such as their names, phone
numbers, addresses, identity card numbers, photos, medical record, employment history etc. We understand that we need to take up our
responsibility to ensure the privacy of such data and prevent data leakage to protect our residents. We strictly prohibit the employees from
disclosing any of residents’ personal data and other confidential information to third parties without prior consent. We have set up the
Residents’ Personal Privacy and Dignity Policy, guaranteeing that we would collect and handle their personal data in a legal and fair way. For
hardcopy document recording residents’ personal data, we put them in locked cabinets with key only kept by responsible personnel and
home manager. As for soft-copy document, we have set password and access right limit in the computers.

In terms of advertising and promotion, we may use photos and videos starring our residents for promotional purpose. In order to safeguard
residents’ rights, we can use such materials only if they agree and sign the consent form.

Due to our business nature, intellectual property is not considered as a material issue of the Group. Product labelling is also not applicable to
the Group.

Kt ABEES S RASRANEBALER - FEMS  BF 1 FOFERE B KRE - ERLES - RAPERMA
BERERILENNEML  HHMAHEEERRARELMNER - HMABRLEETERERENBRATAE=TEERRNEABEHK
Hib 2B - RPICRIRAEARLRERERBER - BERMRAGUAZEMA T RREMEEZM PN EAER - BAESHERN
BEREA BRI RN XX T - A AHBAHE T RREERE - TERHEFROIHREFNERM L RE T M RER -
HEBEELEE  RMSERERAEANRA RZAEEEZA - BMASEEARERZEZRAEER T ER - AREMPIHFE -

ERRFNEBITEE - MBRERAIFAEENEANFE  MERSHRITNERANRAEE -

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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PINE CARE SMART
B ik

Senior care industry in Hong Kong has long been a traditional industry that highly relies on physical labour. As a leader in the industry, Pine
Care Group strives its best to promote the development of the industry and has devoted abundant resources into revolution and innovation
by developing and introducing high-tech systems to improve our service quality as well as management on residents’ health and safety to
enhance our service quality. In the foreseeable future, it is envisioned that more advanced technology gerontechnology will be introduced to
the industry, and it is our mission to promote the concept of “Senior Care with Technology”, leading the industry to the age of intelligence.

EETEREBB T ERHERIMEEEHNNTE  BERTENRERE  REKEZKERGBESTERAERE - RT AP ERK
ERAF - HBEASIAZESHEZRS  BLhkaRBER  ARNERARENZ2ER @ BRMNREEZSATERTT - #MIE
HARARELZTERGEIBRABTRCTE  BURMAEANER [BaEE ] Wl BREETEBREEIFER -

ENCOMPASS INTELLIGENT SYSTEM ENCOMPASS Ef:Z %

Pine Care Group has developed the Encompass Intelligent System
(“Encompass”), which records residents’ data, nursing details, check-ups,
drug records and social worker follow-up cases. Staff in different
departments can access and make use of the elderly residents’ past and
present records and assessments to devise the most appropriate care plan
for them. In the event of an emergency, a detailed health report of the
elderly residents can also be generated to medical staff to provide the most
suitable treatment scheme. Apart from that, the system can also largely
reduce paper consumption which helps to reduce waste at source.

Encompass enables monitoring of each unique caregiving journey with our
individual care plans that are responsive to specific needs and preferences
of our senior residents. It serves as the Group’s reliable nursing care and
operating system since its first launch in early 2000.

Tt i £ SR B AT % Encompass & B 2 5% ([ Encompass |) » Refe R ME R - EIEFHIE - B - Wi H TREEZRS - TR
STAMARERBERRKLERTE - RERHIERABENERTE  EEXBRATTAIRABEASRARERANFRERR
HIGEITRGEIRAE © BRULIASN - REINAKIR A EFREAR R - (RSB -

Encompass:ZHMESEE —E _NEERR FTERERART BEERERAMNERNZZ REL o 82020 F P AR AL
Encompass —E=AEE TN ER KEERS -

DIGITAL CARING CHART OF ACTIVITIES OF DAILY LIVING #i§{t B B RBE4REER
The Group is committed to taking care of its residents and is devoted to every detail.
To complement Encompass, the Group develops the Digital Caring Chart of Activities
of Daily Living which outlines the daily needs of each resident, as well as assuring
they are provided with adequate personal hygiene care, assistive equipment, diet

B HREBREEEER nu@

. 0330711

N W )
care, excretory function care, infection control and special care. 1L #‘;E e 4 Il . e
= & pQ

The digital caring chart is placed at residents’ bedsides, allowing quick access to
information for the staff so as to provide intense and elderly-oriented nursing care fol @
service.

Richer colour classification and clearer font with updated graphic design in line with ) | A
current healthcare facilities and services are used to make it visually easier for |

caregivers to read to enhance efficiency. Stand-alone file can be stored for inspection Eﬁm
individually and it is easier to operate in which our caregivers can devote more time in :
taking care of each of our senior residents.

REEFZTHTERER ZAE  ITESEME - AEEMEHIS(CAERELTEIER - {FR Encompass I 7T BRI A
HEEEME  BETOBRERABAGLE - "R IRHEDRE  BREREANER - BORANIDEDE - RER KR RRER B
R RIRRR -

AYBCHFREEEERREENEAKE - BETAAERERER - EMRHARE RANEE EE R -

FEENEESH  EEMNTEREMNEARAETER KeBpEERELRYE EREEZERSME LM RE - #f
B RFREENEREEESR  TERZIRE  RUEREETRHRESRERBESMRERK

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022



L

.\ Q@ 3,
S N ;}i@
DIGITAL CATERING E&efz R 2 Hf

The Group has designed an online order form to facilitate individualised catering and daily refreshment for the senior residents. Our residents
can take their time to select their refreshment online with ease every day. Additionally, this move also reduces the amount of paper required
as compared to traditional order forms.

AEBDRARERKRFRBELTBERS  REAACHRR - ERATSREREM LBERE - WBTRERFTBRBEARIMAR -

CARING ROBOT B3 Z #1% A

Considering residents' difficulties of being confined indoors because of the pandemic without family visiting, the Group put into service caring
robot (the "Robot") to facilitate virtual visits between residents and their families. The Robot also takes up day-care duties for our staff by
following and assisting them during patrolling. Controlled by the centralized Encompass, patrolling can also be conducted following a pre-
determined schedule, allowing more frequent check-ups on our residents. Using the artificial intelligence and automatic dialogue system, the
Robot is also capable of automatically playing short videos and music, as well as intelligently responding and joking to our residents.

BIET  RARRER - REARARE - RAEBEAORE - FUBEEERA (BRA DS RARE ARG S BFREER AR
5o MWMAIRBE R 1 8) 8 TR S - BB TH#E1T R EIRAE TIE - £/ R Encompass #H T - B TAZMIRELERHRETHR - %
TREE MR - BRATEERBBYFERL - MWMATA BSEMER RE% - WREHERREE - #KK -

FACIAL RECOGNITION ANTI-WANDERING SYSTEM T2 % 5lIBh 2 E 2 462
We have introduced an intelligent anti-wandering system which utilizes high
quality facial recognition technology, and CCTV system to monitor all the
entrances and exits of our care and attention homes, such that our
caregivers could easily locate these residents and take immediate actions to
assist them. This system is capable of avoiding residents from wandering
and causing accidents to ease their families’ worries.

BFEIAT BN BEERS  MARKMERMIR  EEMAKERR
B BEREESEAHARD  BEEESRTRZIEERENGE - RAEER
BEENTHHSES - ZARAARELREBEERMBELEI  EX
BEZL

INFRARED BED-EXIT DETECTORS & A& AL /MG B PR {8 8] 25
In order to better monitor the physical condition of its elderly residents, Pine
Care Group has installed a wide-angle infrared bed-exit detector next to each
bed. The detectors observes the activity, position and temperature of the
resident and triggers an alarm if an abnormality is detected; allowing the
caregiver to provide quicker support and immediate assistance.

REABERRERAN S BN - MEEZEE D ERBREEALI
ARBERIRRIZS - BRSAHRARE S RBNED LUBEMAE  AERER
FEERTR  EEABEREREREHAF ) o

MOTION SENSORS E)AE = FERS

To ensure the safety of residents when using the bathroom alone, Pine Care Group has installed motion sensors in the bathroom of some
care and attention homes. In case of an elderly losing consciousness when bathing, the sensor will immediately notify the caregiver to allow
them act faster and provide timely support.

RERREBEERAZERNZE  MEEZRESINENESNAENL KB ERES - WREXBRRARENE - BRSNS
FHBAEIR S @ FOMERETHL RERAG -
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PINE CARE GREEN
AR Bt A £

Pine Care Group is dedicated to pursuing a sustainable future, in the hope of bringing a greener and better environment for our next generations.
Due to our business nature, we do not have material impact on the environment and natural resources, nor material emissions. Nevertheless,
we are highly concerned about the emissions and use of resources in our daily operations, and have formulated a series of environmental
policies and measures, guiding the employees in our care and attention homes to implement environmental protection measures at all times
and striving for minimizing the carbon emissions of the Group.

During FY2022, we were not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to environmental protection,
including but not limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354), the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 354C)
and the Waste Disposal (Clinical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 3540) of Hong Kong.

MEREZEERNEBRAFEZRORN  HEAT - RERERE EXFORE - ERBRMANEBIELD  RAHFERRERABR
WREBARFE - TOLBEARBER - A8t - AN+ BIAE2EMEENBIRNERBRBR - X HIERREERBEER - 18
BXEEETEIRAZERREWR  BRARBNRIEAREBNHRIEN -

M2022 M MEFE - HAL A ABERFABEZRELAVDIEREMNEANERTA  AREREABEREINRINEMEEGID(F
BEMNE364E) (EMRE (LREY) (—R)RONEBENFE354CE) R(BEMERE (BRED) (—R)BRID(FEEENEIB40E) -

WASTE MANAGEMENT REEEYEIE

Hazardous Waste §EEEY)]

The hazardous wastes generated by each care and attention home of the Group in daily operations were mainly medical waste and chemical
waste. We have formulated guidelines for handling waste, guiding employees in care and attention homes to properly separate, store and
handle waste to avoid improperly handled waste imposing adverse impact on the environment. We have appointed chemical and medical
waste recycler to collect and handle such waste. For chemical waste such as drug waste, we also appoint qualified waste disposal and
recycling companies to handle such waste. If any infectious waste is generated, we would also handle it properly and immediately.

EREREREESELBRREDNCEENSEETERY - R EERMRERES - HEREMEZENE REVREERY
NpEEWENEREMERREXTNEE - RAIZTARATNCEREREMESHREREIZCBREREY - HREREY S
BEY BT EEZRAERNENZEERDRATREZSREEY - WETSERLNEY - RSN RZZHEOk -

Non-hazardous Waste fEZEEEY)

The non-hazardous generated by the Group in daily operations were mainly general refuse such as food waste and paper waste. Committed
to minimizing waste, the Group has set a target to reduce its intensity of non-hazardous waste generated by the year ended 31 March 2027
(“FY2027”), using FY2022 as the baseline year. To achieve this target, we strive to reduce waste at source. Since our care and attention homes
purchase a large amount of ingredients for meal preparation on a daily basis, responsible staff adjust the purchase amount in view of residents’
eating habits and portions to avoid wastage. We also encourage our staff to use reusable cutleries to reduce food packaging. In addition, due to
our business nature, we consume a large amount of paper in our daily operations. Therefore, we develop and adopt the Encompass Operation
System to record residents’ information such as medical records, nursing plans, living habits, emergency reports etc. Such practice has largely
reduced the reliance on paper consumption.

Apart from waste reduction at source, the Group emphasizes on relieving the burden on the landfill through waste separation and recycling.
Therefore, we have placed recycling bins in the care and attention homes to separate waste diapers from other refuse. From the year ending 31
March 2023 (“FY2023”) onwards, the Group will also enhance waste reduction and recycling promotion by posting posters or other promotional
materials at prominent places of the care and attention homes every year.

AEERREEELANBETREENIZRBHIERE—REY - AREHNRERPREY - DRI ER 20220 FE REESF -
REE202753A31HIEFE ( [2027THBRFE] ) FIRPBEEREMEE - REKBR - BOBORERE - ARREHREAZR
MENSHEMTE  HRETSREREANKRREBENODERABRRYRBNE - NREKRE - AT REE TEAAERBANE SRS
BERYEE - Mo ERBRMANEHUEE - RAISERELETHREAEMRRE - Bt - HAIETE RRMENcompassE 8 F ALk K E
¥ iR - EIRETE - AREE  BERREHEES o IWEAORRER PSR RAMKIE -

BT WIRSERAESD - AEREBNBEREY O BREU R EHEREEREYE - Fit - AR EREQRERERKR DR - 5&
F2028343A31ALEFE ( [2023UBFE] ) - AEEFEFREEERUERMERIEMSER - MBS EREDIK -
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The waste disposal performance of the Group is outlined below:
REBRERMBEREBIENT -

Unit FY2022 FY2021

B 20228 U B 2021 BTN EE
Non-hazardous waste EZEEEEY)
Paper tonnes 3.22 N/A
#oR i TiEA
Other general refuse tonnes 7.65 7.53
L —RREED I
Total non-hazardous waste generated tonnes 10.87 7.53
EENBERENAE W
Intensity of non-hazardous waste generated tonnes/occupied 0.009 0.007
EENEEREYZE RCHE places

B, B AEREREN
Hazardous waste 5= EEY)
Medical waste tonnes 0.20 N/A
BRED i A iE A
Chemical waste tonnes 1.37 N/A
{L2EEY i i A
Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 1.57 1.28
EENEEERENEER ]
Intensity of hazardous waste tonnes/occupied 0.001 0.001
EENEEBRENEE RCHE places

Wi, BAEREREN

Note 1: Due to optimization of the data collection system in FY2022, environmental KPI data for Patina Wellness service apartments has been collected and included. Hence, the relevant
data between FY2022 and FY2021 cannot be directly compared.

Note 2: During FY2022, the Group had a total of 1,225 (FY2021: 1,049) occupied residential care homes for the elderly (“‘RCHE”) places. This data is used for calculating other intensity data.
Note 3: Due to optimization of the data collection system in FY2022, figures for paper, medical waste and chemical waste have been disclosed from FY2022 onwards.
Note 4: Figure of the intensity of non-hazardous waste generated in FY2021 is restated.

HiiE1 o BIR202281 B F R BHEBIEIE F AT - BE RMA R B IR AL THRZRBRITIREIE - Bt - 202281 B R 202181 B F B HEAZIIE TEE BRI -
Biit2 : R202281FIZ - AEB#E1,225 (20218THFZ < 1,049) ABARELZEREEL - HRABBEARG EAMEEZEEY -

HI7£3 : FR202281 B F R BHEBIEUE Z A - 520228 B F R REBBRATR ~ BB RALBEEY1EREIE -

Hiita : R202181 B FBPTEE A BEEEYZEYIFE TES -

3 A |
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Sewage Discharges 357k #E

Due to our business nature, we do not consume a significant volume of water, therefore our business activities did not generate a material
portion of discharge into water. As the sewage discharged by the Group is discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network, the amount
of sewage discharge is considered as the water consumed. The amount of water consumed and corresponding water-saving initiatives will
be described in the section headed “Water Management”.

ERHMOEBEE - ROLBERRNEKRER - BB MOEREEWEEE XBKIEN - ARAEEFRNTKRATBITKES
TKBERERARRFOKE o FKE RBRE KRR [ FKEE ] —ffd o

ENERGY, AIR AND GHG EMISSIONS
BER ~ BESRNORE SR HEI

The energy consumption, air and GHG emissions of the Group can mainly be attributed to the purchase electricity and town gas used for
supporting the operations of our care and attention homes, as well as liquified petroleum gas (“LPG”) consumed by our company vehicle.
The relevant data in FY2022 and FY2021 are outlined below:

AEBENGFERE  BEROBEREBFMRE X FHs 2 BRNINEENLER  ARAFAEMMBERREA MR (RICARERE]) - 2022
B IR [E DA K: 2021 BA TR e AERE BURIA T

Unit FY2022 FY2021
By 202281 L E 20218 HLEE
Air emissions B R
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 3.81 3.25
Ay Fr
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.01 0.02
=kl Fr
Particulate matters (PM) kg 0.09 -
SRFFERL Fr
GHG emissions ;&% 588 HE ik
Direct emissions (Scope 1) tonnes COe 58.26 43.26
B (EE) W — S LIRE 8
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) tonnes CO,e 2,466.48 2,627.93
BER A AR (&E 2) WS LIRE 2
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tonnes CO.e 2,524.73 2,671.19
BEEREHN (BE1KR2) W _EthEE
Intensity of GHG emissions tonnes CO. e/ 2.06 2.55

BERBHEREE

occupied RCHE places
W_EthREE
EAELREREN
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Unit FY2022 FY2021
B 20228 20218 E
Energy consumption B5RE 3
Liquified Petroleum Gas ("LPG") MWh 88.09 N/A
RIE AR JKFL I A
Towngas MWh 197.50 225.92
R JKEL B
Direct energy consumption MWh 285.59 225.92
BEERERUEFE JKE B
Purchased electricity MWh 6,167.88 6,615.37
SNEE I FL B
Indirect energy consumption MWh 6,167.88 6,615.37
BIEREIREE JKEL B
Total energy consumption MWh 6,453.47 6,841.29
HBETREE JK EL B
Intensity of energy consumption MWh/occupied 5.27 6.52
BERERERE RCHE places
KERBAEREREN

Note 1: Due to optimization of the data collection system in FY2022, environmental KPI data for Patina Wellness service apartments are now collected and included. Hence, the relevant data
in between FY2021 and FY2022 cannot be directly compared.

Note 2: GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report 2014 (AR5), the "ESG Report 2021”
published by the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, the “Sustainability Report 2021” published by the CLP Holdings Limited and the “Sustainability Report 2021” published
by the HK Electric Investments.

Note 3: Due to the optimization of data collection system in FY2022, the air emissions, GHG emissions, energy consumption data for the Company’s vehicle has been collected and disclosed
from FY2022 onwards.

Note 4: Due to the revision of the calculation method, there may be some discrepancies between the data reported and those stated in our ESG Report 2021.

Bt HR202281 B4 B B E BRI S KA - B MR RAA BT R EFIRE (T CHVIR B RS IEIET AN < Bt - 2021812 R 202281 B F R FERIZIR TREE IR LB »

Htit2 : JRERBUMEBIZR_ SR E B 25 - WABFFETRR M RERHTR Y RAIGEERTIHEFSTEY OREREREZETE  PESEREIELE)  BHIZE
B9 (L EEIRSE « (@ REVRIRE — W= - IRFERAEAIEIREIRIGS|) - 20144FIPCCE B IRFHE &) (IR BREED (ARS) - BEFERTHR A AIFIE (R
5B REARE2021)  PEBERAAITIEY (2021 JHEZREE) REBENREFRAD AITIEE (2021 F [ #5EERBE) -

B33 : FR202281 B4 B B E BRI 5L KA+ B 202281 B F [EAENSE RFFEA L A S HIRERPEL ~ B EREBIII - BEFHFEZIE -

Hizta - BFMEETAHE T % - Bk a9 2K AT AEBI20216F IR Y% ~ # & R EVRIRE AT T -

O A A A T
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In order to promote efficient use of energy and minimize emissions in the Group’s operations, the Group has set targets to reduce intensities
of electricity consumption and GHG emissions by FY2027, using FY2022 as the baseline year. To achieve these targets, the Group strives to
optimize the use of energy in order to reduce our GHG emissions and thus our carbon footprint. As a result, we have implemented a series of
energy optimization measures in our care and attention homes to promote the concept of energy reduction.

RICEREREARELFRERIDAEELEMELNH N AEECFTLAR 2022 HFEREEF - 102027 FEHFE A
BENERMOBEEREBHINEE - REKART  AEEHEANZAER - WRAEEREBYHNIEE it - RAREHERS - RkE
BT RIERE(LHEE -

e Require staff to turn on air-conditioning only if the room temperature reaches 25 degrees or above and turn off the air-conditioning at night
and when residents leave the area
Esk B TREES25F KA R A FRUS RAEM RS b A Bt 2 BERERLS 2R

e Clean the air-conditioners regularly to optimize its performance to enhance energy efficiency

TERERSREM - BREEFRSIR - B R

e Prioritize to purchase energy-saving electrical appliances
BREBEEER

e Prefer the use of LED lights

2553 FALEDAR A

e Advocate our staff to turn off the lights during afternoon nap time
12188 T1r THER: I AN AR AR

e Place notices in the care and attention homes to remind our staff to turn off electricity appliances and conserve energy

WIRERIET - 278 THEMERE - S8R

Moreover, we have installed disinfection and deodorization machines and air disinfection machines, as well as encourage planting potted
plants in care and attention homes to improve air quality. From FY2023 onwards, the Group will also enhance carbon reduction and energy
conservation promotion by posting posters or other promotional materials at prominent places of the care and attention homes every year.

SN BMTMERERE T SEESHREBNE B - WHEEERH - URAZREE - 82023 WRFER - REBMTFNEE
BRUERWEREEMSEY) - AR EEETRLRAR
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PARTICIPATION IN CLP ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT UPGRADE SCHEME
SRPEMRERETT RS

During FY2022, we have participated in Electrical Equipment
Upgrade Scheme organized by China Light and Power Co.,
Ltd. (CLP). The scheme provides subsidies to commercial and
industrial customers to upgrade their electrical equipment to
more energy-efficient models, in the hope of optimizing the use of
energy in a large extent.

R2022MRFEE » RFIZETHESERENRA (FE) B
IREVERRERR T ARET B - ST B ARMER TERPIRITER) - HE
SR BRI RREILER - BRUERARREFCERER -

EMBRACING GREEN DIET
BEZBHER

Pine Care Group is dedicated to advocating a sustainable, healthy and mindful lifestyle
echoes with Green Monday’s vision on sustainable development. This thus leads to
partnership between the two to launch various green projects in the hope of promoting
green living in our care and attention homes. To practice low carbon diet and share
the benefits of vegetarianism with our residents and staff, we developed the advocacy
campaign known as “Green Monday” as well as organized vegetarian cooking classes,
vegetarian tea gatherings, green pantry events etc. The partnership program has reached
and benefited more than 1,000 residents and employees.

FABRTE £ 52 B2 fE Green Monday A B RS  MNEE
AHFE BEMESHEZRAR - Bt - €56 EH# LS ELE
BHE  RREHEDEEETE RETEBRKRRARAKRE
IHZERMMTE ZMBITEHA K18 URBEHERER
JARE  ERAGREERESKEEDSE - & 1EaTEIERE 1,000
LR RE I X HMRE -
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WATER MANAGEMENT FXE®E

The Group consumes domestic water supplied by local supplier to support care and attention homes’ daily operations. We did not encounter
any problem in terms of water sourcing. Due to our business nature, water consumption is not considered as a material issue. Nevertheless, we
are still alert about our daily water consumption and strive to introduce appropriate measure to save water. During FY2022, we have set a target
to reduce its intensity of water consumption by FY2027, using FY2022 as the baseline year. To achieve this target, we have installed automatic
faucets and throttles to minimize wastage of water. From FY2023 onwards, the Group will also enhance water conservation promotion by
posting posters or other promotional materials at prominent places of the care and attention homes every year.

The water consumption data during FY2022 and FY2021 are detailed as below:

AEEGERBBHERRENEERAKEREEFEEZA - RPERKEERA KR LY EBRERRERE - ERRMANEBLEE - B
Kﬁﬁﬁ%ik%%'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%*'ﬁﬁﬁ?mé@%ﬁ%%%m°%m2ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ'ﬁﬁaﬁiﬁﬁ’Mmm
MHRFEREREF 12027 WHFERRPFKEE - REXAR  RACTEEPKEBNHREAZTERIRIORE - 520237
BEERE  AEESFRARESERVERMERIEMEEDE - LIRHESE LMK -

2022 BB [E LA K 2021 BT R [ M /KB FEEUR AT -

Unit FY2022 FY2021

B 20228 B 2021 E
Total water consumption m? 55,826.00 53,185.76
miEkE SR
Intensity of water consumption m3/occupied 45.57 50.70
FEKREE RCHE places

YFEKIBAERERBNL

Note 1: Due to optimization of the data collection system in FY2022, environmental KPI data for Patina Wellness service apartments are now included in the environmental KPI data in FY2021.
Hence, the relevant data in both years cannot be directly compared. We would adopt a more comprehensive data collection system in future years to ensure the consistency of data
disclosed.

Biat1 : HiR202201 B F R B E BUIFIKE R4 BRI T TR IR B SR AAIENF BRI BEMA 2021 F R HVIR R RISRAE I B AR 2 - ElE - MfEFZIERTEE T RE B
B o BIFHEHKFIRNE 2 EAIBAIRIEFA - BERBEFFEE B -

CLIMATE CHANGE RISKS FR{®%#t &k

To echo the growing worldwide concern on climate change, the Group is committed to identifying, managing and disclosing material climate-
related risks. Therefore, the Group has integrated climate-related risks into the Group’s enterprise risk management (“ERM”) system. During
FY2022, the Group underwent a risk assessment exercise in examining and evaluating its climate-related risks with regards to the
recommendations in the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”). With reference to TCFD’s recommendations and
based on the latest climate policies and market changes related to the regions and industries where it operates during FY2022, the following
physical and transition risks were identified, and potential countermeasures were proposed and studied.

2IBEHEIREE L ERRIY  AEBBAOME c BELRFEESARKEABRRE - At AEEBREABERRALAEENLE

EREBEZRS - R 2022 ERFE - AEEBETRBIE - RIBRIZEBYEBETENMINEZRS LT EREEEER - RIERIER
B ELE MANEE R AN EB L EREIE RITER 2022 BEEN TN BERERTISEE  BRARBRTHERRE
AR WEBERFRAITREETE -
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PHYSICAL RISKS E&

The Group is aware of various operational risks brought about by climate change, including extreme weather, such as high temperature,
heavy rain, storms, etc., as well as problems that may be caused by extreme weather, such as rising material prices and supply chain
disruptions. We particularly pay special attention to the safety of our employees by formulating relevant contingency plan. In the event of
abnormal weather, we will follow specific measures in the daily operations to ensure that everyone can work in a safe and healthy
environment.

As extreme heat may affect the health condition of our elderly residents, we will continue to monitor weather changes in order to prevent
them from suffering heatstroke. Meanwhile, the Group provides climate change-related nursing training courses and to staff to ensure they
know how to dress the elderly in response to weather changes to avoid over-cooling or over-heating. We will also adjust the air-conditioning
system’s output capacity based on the weather to maintain a comfortable temperature in our care and attention homes.

AEEZIEIREZCHERNSELER R  BRESE  2W  FRFEHREARRG KR A EHROEE - Dl EHER LR R4t
fEsEpl - HPIAEIERTZE  CHEMABBESE - HRRMREE - HABRAESEPHTHEEE BRE2BETAERRE
REMRFTE -

HREERAR R ERERROEERR  ROSSEERRRE  HiEERTZE - AR - AEERE TRERKRZ(CIEEEZEIIR
B ERETHANMEERRREERRAFR BB IBER - BATERERTARSREZRBLE  RNREASTFERE -

TRANSITION RISKS #& & 7| k&

Compliance with new or existing laws and regulations could impact the Group’s operations. In particular, as the urgency for policy makers to
transition to a low-carbon economy heightens, the Group might be exposed to higher risks of claims and lawsuits regarding stricter climate-
related laws and regulations. In response to emerging expectations and regulations around businesses managing corporate carbon footprint,
the Group has implemented different energy-saving and GHG reduction initiatives, and set relevant target to reduce its carbon footprint. The
Group also regularly monitors existing and emerging trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate change and be prepared to alert the
management where necessary to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines and reputational risks due to delayed response.

Looking forward, the Group will continuously incorporate sustainability and industry best practices in its business operations to keep up with
increasingly stringent government regulations and the rising stakeholders’ interest in sustainability.

BT SRRAER IR EAEEZE - LABRKHEESYFEEESEHREHE - AEERARRAER AR EBE M EER
HRRERFROERAERES - AEREBAEECERBHNNHERRY - AEECEITRIRBHLIR SRR E R 5 e I
EBBRARAIREE - REE T ERERRIEECARERE LA EBE - MRRARD  WEER VR RRE R E B 2R REEE
MmERIL A « TERE R REERR -

RERK  FAEEHEERATKEFRITERERANEBLE S - ETHBEROBURRIIK B B0 &SR HEFROEE -

B 0 A 2%
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PINE CARE CARING
AR B B 2%

Pine Care has always been a caring company and upheld the principle of “people-oriented” in the first place of our operations. We pay special
attention to providing a warm and supportive work atmosphere, together with rewarding remunerations and benefits, adequate health and
safety measures and career development opportunities to our employees. Besides, we are also dedicated to contributing to the community
as a gratitude of their long-term support to the Group. We have initiated various community programs throughout the years, gathering our
resources and manpower to support the needy in society.

During FY2022, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to employment,
occupational health and safety as well as labor standards, including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) of Hong Kong.

ERBEDE MR —ARS [AARK] MIEREE - RMARFRZLOREBENCEE - AETREBSINFHHES - RANEZRZR
ERBMBEZRES < b BRATBNEELE  AEHOPAERERRATNRNIS - ZMIZFRERZELRED - HBR
MERMANEBHE EEREMA -

R202MBEE - AEFRTTNBFEEMERERER BERFEEL2URERRERBDEZRANNER  SEETEREE(E
B 1M1 K 5 485 B CGABIIEATEEFHBIESI) -

EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW ET#E

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of 504 employees in 11 senior care and attention homes in which 433 of them are full-time
employees and 71 of them are part-time employees. The compositions of employees by gender, age group and employee category are as
follow:

BZE2022F3A31H  AEENET MRRE/RE04LET - HF43BBAREBET  TMARFRE T - BTRMA - FRRAEMNK
ERERT

Composition by gender &4 5l 2

Total workforce Female Male

@@@ BETAH @ g3 @ Bt
(FY2021: 466) (FY2021: 381) (FY2021: 85)
(2021 Bt B 5 = : 466) (2021 Bf B FE: 381) (2021 BABL & fEE : 85)

Composition by age group 12 FE#2 f

et S R Gy A e
&e6e222 00199 0083

(FY2021: 215) (FY2021: 177) (FY2021: 74)
(2021 Bf L E = 215) (2021 BA BUEE : 177) (2021 B UF EE : 74)
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Composition by employee category Z{E{E3E 52 #

Operation staff Corporate staff
(FY2021: 454) (FY2021: 12)
(2021 B BUF 1 454) (2021 B F E: 12)
Composition by geographical region Zith & 7 #
Hong Kong 5 O 4
BB
(FY2021: 466)
(2021 B U 5F £ : 466)
The turnover rate by gender, age group and employee category are as follow:
BRI FERAERREBENESHE TRAERMT ¢
OveraII turnover rate
**40.3%
. O
(FY2021: 44.6%)
(2021 B U AF /E : 44.6%)
Turnover rate by gender #1458 Tif k=
Female Male
@ pog3 @ Y3
39.8% 42 . 7%
(FY2021: 42.8%) (FY2021: 52.9%)
(2021 B B : 42.8%) (2021 Bf B [E : 52.9%)
Turnover rate by age group ZFE AR S TiREAE
. Aged 50 above
‘ 5055
5 30.6%
(FY2021: 26.1%)
(2021 BA B & : 26.1%)
Aged 31 to 50 Aged 30 or below
) sizsom ) somaEMT
00 39.7% 0067.5%
(FY2021: 49.2%) (FY2021: 87.8%)
(2021 B U : 49.2%) (2021 B B E & : 87.8%)
M EEEEARLAE
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Turnover rate by employee category Z{ERE R & T K=

Operation staff Corporate staff
@F % LEST (e 8T
(FY2021 45.8%) (FY2021 1.0%)

(2021 B BUE FE : 45.8%) (2021 B U E : 1.0%)

Turnover rate by geographical region &b & & T 7 %k =

w0 40.3%

(FY2021: 44.6%)
(2021 BA L E /& : 44.6%)

Note 1: The turnover rate is calculated by dividing the number of employees leaving employment during FY2022 by the number of existing employees at the end of FY2022.
Note 2: The turnover rate by category is calculated by dividing the number of employees in the specified category leaving employment during FY2022 by the number of existing employees
in the specific category at the end of FY2022.

fifat1 « B Lk F 202281 B /R ot R T 20 B Br 20220 M F R AR BB R TH A5 ©
a2 « MFIR Tk F LG EMR 20220 B[R 2R 5 IBE I R T 24 B B LA 202281 M F R AR ZMFIRBER THEFE »
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RESPECTING EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS

BEESTHER

Being an equal opportunity employer, we always uphold the principle of equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination during each human

resources-related processes, including but not limited to recruitment, promotion, training and determination of remuneration and benefits. The

Group would recruit talents mainly through internal transfer, recruitment advertisements, Labour Department and Employees Retraining Board.

We welcome all suitable candidates to join our family regardless their gender, age, family status or disability etc. We would rather consider

their knowledge, skills, abilities and other work-related factors. We do not allow any forms of workplace discrimination. If any discrimination or

harassment is identified against our employees or even residents, we would investigate into and follow up with the case seriously. Confirmed
cases will be followed by disciplinary action including reporting to police and/or termination of employment contract.

We would provide employees with competitive remuneration packages as a gratitude to their hard work. Their salaries are determined by their
professional qualifications, experiences, work performance, service years, job positions and market level. Apart from basic salaries, they are
also entitled with discretionary bonuses. The management will review employees’ remunerations to ensure they are competitive enough. In
addition, we also offer our employees with a number of welfare and benefits:

ERFERERT  RAFARIBFERS  ZTEEREBEENRAETHEANERBELE  2FEENRNEE - &7 - H3 5k
ﬂ&%ﬁ@hﬂ&%&a%‘  ARBETZRFBANAL  HEES SIRIMMEEFEIRBEAT - HMABUEAEAENAT MARP - TwmEE

ﬁDA&EiJ‘ﬂEﬁiIf’HEFaE!’\J%ﬁH% o TAIIE N8 1L —PIRIH AR - Nk
BITRERD  BERER/RELEREL -

Rl CREMRREBERAE - BRAIRGEEEME - =IT - &
fﬁﬁfﬂﬁjﬁﬁﬁIEinEEE’\JﬁﬁE}Z&E CHRMEREREWRE - WERER

BASBETRHEAZREF DOHIERBME TENLNE®R - B THMBOMNEXER & TERE  F8  BUETSKEM

BE o BR T EAFE - RAOITEWMARIBLA - ERES 0 8 THMEIZIAERAZEF N - tbod - BAITRAE TRE—ZFIWEHN
Holidays and Leaves {RA J
=% 5o
[mﬁ] 0 SN
>\:\ W (o
Rest Day Statutory and Annual Leave Marriage Leave

N Public Holidays R HE 3
ETE M AR ER

9

D

e

Maternal/ Work Injury Jury Compassionate
Paternal Leave Leave Leave Leave
ER/HFER TERKR FEEE R B By

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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Basic Benefits E24x1F38 J
+ @ %
Mandatory Insurance On-duty Meals
Provident Fund REz BEEER
BEE
Awards and Other Welfare 3% & H {87! J
Staff Rewards Staff Support
BTH4% Program
B T&RBETE

Apart from the above benefits and welfare, we are also highly concerned about employees’ sense of belonging and affiliation. As a result,
we have adopted different platforms, including meetings, suggestion box, hotline, email, staff performance appraisals and notice boards to
communicate with and collect opinions from employees so that we could improve our labour practices and strive for excellence. We also
organize various employee activities from time to time to gather our employees together. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, we suspended
such activities as we put employees’ health and safety as our first priority.

BTAENFEREN  RATTOEREINRBERMBE - Hit - RMSEBTRAYE BREER BEAM 2R €V BIH
MEZEBARERE TERYREMMANER  ERASURERFBER - THEY - RATETEHRENZER TS -
FE-E - EXMEMARE RRREIBRERLZE  RMEEERETEY -
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING

BEEIRRE

Employees’ wellbeing is always of paramount importance for us. The Group is in strict compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong and other applicable laws and regulations to provide adequate occupational health and safety measures as well as
mental support to ensure employees’ physical and mental wellbeing.

During FY2022, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to occupational health
and safety, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The Group has established a sound Occupational Health and Safety Committee (the “OHS Committee”) and established the Code of Occupational
Health and Safety, as well as a series of well-rounded policies and measures to oversee occupational health and safety management in a
systematic way. The OHS Committee would identify, manage and review potential occupational health and safety risks, and strive its best
to introduce suitable measures to address these risks in order to minimize potential hazards imposed on our employees, especially front-line
workers who may be vulnerable to work injury and other risks in view of their daily routine.

During FY2022, we have recorded 5 work-related injury cases and the total lost day due to work injury was 84. We have made compensations
to the front-line employees involved. We would review on and improve our existing code to lower the occurrence of such work injuries in the
future. In the meantime, we did not record any work fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including FY2022.

HMAEERETIRRE - ARERNBTERERERN - ERFERER2MERGD - AETRHRANBERER R 2HEHA D
W% - AREMPIE F O REE -

PR20228 B E - ANEEY ET BRI EEAE KB 2REEERRERNER  ARERIERBERETRNELN (BER
2 REBEEH) -

AEEDRTARNBERERLREES Y (BER 2 RRETA) AN ERERER L2 BERER L2 EE W
A BERREHNEEOREREERLZZER  URNERASENER  BRRERREET  CHEREEITEREMAERS TEREME
BEVATARE TSR MEESE -

R2022 B FE - HMES5 R IIEEBN TESEY - BTERXTHERBER /AR - RMEMETHE TIEHEE - M ER:
BIRETH FEETRERDBETEER - M MEE=FEF (22022 RFE) - RIFALRHHK ﬂﬂﬂll%t%ﬁﬁl °

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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Highlights of occupational health and safety measures we have introduced in our care and attention homes can be separated into
the following aspects:

HIIRE BB ERER L2 T B0 AIAT L EHE

Environmental Safety Conduct fire drill and firefighting equipment inspection at least once a year

BRRE ROBFETNERBLmEN NERB
Employees’ Personal Safety * Require workers to wear suitable clothing and shoes in different work areas
RTEARZE EXFRBLNETE LARRERET

e Require workers in kitchen to strictly follow relevant safety guide to handle equipment
carefully

ERERNE TERETIHEZ 25| - BEEAERERE

Implement bathroom safety guide to remind workers to keep bathroom dry and clean

HEARELEIES| - 1RES TRIPAERRIRF

Arrange daily exercise for workers required for manual work who may face a higher risk
of work injury while taking care of residents
ARZENSHNERER AL ETERRTER
BB T LB HES

Provide lift-easy transfer belt and patient lifting device
to assist workers in lifting residents with disability in
walking to reduce their physical effort and risk of getting
sprain

RBEFRTHMER &0 B TIRERBH M
VAL A EL 88 0 85 8 RORUE B

Hygiene e Require workers to carefully handle and dispose of residents’ blood, excrement and
BE other secretions which may contain viruses and bacteria while wearing appropriate
personal protective equipment

ERETREREREERA A AAR RSO - JEtt Y REMD WY - I
& EE AR A

Personal Health e Appoint social workers to provide mental support to employees

fELARRRE Zepkit T8 TIRELOE S8
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APPLY STRINGENT PANDEMIC PREVENTION MEASURES
B e B2 Fh R A I

Under the pandemic, in view of our business nature, we understand that our residents
and employees face a relatively higher risk of infection. Therefore, we have formulated
and implemented stringent and thorough pandemic prevention measures in line with
the guide provided by Social Welfare Department and Department of Health so as to
minimize the risk of virus spread within our care and attention homes. Such measures
include:

ERESE  EREMANEBEE  BANEARE TEEHERSH0RERR - Fit
BABHRBELSRANEREFEZNESIFIEL EEEERZANDREEE » B5RE
ERSEERRRERE - HHEEE

e Require employees to conduct COVID-19 test regularly
Ek 8 T F MR HEMmAR SR

e Require employees to conduct body temperature check and wear masks all the time
EKE TinE iR W AT AR EMEB O E

e Require employees to wear protective goggles while helping residents shower and adjust the shower to lower water splash
B8 TR R EREHTEE B 53 A BIE B K S LA RKOR

e Require employees to wear personal protective equipment when accompanying residents to clinic,
including masks, protective goggles, protective clothing and hats, and require them to take them off

at designated area when they are back
EXETRRRKINBZRFEMALN ERE  BEOS  #A 5K - RERKE - WERMM
BB B N E [ 1A R S 4

B AR A R A
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PROMOTING CAREER DEVELOPMENT

HEER R

We understand that providing adequate career development and training opportunities to employees is vital to their personal development
as well as the Group’s development. Employees are granted with promotion opportunities in determination of their work performance, skills,
potentials, abilities, work attitude, years of service, efficiency, communication skills and conduct etc. We conduct performance appraisal on a
yearly basis in which self-appraisal, peer appraisal and bottom-up appraisal will be performed to evaluate each employee in a holistic approach.

In addition to promotion, we also place great emphasis on training. Internal and external training courses are arranged from time to time to get
employees well-equipped. We would also provide subsidies for advanced studies. For new-joiners especially front-line employees, in particular,
nurses, health workers, care workers, kitchen workers and cleaning workers, we provide comprehensive orientation trainings to make sure they
have equipped with necessary work-related knowledge and skills before taking care of the residents. Such trainings include infection control,
occupational health and safety, emergency cases handling, feeding, handling of medication, handling of wound, food safety and hygiene etc.
Employees are required to take regular examinations on the above training topics to ensure they are familiar with relevant knowledge and skills.

We prepare a training calendar every year for better arrangement of the Group’s training courses. During FY2022, training topics offered include
but not limited to:

HPAAREEMNREERIIGIIRG AN ETEANAEEER - ETERERETIERIR - f6t - BE - 80 TIFRE - F8 - X
K OBRRORBOSREGETHRE - RNEFETERSE - 8FEATE  ARFAELTENZ - WEEAZE TRR -

BTEM BT TOEREI - BAISLHABRIMBEIEE IRARELT - HATSREEDZEE TEES - RSMABETL
LEARETMES  RIEE  #IE8  BFHEEINERT - REZEMNABE - WEMMAETTER TIER ABME TIEMBRKEE -
B EBNBERRES  BERERLE  ESFHEE KRR FENERE SOERE RYUZE2R#ES - ETFEfU AR HE
TERZ - RO PR AR IR -

BMBEeHEET BRRMEL R EBMAETIRE - R2022M BEFE @ HIINDBIFETRR :

* Medication management e Senior mental and social wellbeing
BEYER REDIE R R
e Fall risk management e Nutrition and diet management
A b 2R ERNERER
e Use of restraint items e Taking care of residents with communication disorders
ERLRY @ FREDE BER TR
e Hospice care e Rehabilitation exercises
B A AR R BREY
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attending the training courses. The training ratio by gender and employee category type are as follow:

L

o TH

During FY2022, the Group has arranged in total approximately 2,920.0 hours of training courses with approximately 100.0% of employees

20228 - AEELRHEA H492,920.0/NEFEEHIFRIZ - £9100.0% 8 T2 BIEIRRIE o 8 T MR R EFEBIZ 5 893551 = a0

T
Percentage of employees trained ZHIETH oL J
Male
B
Female
peg i
Operation staff
®EST
Corporate staff
t¥EET
FY2022
20228 B &
Breakdown
of employees Average
trained training hours
FINETHE R=blSs
By gender
gzl
Female 83.5% 5.0
z
Male 16.5% 4.0
3
By employee category
RIERER
Operation staff 97.9% 4.1
HEET
Corporate staff 2.1% 6.2
¥ET
g i L <l AT
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Note 1: The percentage of employees trained by category is calculated by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified category during FY2022 by
the total number of employees in the specified category during FY2022, including employees who left the Group.

Note 2:  The breakdown of employees trained by category is calculated by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified category during FY2022 by
the total number of trained employees during FY2022.

Note 3:  The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the training hours for employees in the specified category during FY2022 by the number
of employees in the specified category during FY2022, including employees who left the Group.

Note 4: Due to optimization of the data collection system in FY2022, figures for overall percentage of employees trained, breakdown of employees trained and
average training hours have been disclosed from FY2022 onwards.

Ffet 1« LIRS E T 2022 BT F R 1 E A5 I 8 T BB Br A 2022 BT L F R E BB B T8 (B 15 A B S T )it & -
et 2« #ARFR IR THIRIZ 2022 BT F R 1 E MR BRI K T8 B B A 2022 81 B AF R R Al 8 TAE 8T H -
et 3 < #AR 19 2 05 B ¥ 2022 B F [R5 E 4R 5 8 T 2l BB A 2022 Bt A R E XA 5K TH B (B A KBRS T) 15 -

fifet 4 - R 2022 81 F R E(EBIRE R AL+ H 2022 BN F IR ERIFEAR L INER B bt ~ X8R THIR R F1 2 3|0 2205 »

COMPLYING WITH LABOUR STANDARDS

BrEERE

The Group adopts zero tolerance attitude towards the recruitment of child and forced labour. Our employment practices are in compliance
with the relevant labour laws and regulations. During recruitment process, we verify employees’ identity documents to ensure they have met
legal working age. Moreover, we have clearly outlined necessary employment terms on the employment contract and other human resources
policies, including working hours, work location, remuneration, duties, shift arrangement, leave, dismissal procedures etc. Front-line employees
working in the care and attention homes would work on shift. We also employ foreign workers through the Supplementary Labour Scheme
(“SLS”) of the Labour Department. We also perform a stringent screening process on qualified candidates to ensure that all our employees met
the recruitment requirements in Hong Kong and have valid work permit so as to avoid forced labour.

Any case of child labour or forced labour, when discovered, shall be investigated and acted upon and reported to the government authorities
promptly in accordance with applicable laws. Further, the Group shall immediately terminate the employment contract and impose due
punishment on the erring employee.

AEBEHREBETRBHSSRN T TR - HANEBEERAENS TR - EREBAREY  BMASXEEINENHEHAX
o EROASZEIEE TEFER - bt RATREESOREMANERGIZFIFBBERMIGNR - 2ETERS - TIEBE - H -
TEEE - HITRY  RY BERES -RENAREIFTERUITFE - XHETIRBAST - RFBES TENMTS L3RR
WAST - RIFEEERNERERTERENHEREFARREETATENREZRASEARTIERE  BRHIEHEH -

WMEIRE T oahlS TR - AEBEBETHE RRIITEN &R EEAEGI RRATIFIERE o thid - AEBBRIEERETHER
ABHNEREENEINITE -
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SPREADING WARMTH TO COMMUNITY

Mt BEERE

The Group is devoted to giving back to community and has initiated various community activities, with the focus area of promoting public
health, gathering the Group’s resources and manpower for years.

Pine Care Group supported the social program — Youth Serves for Elderly by offering approximately 20 youth participants internship experience
in the elderly-related workplace during FY2022. Through their internship at the care and attention homes, the youth gained project planning and
problem-solving skills, implementing remote home visits and holding health management training via online models. In addition, the program
not only provides an outstanding internship experience for the youth but also connects the older and younger generation.

To echo with the World Dementia Day, we held a series of events for residents with dementia in September 2021, allowing them to express their
emotions through various experiences such as singing, dancing, crafting and gardening which help exercise their physical, mental and cognitive
abilities and slow down the degeneration process. Meanwhile, to maintain safety and enhance the harmonious atmosphere in the care and
attention home, all activities were hosted by professional social workers and assisted by home staff. This enables the elderly to communicate
and interact with the staff so as to develop trust and a deeper emotional connection with the staff.

Due to spread of pandemic, the Group has brought most of our charity programs to a halt with an aim to guarantee the health and safety of our
residents and employees. We would strive our best to reembark on such programs in order to contribute to the community once the pandemic
has been alleviated.

AEEZER-ERNOEHE  UARBERTIHE - BBAEENERMAN BRI ZEHEED -

R2022 I E - INBREZ LB H’Tmﬁ$${ﬂ’]f§§°‘t~ﬁi B R0 BFFREREHETERZEERER - BRAERS
BE BESFNRAENEELS ETEERERD AR LRIETRRERIE - I ABTEATFRATER
INEEFTEMN -

RERERARBAEFER - HAIR 2021 F9 ARBERMEFENGASENR—RIES  EEOERET - h5E  FTEREZETF
BRITHERIIFRAE  DERRBME  TERCBIE - AR REFSLZEREERSNE  MAEHIHEEHTIHEREE
T#Bh - REFMHE TERRN  KMEBEHEINEERERENBRESR -

FARZREER  AKEEETAEIAEHEANRERARETIRERLE - RS ERBENZRERGELHE BEALEFLE
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STOCK EXCHANGE

B B ~ & KB IE S I NA R I

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BERERE

Section/Declaration

B2 BH

Governance Structure

ERRE

Our Approach to Sustainability — Sustainability Governance
BMAFERRETH — IREHRERER

Reporting Principles
HERA

Reporting Principles
HERA

Reporting Boundary
HEEHE

About this Report — Reporting Scope and Period
BRI E — MEHE LR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPIs Section/Declaration Page Number
FTEHE  BEH —RERELERENER =689 B
A. Environmental 313
Aspect A1: Emissions BHEA1 : R
General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and P 88-93
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RRHEER
BHAERKAEREBHN KR ITHMOEES BEREEEEVNEELESH
() Bk : &
(o) BFE BT ABERZENEMERLIROINER o
KPI The types of emissions and respective emission data.
RABRAE R HERU e SR B AR R B B P. 88-91
FE1E A1
KPI Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
AR ER gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
EIZE A2 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). P. 88-91
H#E(HE) ReRAEZ (SBE2))RZEREHEHRE (ABEETHE)
R (ER) %E (A SESEA - BIEHREHE) © Pine Care Green
N oSS
KPI Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
BASRE appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
B A1.3 facility). P. 88-91
FIEEREREEYHAE (AMEE) R (WER)ZE (RE
E2E - BEREHE) o
KPI Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
FASREE appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
HE A4 facility). P. 88-91
FEAEEZEEYESE (UEGE) R (ER) ZE (N AE
ESE - BEXZEE) -
KPI Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to
RABEAERN achieve them. P. 88-93
EEA1S FAATET Z BV BE N R B 1R RRIERE & B R PTEREEY 25 5%
KPI Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
RAEAER handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
EIZ A1.6 taken to achieve them. P. 88-93

RREIEAEREEERYN A - RIEAPTRT AR EE B
BRRAEREL BRI 8 -

FA B AL AR A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPls
FEHE - BEH - —RRENERERER

Section/Declaration
=4-ipg- 1.V

Page Number
Hif

Aspect A2: Use of Resources EHEA2 : EiRfEH

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw

materials. P. 88-94
— R
BREREIR(BIELIR - KREMEMEL FIECR o
KPI Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
FARRER electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g.
B A2.1 per unit of production volume, per facility). P. 91
REATE D Eﬁﬁ?%&/ﬁif‘ﬂ%ﬁéﬂ?(ﬁﬂ% C REOH) BFEE (B
FETERFEE) REE (WWAGESSEN - BIEZBTE) ©
KPI Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Pine Care Green
. s
REX production volume, per facility). B e P 94
BEA2.2 BRKEREE (WABESEN - BERWHTE)
KPI Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
BB taken to achieve them. o 0003
EFE A2.3 A FTET SZ BV RRIR 62 A s B 1R R R E B iE ke B IR PR ER ey 25 '
KPI Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
FABEN is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
EIZ A2.4 to achieve them. P 94
SR ERE A /KR ] B ERIHIRE - AR FTR] S B9 F7K R B
F R AEDE L B IR EREE P8 o
KPI Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) )
= . . . ) Not applicable to the
BASRAA K and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. a = bust N/A
roup’s business .
EIZ A2.5 B AT EEMEHBAE (AEE) R(ER)BEES N, ‘ TERA
) - i P A A SR 75
ffE= -
Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources BHA3 : BER XARER
General Disclosure
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources. P. 88-94
—MRIRER
RIEZITABRIERRAREREKERNZERBUE Pine Care Green
RERAR B
KPI Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
RAGEAE RN environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
512 A3.1 manage them. P 88-94

R EB RS HRERRABERNEATENERREEGH
TENTH o
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPls Section/Declaration Page Number
T2 - Em - AR MERENUER =55, 89 Hi

Aspect A4: Climate Change BHA4 : RiRE 1L

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. P. 94-95

— AR EE
BRIRENMEZERAREHBETAEEZENEARKHEBEEOER -

Pine Care Green

[N o ges!
KPI Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
RASRAE R impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
g1z actions taken to manage them. P. 94-95
HE B RAIEHBTAEEZENERRGEREE - &
FEETTE o

B. Social #&
Employment and Labour Standards {E{EK % T ¥ 33
Aspect B1: Employment BEB1 : {E{&
General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and Pine Care Caring

other benefits and welfare. MEEE P. 96-100
— M=
AR R  BEREA  TERE B TSRS 2ol RERUR
H At 5538 KAz Al
@ BE : &
(o) BFEEITABERLEREMERELIROINER
KPI Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
BAgRAE N geographical region. P. 96-98
£12 B1.1 IR BRI - RS RIS B 5 MR B 88 - Employee Overview
KPI Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical BT
RASRAE X region. P 96-98
51E B1.2 RIMER - FEAR RMEE S HEE MK X o

B B A L A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPIs
FEHE  BEH - —RRENMERERESR

Section/Declaration
=4-.) - 1./

Page Number
=%

Aspect B2: Health and Safety EHEB2 : @EHEZ %

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards. P.101-103
—MRIRER
FRRHZETERRRREREEBEBELEEN
(@) BUR : % Caring for Employees’

136 Dt e S = S — ri r
(b) EFHBITAE EAFEIDERRAFIHER - 9 forEmpioy

Wellbeing
KPI Ba#4E % Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Occurred in each of REES TR
1E51E B2.1 the past three years including the reporting year. P.101-103
BE=ZF(BEREEE) ATIEFBERMATHAB KL E -
KPI Lost days due to work injury.
RAREN HIEBARTIIERS - P.101-103
51F B2.2
KPI Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
FABEAER how they are implemented and monitored. P 101-103
151% B2.3 FM P ER AN A B R IR FR B 2 2 48 B - DA AR T M B0k -
Aspect B3: Development and Training BEBS3 : %8 ki3l
General Disclosure
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities. P 104-106
— MR
BRARTHE & BT TIERE A A R R AE R » B IES o
Promoting Career

KPI The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee D‘evelo;?ment
RRgR AR category. REMIER P.104-106
#E51F B3.1 IR RESEANESHNZIEEB DL ©
KPI The average training hours completed per employee by gender
RASRAE K and employee category. P. 104-106
#E1E B3.2 RUERIRESERNE S - BREETKIIIN TR -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPIs

Section/Declaration

Page Number

TEHE  BEE  —MEERERELER =689 B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards [EHEB4 : % T %8|
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
— R E
HRAR IEE TskoaHIs TH P.106
(@) B & Complying with Labour
(o) EFHBTABEAFENEERZRAPINER - Standards
UTEEEE
KPI Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
RASEAE K child and forced labour.
FE1% B4 R SRR B IV HE AR 2 B T 5|55 T o
KPI Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
BASEAERK discovered. P 106
1E1% B4.2 RMAE IR E RIS B A B AT ERER A P8R
Operating Practices & E 1€
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management EHEB5 : {E#EEE
General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
P77
— MR
EIRHEENIRIE R g RBRBUR o
KPI Number of suppliers by geographical region.
RABRAE R iR E DB EHEREE - P77
$51% B5.1
KPI Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
RASRAE RN suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
J51Z B5.2 are implemented and monitored. P77
AR R HEEMIEN - mERITERENNMHERSE - Partnership
AR B RBEHIRNITRER A ° R
KPI Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
AR EN risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
812 B5.3 monitored. P 77
A BEEANEEREEGERSNRE R gRRNED - AR
HRARITRERTE -
KPI Description of practices used to promote environmentally
A E N preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
$E1Z B5.4 how they are implemented and monitored. P77

R BRE HE R R R 2 AIRRE R KRB HER] - IAKIE
BRITRERTE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPls
FEHE - BEH - —RRENERERESR

Section/Declaration
=4-.) - 1./

Page Number
=%

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility BHEB6 : ERET

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

Pine Silverage

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress. M HE P 78-85
— AR EE
BRAMRHMERTRENEREZS  BE  REELEZFEUARBROTEN
(@) B &
(o) EFHBETABEAZENEMERLROINER -
KPI Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Not applicable to the N/A
BB E N safety and health reasons. Group’s business T
RV — , , NN . Nl
151% B6.1 EEdEEXEREHT AR BEREHMAMWN B DL TERRAEE XD
KPI Number of products and service related complaints received and : )
. ) Pine Silverage
AR how they are dealt with. . P 84
Sz = ] L N m > N-EE]
$51% B6.2 BN E R RIRT S R A A R RSk o T
KPI Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Not applicable to the N/A
AR intellectual property rights. Group’s business i
™ 2[E]
513 B6.3 B 4 R AR IE A E R A RARIE DI - TERARKEBEY
KPI Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
RABRAERL IS SR BIE RE m B WAEFF o P. 78-83
E1% B6.4
iR B Pine Silverage
N
KPI Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, e
RASRAE K how they are implemented and monitored. P 85
515 B6.5 FAUH B & ERHRE RFLBECR - A RAABEAITRER A ©
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and KPls Section/Declaration Page Number
TEHE  EEH  —MEELRERELER =89 B

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption BEB7 : RE55

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— MR
BRAY LS - R - BGEFROARER
@ BE : &
(o) BFHETABERAZENRBERRRONER Ethics and Integrity
NN P76
BEHE
KPI Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
RASRIE W brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
EIZ B7.1 Year and the outcomes of the cases.
RBEFEAHETANEESIRE W EBENESHFARMY
HIEE RAFFARER ©
KPI Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
RASRAE RN procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
$51E B7.2 A b R AR - A RABRAE T REEER T ©
Community #t &
Aspect B8: Community Investment EHEBS : #+EBRE
General Disclosure
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests. P07
— MR E
B LA [ 22 B R B AR B AT E AL (B 7R EM R LR T E Bt & F s ek -
Spreading Warmth to
KPI Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community
i [ R B
RASRAE R concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). B R % 5 107
#51% B8.1 EXEEEE(NHE  BREFHE SIFR@#BF - b 8 '
B
KPI Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
RABRAE R EFIHEMHHER (NS EHRRE) o P. 107
51 B8.2

P B o % A5 A L A
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B

The directors of Pine Care Group Limited present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, whilst its major
operating subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of senior care services.

The business review required under Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
under review using financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” (pages 10 to 13) and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” (pages 14 to 24) of this annual report, and a
description of the environmental policies and performance is set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 53 to 115 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

An analysis of the revenue and operating segment information during the
financial year is set out in note 6 and note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements respectively.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

A list of principal subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation and
particulars of their issued ordinary share capital and principal activities, is set
out in note 42 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for FY2022, and the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022 are set out in
the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 148 to 151 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company attaches great importance to returns to investors and maintain
the continuity and stability of its profit distribution policy. According to the
dividend policy adopted by the Company, the Board would consider the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company, as well as other factors
the Board may consider relevant, before declaring or recommending
dividends.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

MR EEZEBERANESREERSBEREE
2022 3 A 31 HILFE 2 EEZERE M@K ([4R
AHBHRE]) °

EFREHREHERE
AARMEIEEDAREZE  AREELENS
AR FRERE EZRIS -

REEBRAGOIMRSBRNERERE  215Y
AEEEHNEERRKR R THAPEZMEL - EA
MBERREEEZOIMALEENEBEFANKER
REBEBAERRREENIER  BRAFHRY
[EFHRE(E10R18H) K ERE WAL I(F
142 248)  BIREGERERBNH MR ARERE
53E115EM [RIE - HERERRE] - ZFH
BHARNIEEGRE] 2—BH -

R RFE R s K82 0 BB R e D AT 2 B ER
fRA BRI 6 RHRET -

FEHB A A

FEMBRARMIIER  EREFMA IR REE
TEBRAREZEBOFE  BREREHHHRE
MisE42 o

P
REBER022VBRFEMNHFRRERANEER
2022 3 A 31 HWEGR A M BARNEK MR EFHE
148 £ 151 BEMIRA TSR -

IR EIBR

AAFRIFFHERKEERR  WRFNE D BECBEE
EEEN RIBEN - RBEARFRANBSEE
EEGNEIRSFR S AHEZE B R R Y MR
RARBEEFFR  UREESTRRRBENEGE
=o
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DIVIDEND

As the business of the Group is expected to undergo rapid expansion and
development, adequate working capital is required to be reserved for its
projects development. As a result, the Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for FY2022 (FY2021 final dividend: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 annual general
meeting of the Company (“2022 AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 18 August 2022 to Tuesday, 23
August 2022, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s),
should be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged
before 15 August 2022) or 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, No. 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged on or after 15 August
2022), for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 August
2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated financial position
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2022 is set out on
page 244 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

We treasure our relationship with the key stakeholders which comprise
customers, employees, bankers and suppliers, and we are able to maintain
our sound relationship and obtain continuous support from the key
stakeholders so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For FY2022, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 42.6%, while the sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer during the year under review were approximately
41.3%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
during the year under review were approximately 36.6%, while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier during the year under review were
approximately 10.9%.

Save for Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, an existing substantial shareholder of the
Company, who was beneficially interested in 6.8% of the issued shares in the
Group’s third largest supplier, none of the directors, their close associates or
any shareholder (which to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in the
Group’s major suppliers or customers for FY2022.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year under review are
set out in note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Movements in the
reserves of the Group are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately HK$149.7 million (2021: HK$149.7
million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year under review amounted to
HK$3,000.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2022 are set out
in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year under review are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
under review or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted its Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2017 (which became unconditional on 15 February 2017). The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, but are not limited
to, (i) any employee or director of any member of the Group or of any company
in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, an equity interest (the
“Invested Entity”) (including any full-time or part-time employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive director); (i)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (i) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (iv) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant option(s) to eligible
participant(s) to subscribe for shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at an
exercise price and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the
date of offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee to the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the directors and
stated in the offer to a grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for
any minimum period nor achieve any performance targets before the exercise
of an option granted to him/her.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company to the grantee thereof, and in the absence of such
determination, from the date of acceptance of the offer of such option to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such option lapses under the relevant provisions
of the Share Option Scheme; and (ii) the date falling 10 years from the offer
date of such option.
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The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in accordance with the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant is subject to the shareholders’
approval in general meeting with the participant and the close associates of
such participant (or his/her/its associates if the participant is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.

Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares of the
Company in aggregate and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of offer) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
general meeting.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the Board, but shall be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares of the Company on the date of offer of the option; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company'’s share.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years commencing on
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted.

The total number of shares which may be issued by the Company upon
exercise of all options granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 86,400,000 shares (the “General
Scheme Limit”), representing 10% of the shares in issue of the Company on
the date of listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on 15
February 2017. Subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and before
the termination of the Share Option Scheme, the General Scheme Limit could
be renewed with prior shareholders’ approval.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme (and any other share option scheme(s), if any, of the Group) must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company from time to time.

As at 31 March 2022 and the date of this report:

— the total number of shares that may be issued by the Company upon
exercise of all outstanding options already granted under the Share
Option Scheme was 19,100,000, representing 2.12% of the total
number of shares in issue of the Company; and

— the maximum number of options that were available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme was 67,300,000, representing
approximately 7.45% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Details of movements of the Company’s
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended
31 March 2022 are set out below.
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Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Date of grant asat Grant Exercised Cancelled lapsed asat Exercise period
Name or category (dd.mm.yyyy)  Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March  (dd.mm.yyyy —
of participants (Note 2) price 2021 the year the year the year the year 2022  dd.mm.yyyy) (Note 1)
REBH 120215 R202%F TS

(B.B.5) 481R FRRY/ 38318 (B.A.E-R.AH)
SHRERELER (KzE2) %@ OESHid FREH FRTE FREH P34 WATE (1)
Executive directors
HTES
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 900,000 - - - 900,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031

(also a controling shareholder)

WA KE (MAERER) 110 8T
Mr. Chan Yip Keung 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 01.03.2023-01.09.2031
BRxsxt 11037
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031
BRREE 110 #1
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031
ghnss 110387
Independent non-executive directors
BUkHTES
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 200,000 - - - 200,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031
EREE 11087
Mr. Wong Kit Loong 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 200,000 - - - 200,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031
BHERE 110 B
Mr. Wong Kam Pui 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 200,000 - - - 200,000  01.08.2023-01.09.2031
BRAAAE 1107
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 200,000 - - - 200,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031
HEEEE 1107
Sub-total for directors - 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000
EF/it
Employees of the Group
FEWER
In aggregate 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 5,500,000 - - - 5,500,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031
At 110 BT

Consultants to the Company

AARREMA

In aggregate 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 - 5,900,000 - - - 5,900,000  01.03.2023-01.09.2031

af 110 #71

TOTAL - 19,100,000 - - - 19,100,000

a3t

Notes: HsE -

1. The vesting period of the share options starts from the date of grant and ends on 1. B REBE E B H AR S BT HAR 1A A
the date immediately before the commencement of the exercise period. EHIE

2. The closing price of the Company’s shares on 1 September 2021 (being the 2. RATEHRAEH 2021 4F9 A2 B2 H ALK B 1
business day immediately before the date of grant of the share options on 2 TR 2 H (202149 A1 )M THEAE1.058 T -
September 2021) was HK$1.05.

3. The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be subject to 3. BEA MR B R AT (E A8 T AR S BT AT -
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in the AN FIR A E B T A T IR o
Company’s share capital.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year under review and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Yip Keung (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Non-executive director
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai

Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kit Loong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Chan Yip Keung
and Mr. Yeung Ka Wing shall retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM. All of the
above retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

Brief biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 25 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has
a service contract with the Company that is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the directors. The
remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring by the
Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

v,

o N

-
REEFAREEAKREAS AREFS -

HITES

BB S S (%)
PR3 38 55 (7T ARED)
BR%EE

B B SEE

FHUTES
R L

BMFHTES
MEREFLLE
EHIRHEE
EEEE L

RIBMAIEBL IR - BIRFA L - REBREERBGR
EBRFEHANR 2022 FIRFIBFERGWESR - AL
BREEBEFHSERN2022FRRBF ARG LHE
T

EERSREEEBERE

EXNaATEENMEREFBRNAFHRES
E33H -

BEERBEEL

B 2022 FIRRIAF N E BB EF o ESPMER
ARIRIS AT —F R I T EBZARE CEE fER
SN Z RIS EHY

EEHMH
FWNEREERRAEFSRAAQAAINTES
MFB R ERET - FEEFROHMEHNERS
TEE g - URERIR S H B R E R NEE K
F o BERFEMOFIEHN G AP BIHRRMTE10 -

A e WA R 2 )
2022 F R

=
ﬁ%

123



124

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”,
“Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” and
note 37 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme operated by the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, neither at the end of nor
at any time during the year under review there subsisted any arrangement to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and the objects of or
one of the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (including those for provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders) has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year under review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 10 May 2021, Pine Care Titanium Limited (the “Subscriber”, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and ETS Group Limited (the “Issuer”, a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange) entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) in respect of the Subscriber’s
conditional subscription (the “Subscription”) of the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$9.5 million (the “Convertible Bonds”) due two years
from the date of issue at a conversion price of HK$0.608 (the “Conversion
Price”) per share of the Issuer which may fall to be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds (the
“Conversion Shares”).

Completion of the Subscription took place on 11 August 2021 upon which the
Convertible Bonds were issued on the same date by the Issuer to the
Subscriber in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Subscription
Agreement. Upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the Conversion
Price of HK$0.608, a total of 15,625,000 Conversion Shares will be allotted
and issued to the Subscriber.
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The Issuer is actively exploring development and/or investment opportunities
of assets using blockchain technology and the provision of related consulting
and advisory services on virtual assets investment in Hong Kong. The
Subscription would provide an opportunity for the Company to enjoy any
potential capital gain in value of the Issuer’s shares upon conversion of the
Convertible Bonds, with downside protection upon redemption/maturity if the
conversion rights attached thereto are not exercised. Given the Issuer’s keen
interest in the area of asset tokenization and its experience in the financial
industry, the Group’s investment under the Subscription may bring synergistic
collaboration opportunity(ies) with the Issuer in such area (especially in security
tokenization when an opportunity arises) in the future.

As the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor, who is the substantial shareholder of the
Company, was the chairman and a non-executive director of the Issuer at the
time of the Subscription and is a controlling shareholder of the Issuer, the
Issuer is an associate of the late Mr. Tang Shing Bor. Accordingly, the Issuer is
a connected person of the Company for the Company and the Subscription
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the Subscription and the Convertible Bonds are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 10 May 2021 and 11 August 2021.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions (collectively the “CCTs”), details of which are set out
below in compliance with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

(A) Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement”) was entered
into between Zhejiang Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited
(“Zhejiang Pine Care Yada”, a subsidiary of the Company) as lessee and
Zhejiang Yada International Rehabilitation Hospital Co., Limited
(“Zhejiang Yada International”) as lessor.

Date: 29 November 2017
The term of the tenancy: 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2027
Upon expiration of the term of the lease created under the Zhejiang

Tenancy Agreement, Zhejiang Pine Care Yada has the first right to
renew the lease.
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Premises being leased: The whole of Third Floors in Buildings C1 &
C2 of Zhejiang Yada International Rehabilitation Hospital, Wuzhen
Town, Tongxiang City, Zhejiang Province, The People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), with a total floor area of approximately 7,190 square
metres (equivalent to approximately 77,400 square feet) (the “Zhejiang

Premises”) for setting up residential care home for elderly.

Basis of pricing: The rentals under the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement
are determined with reference to and taking into account (i) the
prevailing market rental of similar properties with similar business nature
in nearby locations in Zhejiang, the PRC; (i) the location of the Zhejiang

Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in future.

Rental: The rental for the Zhejiang Premises on an annual basis from
years 2018 to 2021 is RMB3,019,800 (the “Annual Rental”). In order to
support the development of the business of Zhejiang Pine Care Yada,
Zhejiang Yada International and Zhejiang Pine Care Yada agree that:

(i) For the period from 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2017:
rent-free period, but property management fees and utilities fees

shall be borne by Zhejiang Pine Care Yada;

(i) For the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018: 20%

of the Annual Rental;

(i)~ For the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019: 50%

of the Annual Rental;

(iv)  For the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020: 80%

of the Annual Rental;

v) For the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021:

Annual Rental; and

(vi)  For the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2027: the
rental (on annual basis) shall increase from the Annual Rental by

8% every 2 years.

The above rental does not include property management fees and
utilities fees (including water, electricity, heating, gas, telephone, data,

cable television charges, etc.).
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Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement, which are determined based
on the rental to be received by Zhejiang Yada International therefrom,
are as follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March

FELER:MNIHEERRB TRETNRS
F 2 IR Ty AR 5O T 7 i B st AE & UER
MESERE - WEFIWT

BZE3AMALEE
RMB’000
ARBTT
2018 (from 1 December 2017) 2018F (H2017F 12 A1 A#E) 160
2019 20194 880
2020 20204 1,830
2021 2021 4F 2,700
2022 2022 4 3,240
2023 20234 3,430
2024 2024 4 3,500
2025 20254 3,700
2026 2026 4 3,780
2027 2027 £ 4,000
2028 (up to 31 December 2027) 2028 F (HEZ= 202712 A31H) 3,000

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2022
amounted to approximately RMB3,080,000.

Yada International (HK) Limited (“Yada HK”) is a substantial shareholder
of Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited, which is a subsidiary of the
Company. Yada HK and Yada Healthcare Industry Development Co.,
Limited (“Yada Health”) are fellow subsidiaries of Yada International
Holdings Limited and Zhejiang Yada International is a subsidiary of Yada
Health. Accordingly, Zhejiang Yada International is an associate of Yada
HK and therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary
level. The entering into of the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2017.

The Group has disposed its equity interest in Zhe Jiang Pine Care Yada
Elderly Service Limited in April 2022. For details please refer to note 38.
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(B)

Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement”) was
entered into between Patina Wellness Limited (“Patina Wellness”, which
the Group holds 51% of its equity interest) as lessee and Everhost
Limited (“Everhost”) as lessor.

Date: 13 April 2018

The term of the tenancy: 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2028

Premises being leased: The building named “Patina” and situated at
18 Junction Road, Kowloon City, Hong Kong, excluding 30th Floor and
the flat roof together with 2 carparks, with a total floor area of
approximately 84,000 square feet (the “Patina Premises”) for setting up
and operating residential care home for the elderly, clinic, service
apartments, clubhouse and restaurant.

The Patina Premises will enable the Group to expand its business in
Hong Kong for the operation of an upscale community for the senior
with the concept of an “Integrated Senior Wellness Hub” to expand its
business coverage to active seniors who require a lower level of care
compared to traditional RCHE residents, while at the same time, widen
the breadth of its service offerings for this emerging market segment.

Basis of pricing: The rentals payable under the Patina Wellness
Tenancy Agreement are determined with reference to and taking into
account (i) prevailing market rents for comparable premises in the area
where the Patina Premises are situated; (i) the location of the Patina
Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in the future.

Rental: Details of monthly rental for the Patina Premises (exclusive of
rates and management fees and all other outgoings) are set out as
follows:

(i) From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2022, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,000,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher;

(i) From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,320,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher; and

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

HBHHEE R
AMEEARAR(HRF] ARATREH
51% K M) (EARMA) BARERA A
(IRF]) (ERBAA) ETSL M E 13 35 (15
REHERE]) -

HHEl 20184 A13H

FHEHR 1 20185F 4 A1 HE 2028 3 A 31
H

HEME R EBEAMEEISTEER
[REL | 88 F (P BIE301E & F & A R E
B7) TR - ABEEEL 484,000 F 7
R(TMBYE D) AFRINREEEERZ
Bed - 2P RIEAET - S NEE -

MY EREAREESUABRENEBHE
% gE—EAA [FARKEEMR | ED
MEmRELE  SAEEGUHEEBE
EHERREMBREKTENERLER
ETEMEREE R HREREHZHED
155 &R IR L EEE ]

EEREE  HRAFEEHRE N ZEMES
T2 EW I () SN ELY) 2 Fr7E & /) A &
HEMEERMTSES  ((REMEMNE
K i) TEEAR RGBIR R B E -

HE  WEYENESAESFHB(TEEEZM
LEBBURMAEEM L) ST

) 201844 F51BZE202243 431 B Hf -
& A 74 & A2,000,0008 5T ek B B &
FAEWAR38% (AESEBLE)

(i) 202254 A1BE2025%3 431 AR
& A% & A2,320,0008 T B B B
FAFEWARNI% (UBRSHE BE)
53



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B

(iii) From 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2028, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,691,200 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher.

Rent-free period: Everhost shall grant to Patina Wellness a rent-free
period of not more than 3 calendar months commencing from 1 April
2018 for carrying out renovation and decoration works within the Patina
Premises, provided that such rent-free period in respect of the 79
service apartments on 7/F to 29/F of the Patina Premises shall cease
on the date on which Patina Wellness commences business at that
portion of the Patina Premises.

Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement, which are determined
based on the rental to be received by Everhost therefrom, are as
follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March
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HK$

BT
2019 20194 23,208,600
2020 20204 24,000,000
2021 20214 24,000,000
2022 20224 24,000,000
2023 2023%F 27,840,000
2024 20244 27,840,000
2025 20254 27,840,000
2026 20264 32,294,400
2027 20274 32,294,400
2028 20284 32,294,400

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2022
amounted to approximately HK$24,000,000.
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(©)

At the time when the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement was entered
into, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was a substantial shareholder of Patina
Wellness. The late Mr. Tang Shing Bor, the father of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing,
was beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Everhost.
Accordingly, Everhost was an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and
therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. The
entering into of the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2018.

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing has become a substantial shareholder and an
executive director of the Company. Based on the relations mentioned in
the above paragraph, Everhost remains an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu
Sing, but becomes a connected person of the Company at issuer level.

Master Management Service Agreement

A Master Management Service Agreement was entered into between
the Company and the Grantors (as referred to in the paragraph below)
in respect of the Company’s provision of management services to
manage and operate for the Grantors any one or more of the RCHEs,
senior care facilities, serviced apartments, hotels, guest houses,
restaurants, clubhouses and any other establishments (including
establishments under development) owned and/or operated by any of
the Grantors, either jointly or individually, from time to time (the
“Establishments”).

Grantors are referred to as Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, the late Mr. Tang Shing-
bor, Dr. Tang Yiu Pong and any other member of the Tang family and/
or any funds, fund managers, companies, joint ventures or other entities
controlled, or owned as to 30% or more, by the Tang Family and/or any
funds, fund managers, companies, joint ventures or other entities which
the Tang Family has a material interest and/or any associates of the
Tang Family, as defined under the Listing Rules. The Grantors, Mr. Tang
Yiu Sing and the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor are substantial shareholders
of the Company. The late Mr. Tang Shing-bor is also the father of Dr.
Tang Yiu Pong and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, both of whom are the directors
of the Company. Consequently, the Grantors are regarded as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules and therefore, the Master Management Service Agreement and
any transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Date: 24 November 2020

Term: 3 financial years from 5 March 2021
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Subject matter: The Company may from time to time, during the term
of the Master Management Service Agreement, separately enter into
individual management service agreements with the Grantors on agreed
terms to manage and operate the relevant operations of the
Establishments for the Grantors, subject to certain conditions.

The proposed scope of services to be provided by the Company under
the management service agreement includes, but not limited to,
preparing annual budgets, sourcing of operational supplies,
management of the respective operation staff, preparation and
implementation of sales and marketing plans and promotions,
overseeing the overall operations of the Establishments, maintaining the
quality and standard of the respective operations and generally
improving sales revenue and gross operating profits as a whole or such
other related matters regarding improving sales revenue and gross
operating profits that the parties therein shall agree from time to time.

Pricing: The management fees for the transactions contemplated
under the respective management service agreements shall comprise
of: (a) the basic management fees; (b) the marketing fees; and/or (c) the
incentive management fees (only applicable if there is gross operating
profits for the relevant Establishments).

The Company adopts the principle of cost plus a reasonable margin,
which is expected to be not less than 8%, for the management services
to be provided to both the Grantors and independent third party
customers and hence, in any event the terms and prices offered by the
Company to the Grantors will be no more favourable than those offered
to independent third parties for the same or similar type of services.
Also, the Company will take reference and benchmark of the pricing
and terms of management services provided to properties of sizes and
locations similar to that of the Establishments in order to assess the
fairness and reasonableness of the pricing of the basic management
fees charged by the Company. The Company considers that the “cost
plus” basis allows the Company to recover its cost with a reasonable
margin of not less than 8% which is a better benchmark than a fixed
percentage of revenue. The marketing fees shall be calculated based
on an one-off HK$4,000 for each residential care place established by
the Company. The standard rate of the incentive management fees
(subject to adjustments, to be agreed between the Company and the
Grantors, based on the different locations of the Establishments) shall
be calculated based on 2% to 8% of the gross operating profits of the
respective Establishments managed by the Company.
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The Grantors may impose a separate license fee if the Establishments
are or will be operated under a brand or group owned by the Grantors
and/or if the Company makes use of any registered trademark or
goodwill of the Establishment in its operation of the Establishment. The
license fee may be based on nil to 2% of the gross operating profits.

Annual Caps: The total management fees under all the management
service agreements for each financial year shall not exceed the following
annual caps:

(i) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2021: HK$4,800,000;

(i) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2022: HK$36,100,000;
and

(iii) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2023: HK$87,300,000.

The total amount of management fees for the year ended 31 March
2022 amounted to nil.

Through leveraging the Group’s brand and expertise to provide the
aforesaid management services to the Grantors will enable the Group
to replicate the business for various market segments at a faster pace.
The Group can also formulate similar asset light model to provide
management services to different property owners in Hong Kong and
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

The transactions contemplated under the Master Management Service
Agreement are of a recurrent nature and will occur on a regular and
continuing basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company. In order to regulate, inter alia, the relevant transactions
relating to various individual agreements between the Company and the
Grantors, and for the purpose of administrative convenience, the Master
Management Service Agreement offers flexibility for the entering into of
further individual agreement(s), if any, and/or renewal of various existing
individual agreements, which is considered beneficial to both the
Company and the Grantors.

Details of the Master Management Service Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 24 November 2020 and 26
January 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 17 February
2021.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company reviewed and
confirmed that the CCTs had been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) according to the agreements governing such transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transaction or non-exempted continuing

connected transaction under the Listing Rules during FY2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Related Party Transactions for
FY2022 as disclosed in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements constituted discloseable non-exempted connected
transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction under

the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above Related Party Transactions constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
FY2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the directors and/or
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the

SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

A.

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company (other than pursuant to equity derivatives):

EEREFETHRAERRSG - HER
NRESF 2B RKR

2022 F3A31 B ARREER KEBITHA
BRANE LR (FERREBEMNEST1EE
H GG (TF5RBEIEG)) EXVE) FiES
BRAREELS RS GBS GERTTEZE
e SARIBAZE ST BB AN A 7 B 2 2 AR (%
TERERR D REHFAER AR T

A. RALFAEREEIOEBINERE
BRI A RIBRACTE T ARSI ¢

Approximate

percentage*
of shareholding
Name of director Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares in the Company
hAR R B REN
EEHR B EnitE K7 E BOBF D
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Interest held by controlled corporations 272,496,000 30.18%
BRA S 4 REEE AR (Note) (Fff&E)
Beneficial owner 14,040,000 1.56%
EmBEA
286,536,000 31.74%
Mr. Chan Yip Keung Beneficial owner 6,888,000 0.76%
B 358 5 A EmEB A

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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B. Long position in the underlying shares of the B. WRAATRHEBERONGFE (BEYEE
Company (physically settled unlisted equity FETRASTETLR) — BIRE

derivatives) — share options

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name of director Capacity/nature of interest underlying shares the Company*
EEARREN
EEHR B REmtE HERGHE BRED
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Beneficial owner 900,000 0.10%
BRA 4 ERBEEA
Mr. Chan Yip Keung Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.33%
PREE SRS EREEA
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.17%
BRELE EREEA
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.17%
BT A EnEAA
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
PriERsE s EREBA
Mr. Wong Kit Loong Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
mIEERE LA EmEAA
Mr. Wong Kam Pui Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
EgNita EmEAA
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
MEREE EREAA

Note: These shares were held by Starcorp Limited (for 224,176,000 shares) and s ZEBRHBXBRIELELEHBENZHAORA
Smartbase Investments Limited (for 48,320,000 shares), corporations wholly Starcorp Limited 5 Smartbase Investments Limited 73

owned and controlled by Mr. Tang Yiu Sing. R4 224,176,000 A% A% 15 K2 48,320,000 A7) ©

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares/equity derivatives * BEBOLLIEME R T @B BATAETAESRE R
involved divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March AARRRIR202243 A31 BB EB/TRMHEE -
2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the directors or chief — [& F XX FTEEIN - N2022F3 A31 B » &R 7
executive of the Company had registered an interest or a short position in the ~ TEZE st = Z/TIA B R AA & =k A EE (F
shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its % R EF MHIE KM EXVER) 2 K - HERGD
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which &% » Z:0 A EREE 5 L HE (5015 352 (5
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the  #E ks R IEZESTRIZBHE@ AR 7 KRBT 2
register maintained by the Company referred to therein, or which were — #EzZAR °

required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed minimum public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the following parties (other than the directors or chief
executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and
as the Company is aware:

RAZIBIFRE
REARATAHEEZENRBEFHA  RA
FEAM  AAREAR ETRAETRENEE

RIEARFHE -

FERRNRORBBERD 2EER
KRB

R2022F3A31H U TFEA(RRFEFTHEE
TBRABBRIN RADQ B G SBBR M P #EE AR
BRIRIEEF R EEAEI6IEZEEFTEZR
HERMAKRAR BT ERETOAR ¢

Number of shares (L) Approximate

RBBEL) percentage*

Beneficial Corporate Family Concert Total of shareholding

Name of shareholder owner interest interest party interest in the Company
EADARES

BR#EZ,/ 2B BREGA ARER FikER —BTBAL BREE BRI

Smartbase Investments Limited 48,320,000 -
(Note 2) (Fi5£2)

Starcorp Limited 224,176,000 -
(Note 2) (Fi5£2)

Century Fortress Limited 130,800,000 -
(Note 3) (fi5£3)

Great Ganton Investments Limited 103,678,000 -
(Note 3) (i5£3)

Tang Shing-bor (deceased) (Note 3) 9,400,000 234,478,000
B (B40) (M7 3) (Note 3) (Bi{7£3)
Pine Active Care Limited 135,304,000 -

(Note 4) (fizx4)

Silverage Pillar Limited - 135,304,000
(Note 4) (Fit5E4)

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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- - 224,176,000 (L) 24.83%
- - 130,800,000 (L) 14.49%
- - 108,678,000 (L) 11.48%
- - 243,878,000 (L) 27.01%
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Number of shares (L) Approximate
BRHRAWL) percentage*
Beneficial Corporate Family Concert Total of shareholding
Name of shareholder owner interest interest party interest  in the Company
AR RER
BEREE /1B BREGA ARER FikELR —HTBAL BRBHE BRI
Silverage Pine Care Limited - 135,304,000 - - 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
(Note 4) (7 4)
Yim Ting Kwok 4,568,000 135,304,000 - - 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%
BEH (Note 5) (Fif35)  (Note 4) (Fi7E4)
Cho Wing Yin - 135,304,000 - 4,568,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%
EIK (Note 4) (fif5£4) (Note 5) (Fit3%5)
Ng Kwok Fu Alex - 135,304,000 - 4,568,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%
REE (Note 4) (fif5£4) (Note 5) (Fit3%5)
Suen Mi Lai Betty - 135,304,000 - - 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
HEB (Note 4) (Bi3E4)
Yim Billy Pui Kei 320,000 135,304,000 - - 135,624,000 (L) 15.02%
BmE (Note 4) (fif5£4)
Yim Edwin Pui Hin - 135,304,000 - - 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
et (Note 4) (Fif5x4)
Lock Hiu Yan Crystal - - 135,304,000 - 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
il (Note 6) (HiEE6)
Cheung Sui Wa Scarlett - - 135,624,000 - 135,624,000 () 15.02%
Rz (Note 7) (&£ 7)
Chu Lai King - 135,304,000 - - 135,304,000 () 14.99%
KBR (Note 4) (F1zE4)
vy o L AT 137
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Notes:

The letter “L” represents long position in the shares of the Company.

The above interests of Smartbase Investments Limited and Starcorp Limited were
also disclosed as the interests of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

The late Mr. Tang Shing-bor passed away on 14 May 2021. Century Fortress
Limited and Great Canton Investments Limited are corporations wholly-owned
and controlled by the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor. Accordingly, the late Mr. Tang
Shing-bor was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Century Fortress
Limited and Great Canton Investments Limited.

These shares are held by Pine Active Care Limited, which is owned as to 90% by
Silverage Pine Care Limited and 10% by Silverage Pillar Limited. Silverage Pine
Care Limited is in turn owned as to an aggregate of 74.25% by Mr. Yim Ting
Kwok, Ms. Cho Wing Yin (spouse of Mr. Yim Ting Kwok), Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex,
Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty (spouse of Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex), Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, Mr.
Yim Edwin Pui Hin and Ms. Chu Lai King (senior management of the Company);
whereas Silverage Pillar Limited is in turn owned as to an aggregate of 93.58% by
Mr. Yim Ting Kwok and Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex. Therefore, Silverage Pine Care
Limited, Silverage Pillar Limited, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Ms. Cho Wing Yin, Mr. Ng
Kwok Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty, Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin
and Ms. Chu Lai King are deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company
held by Pine Active Care Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex and Ms. Cho Wing Yin entered into the
Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking on 7 September 2016, pursuant
to which they would vote as a group (by themselves and/or through companies
controlled by them) at the shareholder and/or board levels. Accordingly, Mr. Ng
Kwok Fu Alex and Ms. Cho Wing Yin are deemed to be interested in these shares
held by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, based on the said acting-in-concert relationship
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Lock Hiu Yan Crystal is deemed to be interested in these shares through the
interest of her spouse, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin.

Ms. Cheung Sui Wa Scarlett is deemed to be interested in these shares through
the interest of her spouse, Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March 2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person, other than the
directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, none of
directors of the Company was interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 28 October 2019, Pine Care Elderly Home Development Limited (“Pine
Care EHD”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and certain
subsidiaries of the Company as borrowers entered into a facilities agreement
(the “Facilities Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender, pursuant
to which certain loan facilities, comprising a term loan in an aggregate amount
of HK$350,000,000 have been granted to Pine Care EHD (in which
approximately 97.2% and 2.8% of the loan amount will be matured on 28
January 2025 and 28 February 2025, respectively).

The Facilities Agreement together with a revising banking facility letter issued
by the lender in June 2020 has, among other things, imposed a specific
performance covenant on Mr. Tang Yiu Sing to maintain as the largest single
shareholder of the Group as well as maintain control over the management
and business of the Group. Failure to comply with the aforesaid covenant by
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing will constitute an event of default, and the lender shall have
the right to declare the term loan has become immediately due and payable,
and any undrawn balance of the term loan shall automatically be cancelled
and no longer be available to Pine Care EHD to be cancelled and/or all or part
of outstanding amounts under this term loan, together with accrued interest
and all other sums payable to be immediately due and payable.

v,

o N %q«%

M EXCHHEESN 202238310 BEE(HE
BEHNEXEEZEREETHRABRES - 18
% BT AL

B (5P 55 336 1R E LSk 2 SRR ©

BT R 7
R—BEBBRTE L2 BAMBIRS  HER
R A B RRIIEE T «

EERHBEER 2 ERS

KEBFERESAEEREAS HEAATE
TR BT E I B AT R R
WEOEALHD  HAARE ETRAEL BB
s -

ERBRNEERY

MH2019F 10 A28 H « IAlREERZER AR AR ([
REZR] ARRNEEZ2EWBAR) RARAF
HTHBRR(EAEBRAN) BEERITERAR (E
BREFNFIURmERZ((RMERED Bt 5T
ExXptE - EheIiE8$%4350,000,000%8 THE
HEREE TIREER(EP D RIX97.2% 12.8%
HEREEB» BIR2025F1 A28 B K& 20254 2
A28 HEIH) -

MEWE  ERERAR2020F 6 B EITHEATR
TRVE M E (R B1E) HER A T A S EE
DR AR ERREEZEKE — BRI
AR RESAREE R REBHOEH - HERA
ERBEEIT LR FERENEN  MERAE
RS Mo B E SR BN B B A A B A 5R0R - R fRTR
B E S E SRR B BEUE - THHNEREE
B A &St B BB R TR 2 BBk B REE K
B OERZRFNERMAEMEN RS ERD
WA A FE ST RRIA o

A e WA R 2 )
2022 F R

139



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company and its associated
companies is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under

review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (consisting of the four independent non-executive
directors of the Company) has reviewed with management of the Company
the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young had acted as the auditor of the Company for FY2020. At the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13 April 2021, Ernst &
Young was removed as the Company’s auditor, and PricewaterhouseCoopers
was appointed as the Company’s auditor which is to hold office until the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM of the Company. Please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 24 March 2021 for details of the change in the Company’s
auditor.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2022 were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the 2022 AGM. A resolution will be
submitted to the 2022 AGM to seek shareholders’ approval on the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pine Care Group Limited
Tang Yiu Sing

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 21 June 2022
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To the Shareholders of Pine Care Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pine Care Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 148
to 243, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

ERVER
HMEREEESHM RS EMOCEBRAERD
EITERR c RAEZZERN T RENEECELR
= I REMREGA VB MERAENEE] P
1R — AR -

HPEE  RPIMESHBREREERT R B
REMNERREER -

By %
REEEEMASRAN(EESAMBEERST
ADATERE TR AR S5E - ¥
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BRETSEIR
RRBSTASRBRMNERHE  RAHAH
FAMBRRNEFTZR/EENSEH - ELFHE
ERMBAEREAMBRRALH AT RRETR
BE - KM T EHELERERBUNER -

BMER T HER M BERES AT

. AR ERT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEREBEETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

R R E AL

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements
FE2MEAM B mRMEE4 %20

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying value of the Group’s goodwill
amounted to HK$33.8 million in the consolidated statement of
financial position, which arose from the acquisition of companies
principally engaged in the provision of elderly home care services.

R2022F3A31H - EEERGEMBHRARTNEEREE
/%33,800,000/87C - DELBWETIENFRHALERERED

NS

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

BMEEREREFENERTEE

° Assess the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and the
judgement involved in management’s impairment
assessment of goodwill;
FRERMEFTIREEENIEE RE R EEREREN Y
KE)HIET - SR EREREUARE S =R

° Understand and evaluate management’s internal controls
and processes in determining the assumptions adopted in
the goodwill impairment assessment;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

FIEE TS IE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ETNAEEBRRENSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

BT BB T (4F)

Management is required to perform a goodwill impairment
assessment at least on an annual basis. For the purpose of
performing impairment assessment, goodwill is allocated to the
cash generating units (“CGUSs”). The recoverable amount of the
CGUs is based on fair value less costs of disposal calculations
relating to the CGU with reference to the external valuation
performed by a third party property valuer (“Valuer”) on the
underlying properties of the CGU. Management concluded that no
impairment provision was required on the Group’s goodwill at 31
March 2022.
Féiﬁ@@;ﬁid\ti?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ o BLETTRERNMEMS - &
SEEReELFBEM((REEEEM]D - fﬁ%éiﬁfﬁE’JT
H&@%%EE%EAEE$F$$14§E§E’J AREREERAGE £
EE=ZFMELEM(HEMDEREEELE m*azm;&
ﬁEI’W\\uMETE c BIRERA  N2022F3A31BHAR BE
B ETH R E R

We focused on this area as the goodwill impairment assessment
made by management involved significant estimates and
judgements, primarily the fair value of the underlying properties in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs.

HPIEPRULEE - DR EREEROREREN S RER
Er Rl - T2RERETREESFEMNTTKE SRR
BMENRAE -

o Obtain from management the goodwill impairment
assessment and test the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations;

WER EREGHERENM - WA E SRR

o Involve our internal valuation experts in the evaluation of the

appropriateness of the methodology and the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used in determining the fair value of
the underlying properties of the CGUs with reference to
market data;

BHPMABAEER2ENSHE  TAECHSEESE
B ERIAEMB I ENESERERRENSE
M

o Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;
FHEHEMNERE - e REHM

o Evaluate the sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in
the revenue growth rates, the discount rates and the fair
value of the underlying properties on the recoverable
amount of the CGUs; and
AN RIS RE MRERABEYEAABENSIEA S
PUHMEELEFMATRESENRRE &

o Assess the disclosures on the impairment assessment of
goodwill, specifically the key assumptions that had the
most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the CGUSs.
AHEEEREENRE  CESHETReEE BN
A Bl A RERNZENMRMRR

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions used in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supportable in light of available evidence.

RIBPRATTEE 7 - RIMERAERENEPE AN ERER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Tsang Nga Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 June 2022

(If there is any inconsistency between English and Chinese versions of this independent
auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022  # %2022 3H31H I F/E

REVENUE

Other income and gains/(losses), net
Amortisation
Depreciation
Staff costs
Multidisciplinary fees and related expenses
Property rental and related expenses
Food and beverage costs
Utility expenses
Supplies and consumables
Repair and maintenance
Hygienic and cleaning expenses
Other operating expenses
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of amount due from a
joint venture
Finance costs
Share of loss of a joint venture

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expenses

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENTS

Basic and diluted (Hong Kong cents)

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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FEiEER (BE),BF
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Note
Mz

12
17

13

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
267,749 245,706
945 477
(806) (3,092)
(57,247) (56,841)
(117,803) (88,328)
(15,304) (10,189)
(9,489) (6,906)
(10,232) (9,561)
(7,555) (6,893)
(7,618) (7,565)
(2,486) (3,151)
(1,461) (1,270)
(16,833) (11,324)
(5,814) -
(9,910) -
(10,477) (14,543)
(13,327) (15,838)
(17,668) 10,682
(6,321) (7,468)
(23,989) 3,214
(20,633) 5,860
(3,356) (2,646)
(23,989) 3,214
(2.3) 0.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 March 2022  # %2022 3H31H 1L F/E

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations attributable to non-controlling
interests and others

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

FE(BR) 57

Hit2mE (F8) WA

BTEnERAHERDHRE

BErHMbEE(ER), A

SRR R R EBINETR
EAEMEN ZR L HEAM

HRERBREN D EEREMN
Hib 2w (EE), WA

BREBIINEBEENER 28R
FEAMEE(HE) WA
FE2E(BE) BWALE

VAT & T3 R4
REEBA
FERERR M 2

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FiEIT
(23,989) 3,214
(17) 226

(18) 236

(35) 462
(24,024) 3,676
(20,651) 6,096

(3,373) (2,420)
(24,024) 3,676
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B IR D 2R

As at 31 March 2022 R202243H31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L/ E TN
Intangible assets mREE

Investment in a joint venture

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Goodwill

Investment in insurance contract

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Deferred tax assets

Due from a joint venture

N—HEERENKRE

BN IR - e N E AR

kS
RIRBEEHNRE
RASERABENEREE

BEHAEE
JEY —fE A REFIA

Total non-current assets ERBEERT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE

Due from a joint venture U —FEEEDERIE
Trade receivables B S RWGIE

Tax recoverable AT U Bl R IE

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

BNA - ke RAMRERERIA

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESZEY
Total current assets MEEEMERE
Assets held for sales FHEHENEE
Total assets BEE

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBRE

Trade payables B SN RIE

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Hopth A 008 N FE R B

FHRIRITRER

Lease liabilities HEAE

Tax payable FESEEIE

Total current liabilities PEDN=NEEGE
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT mEERABER

LIABILITIES

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Note
I 5E

14
16
17

19
20
21

22
30
17

17
18

19
23

38

24
25
26
15

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
931,190 772,663
2,287 3,093
- 5,565
14,444 6,899
33,833 33,833
3,371 3,261
24,937 -
4,621 6,222
4,376 -
1,019,059 831,536
- 21,076
7,762 6,708
1,051 1,226
3,101 15,901
29,083 49,687
40,997 95,498
28,854 -
1,088,910 927,034
1,272 2,426
29,066 15,592
125,102 84,648
33,837 25,837
7,024 7,130
196,301 135,633
(155,304) (40,135)
892,609 791,401
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
i o A IR DL 2 (%)

As at 31 March 2022 R202243H31H

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5E FERT FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 26 458,505 518,287
Lease liabilities HEAaE 15 199,168 50,243
Other payables and accruals Eith &< I8 R FEETE A 25 5,982 5,444
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEEE 30 12,420 13,240
Total non-current liabilities ERBAERTE 676,075 587,214
Liabilities directly associated with assets EFEHEMEE
held for sale HEEENAE 38 33,049 -
Total liabilities BEEHE 905,425 722,847
Net assets EEFE 183,485 204,187
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AELER
of the parent
Issued capital BT A 27 9,029 9,029
Reserves B 29 173,851 191,180
182,880 200,209
Non-controlling interests IEIE IR R = 605 3,978
Total equity e 183,485 204,187
Tang Yiu Sing Chan Yip Keung
RS BREE
Director Director
2 4
s LA MR AN 151

2022 F 3R



152

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & 220223 H31HIFF/E

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAES
Retained
Share Exchange profits/ Non-
Issued  premium Merger Other  fluctuation (accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserves reserve loss) Total interests equity
BE#f v EZE RERH/ FER
A& HEE  AbRE  HbRE Btk (RHER) 5t B  ER4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TiEn TR TER TET TR TR TET TiEn
(Note 26)
GEPD)
At 1 April 2021 Ro021 5418 9,029 148,770 33,798 2432 (250) 6430 200,209 3,978 204,187
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (20,633) (20,633) (3,356) (23,989)
Other comprenensive loss FEAMZAER
forthe year - - - - (18) = (18) (17) (35)
Total comprehensive loss FE2EERLE
for the year - - - - (18) (20,633)  (20,651) (3,373) (24,024)
Grant of share options RiiBhE - - - 3,322 - - 3,322 - 3,32
At 31 March 2022 H202%43A318 9,029 148,770 33,798 5,754 (268) (14,203 182,880 605 183,485
PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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For the year ended 31 March 2022  # %2022 3H31H 1L F/E

o N7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEEARLE
Share Exchange Non-
Issued premium Merger Other  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserves resenve profits Total interests equity
BEfT kia i3 Rk
TR HERE  AbEE bR HiE  REEN &t ks EREE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
(Note 26) (Note 28)
(B3t 26) (Fi3t28)
At 1 April 2020 20205418 9,029 148,770 33,798 2432 (486) 6,710 200,253 6,398 206,651
Profit/loss) for the year ERET/(BB) - - - - - 5,860 5,860 (2,646) 3214
Other comprenensive income/ ~ £EE 2 E

(loss) for the year WA/ (EB) - - - - 236 - 2% 26 462
Total comprehensive income/ £ 2 AU/

(loss) for the year (828 - - - - 236 5,860 6,09 (2,420) 3676
Finel dividend AERS 3 - - - - - (6,140) (6,140) - (6,140)
At 31 March 2021 202143 A318 9,09 148,770 33,798 2432 (250) 6,430 200,209 3978 204,187

A % AR A R A

2022 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mablamaR

For the year ended 31 March 2022  # %2022 3H31H I F/E

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation
Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract
Change in provision for long service payments, net
Share option expense
Share of loss of a joint venture
Impairment on assets held for sale
Impairment on amount due from a joint venture
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Interest received

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings paid
Interest elements of lease payments

Net cash from operating activities

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Note
i
RETBHRERERE
BrEi AT (B51R), 15 F
BTRFIEIEEL AR
IBEIDRN 12
FLEWA 6
ME - BERZETE 8
FEREEERE 8
S 8
REEEHHRREEEES
6
RERRM I RS BT
AR
HME—EEELEESRE 17
FEHENEERE

A ELEFIERE
BRREFABENEREE

RAEED
B U
TAHOR - e RAAAER
SR

EHENFECRD),
HpENFA M E R
/()

BEmERe
BENEBMED
B E

s ERITERENFE
HENFTMFEED

LIRS IR e TR

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(17,668) 10,682
10,477 14,543
= O
16,473 15,285
40,774 41,556
806 3,092
(110) (118)
538 400
3,322 -
13,327 15,838
5,814 -
9,910 -
63 -
83,726 101,277
(1,054) (1,187)
(558) (12,812)
(1,154) 397
16,654 (3,385)
97,614 84,290
(5,471) (6,689)
= 1
(8,898) (12,150)
(6,575) (2,393)
76,670 63,059
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
i Bl i Ak (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2022  # %2022 3H31H 1L F/E

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i TERT FAT
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHAERERE
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BELLEEE
plant and equipment (39,137) (6,870)
Increase of financial assets at fair value through BAREFABRED
profit or loss SREERN (19,188) -
Increase in an amount due JE U — [ & & (b S TR N
from a joint venture (72) (13,055)
Net cash used in investing activities BEEEMAESFE (58,397) (19,925)
Cash flows from financing activities RETEREHERE 32(b)
New bank loans HIRTTER 158,131 20,000
Repayment of bank loans BEIETER (177,459) (16,316)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFEHD (19,017) (18,120)
Dividends paid BERRE - (6,140)
Net cash used in financing activities A RHFTAR S FE (38,345) (20,576)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRREZBYWORD)
cash equivalents #hnEEE (20,072) 22,558
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E%}]Lﬁ% RE&ZEBY 49,687 27,767
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes REFF )L (207) (638)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERAESRBESEEY 29,408 49,687
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESEEBYERIT
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHER 29,083 49,687
Cash and bank balances of a subsidiary reclassified 25 %75 48 A5 /4 &S M B EH)
as assets held for sale —HHBRRNEE R
IRITHER 38 325 -
29,408 49,687
s LA MR AN 155
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it 4 B ik

31 March 2022 202243H31H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Pine Care Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street, Tsz
Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in the

provision of senior care services.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$155.3 million. Included in its current liabilities were mainly
lease liabilities of HK$33.8 million and interest-bearing borrowings of
HK$125.1 million which included revolving bank loan facilities of
HK$39.9 million and a bank loan of HK$6.7 million which is not
contractually due within the next twelve months from 31 March 2022
but classified as current liability due to the bank’s overriding rights to
demand repayment. Undrawn facilities amounted to HK$10.5 million as
at 31 March 2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NAREEEHR
MikEEEBBRAT(ARAA]) A —HER
MEHSTMAIMNBRAR - KABHIF
fit #% =% B #b 4 A Cricket Square, Hutchins
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SR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors have
given careful consideration of the liquidity and performance of the
Group, various investments and capital expenditure plans and the
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern. The
Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management which covers a period of twelve months to 31 March
2023. The Directors have taken into account of the following
considerations in assessing the sufficiency of working capital
requirements for the next twelve months:

1. the cashflows generated from its operations;

2. a refinanced bank loan in May 2022 of HK$37.4 million which
was originally contractually due in June 2022 to a period up to
May 2025;

3. the continued roll over of the revolving bank loan facilities of
HK$39.9 million with similar terms and the bank loan of HK$6.7
million will not be required to be repaid according to the
contractual repayment schedule notwithstanding the rights to
demand clause in these facilities (“revolving/other loans”) facilities;
and

4, new bank loan of HK$6 million (“new loan”) was obtained by the
Group subsequent to the year end on 6 April 2022 and unutilised
credit facilities of the Group which may be drawn if necessary.

Based on the cash flow projections and taking into account reasonably
possible downside changes to the cash flow assumptions in the cash
flow projections for the twelve months ending 31 March 2023, the
successful continued availability of the revolving/other loans facilities as
well as the new and refinanced loans and undrawn credit facilities
available to the Group, the Directors consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2022.
Accordingly, the Directors of the Company consider it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

2.1 REEE g

RBRRRETHREN  REHAEERS
BRMNVBERSELCERN EEEHE
EEAEENRHESRERR ATHRER
EARSTE  UREDEAEIANRE
KR EFERHEEBHREINEE2023F
3A31B12(A AN ARER S R=TEA -
EERTHART_EAREESE RN
EREBEFEATEERE

1. HEZMFRERE

2. FRIREAGIERN2022F 6 A B HIH
$R 77 B 70 37,400,000 7T A 20226 5
ABRIEE 202565 A

3.  HENBLUGRFERBRRITESIRE
39,900,000 7T + LA }26,700,000/% 7T
EIRITERBARBESOERRRERX
N BEZERE(ER/EMBER]D
PR IRESREEGK - &

4, AEBERFRETE2022F 4 A6 HEE
#7877 5 506,000,00078 7T ([#EFH])
MASEEASAEERE (AR UEE
BA) °

BRI &M E T8 KR EH R # 2 20234 3 A 31
HE+=ZEANRESREEAANNBESRE
SR A IR RE T ITEE - N BB R ELA
fEiR/HAa BB A LA R Al AR EE A

AEBARHNZEED W EHH2022F3
A1 BEEARRT —EARRNSHEEE -
Hit  ARABEERRRIFELEELE RS
RAUBHREAE -

o i AR AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment in
insurance contract which has been measured at cash surrender value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

(@) Amendments to standards effective in the
current accounting period

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKAS 39,

HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

The adoption of these amendments to standards does not have
any significant change to the accounting policies or any
significant effect on the results and financial position of the
Group.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2.1

2.2
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) New standard, amendments to standards and
interpretation not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

The following new standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation have been published which are mandatory for the

Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to Annual

Improvements Project
Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

Revised Accounting
Guideline 5
Amendments to HKAS 1

HKFRS 17

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020"

Narrow-scope amendments(”

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Insurance Contracts®

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a
single transaction®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

M Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

© Effective date is to be determined

v,

A (@ -
é N 2 2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

New standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the

(b)

impact of these new standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation and does not expect that they would have any

significant impact on its results and financial position.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted for the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements, which have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated, are set out below:

(@

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

U]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which controls is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note
3(b)).

Intra-group balances, transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)

U]

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 3(n)(iii)).

Joint venture

Investments in joint arrangements are classified either as
joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined them to be a joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(i)

Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. For equity
accounting purpose, accounting policies of the joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all

business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments

or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for

the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities

assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The

Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired

entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or

at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the

acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in

the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 3(n)
(iii)). The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see Note 3(j)).

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets, less

their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line

method over their estimated useful lives at annual rates as

follows:

Land and buildings, Over the lease term
including right-of-use assets

Furniture, fixtures, other 14%-30%

equipment

20%-33%

Over the shorter of lease term
and 10%-20%

Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings and renovation
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and available for intended
use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable. Lease payments
to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions. The Group determines the incremental
borrowing rate by using recent third-party financing received with
adjustments specific to the term of the leases.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-

(d)

()

value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an

expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a

lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor

is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased

assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position based on their nature.

Intangible assets

U]

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 20. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments (note 7).

Goodwill impairment is described in note 3(n)(ii).

Licences

Purchased licences are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 8 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

(f)

U]

(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognises trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, deposits and borrowings on the
date on which they are originated. All other financial
instruments are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date on which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability (unless it is trade and
other receivables without a significant financing
component) is measured initially at fair value plus, in the
case of an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of financial
assets or liabilities carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit
or loss. Trade and other receivables without a significant
financing component are initially measured at transaction
price.

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade payable and accruals are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Trade and other receivables, including balances due from
group companies are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost. All other financial assets are classified and
measured at fair values.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair
values. Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
profit or loss. Trade and other payables, including
balances due to group companies, interest-bearing
borrowings and convertible bonds are classified as
financial liabilities at amortised cost. The Group does not
have financial liability measured at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

(i)

(iv)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial
asset. The Group enters into transactions whereby it
transfers assets recognised on its consolidated statement
of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In such
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the
Group’s trading activity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on
hand, demand deposits with banks, and short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group.

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises different types of revenue, as follows:

(i) Revenue from the rendering of senior care services and
provision of health care services is recognised when the
services are rendered over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis as customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits provided by the Group.

(ii) Revenue from the sale of senior care related goods is
recognised at a point in time when the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers.

The period between the transfer of promised goods and
services to the customers and payments by customers
usually is within one year, as a result, there is no financing
component which requires adjustment of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

If the payments by customers exceed the services rendered, a
contract liability is recognised as receipts in advance on the
consolidated statement of financial position. If the services
rendered exceed the payments by customers and unconditional
rights to contract consideration to date, a contract asset is
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i

0)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,

is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively. Current tax is the
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available. Additional
income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the entity
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met: (i) In the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or (i) In the
case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

1) the same taxable entity; or

) different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar. The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Translation of foreign currency (Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair values are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Related parties
i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

2 has significant influence over the Group; or

3 is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Related parties (Continued)
(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third parties.

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in ().

(7) A person identified in ()(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets

(n)

U]

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for lifetime
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables. For
bank balances, and deposits and other receivables for
which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowances
are measured as 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are
the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs and presentation of ECLs in the
consolidated statement of financial position
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.

They are measured as follows:

° financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive);

o financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows;

o undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group if the commitment is
drawn down and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive; and

° financial guarantee contracts: the expected
payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts

that the Group expects to recover.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

U]

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs and presentation of ECLs in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the
loss allowance is charged to profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use
calculation. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units).
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o right-of-use assets;

o other intangible assets;

o investment in a joint venture; and

o investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

° Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use calculation. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

3

FESHBEREE @)

(n)

BEBE®)

(iii)

Hitt EERE
NERERNREFEABLEINGE
BHR - ADPETHEEER
HIRRE - KRR ES
BABFERARERINTR

. ERN N
. EREEE
. Hitn B EE

. R—HE2LENRE:
3

. RAR B BB R —
B A RHRE -

WMAWEFEPRFH - BfaT%E
ERMRTUEI S - thoh - HRE
R B A EMBIAET A 2
RERZBVEEMS  ASF
BT E &% - AT A A H
BRENBR

. YOl & B E
BHEENATRESER
HARERELERAR
EREEMEREROR
=& o EAEERGR R
REVER & 8 AT AT 2 Bh
REBLI[BERN - B3R
KRERL R E AT AR T 5T
EHeERBERZEE
ENRBERR - E—HE
ETRBYINEMEEE
ERERER - EIAEE
YEARSREBMNRN—
HEERIREeELEM)
REMEEANEEHE -



3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)
o Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

o Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), who are the
executive directors of the Company for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(P)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of reporting
period.

(i)  Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when they are settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3

FE

SETBORBEE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Pension plans
Pension plans are classified into defined benefit and
defined contribution plans.

Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income so as to spread the regular cost
over the future service lives of employees in accordance
with the advice of the actuaries who carry out a valuation
of the plans. The pension obligation is measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows using
the interest rates determined by reference to market yields
at the end of reporting period based on high quality
corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the
estimated term of benefit obligations. All actuarial gains
and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they
occur, in other comprehensive income.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year incurred.

Pension costs are charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within staff costs.

The pension plans are generally funded by the relevant
group companies by payments from employees for
contributory plans.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants are deducted in reporting the related expenses, when
appropriate.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Investment in insurance contract

The Group invests in a key management insurance contract,
which contain both investment and insurance elements. The life
insurance contracts are initially recognised at the amount of
premium paid, and subsequently measured at each reporting
date at its cash surrender value. Changes to the cash surrender
value at each reporting date will be recognised in profit or loss as
“other income and gains”. In the event of death of the insured
person, the surrender of the policies, or the policies mature, the
investment will be derecognised and any resulting gains/losses
will be recognised in profit or loss.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets and investment property that are carried
at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group) but
not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date
of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are of a disposal group)
are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale or of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options
and incentive shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total
amount expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At each financial position date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options and incentive shares that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to employee share-
based compensation reserve.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
values of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(@

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. For the purpose of performing impairment
assessment, goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units.
The recoverable amount of the cash generating units is the
higher of value-in-use calculations which are based on
discounted future cash flows and fair value less costs of disposal
calculations relating to the cash generating units with reference
to the external valuation performed by a third party property
valuer on the underlying properties of the cash generating units .
The Group is required to make estimates and judgements on the
fair value of the underlying properties in determining the
recoverable amount of the cash generating units. Further details
are given in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is an indication that an asset (including the right-of-use
assets) may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. For details, refer to Note 22.

Amount due from a joint venture

The measurement of ECL of amount due from a joint venture is
measured as either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, through the management’s critical assessment
on the recoverable amounts based on cash flows from underlying
assets, the actual and expected changes in business
performance and general market default rate. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s businesses. The Group’s exposure to

these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices

used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

()

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
joint venture, and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a
defined credit policy in place with general credit terms ranging
from O to 30 days in respect of goods and services provided.
The exposure to credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk from
customers receivables as the customers’ bases are widely
dispersed, except for a single external customer which accounts
for approximately 82.3% (2021: 57.4%) of the total trade

receivables.

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables was
determined using the simplified approach based on individual
assessment of each customer. Expected credit loss allowance
was estimated based on the assessment of probability of default,
recovery rate, exposure at default, the historical credit loss
experience, historical payment pattern and adjusted for forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.

The Group also assessed the loss allowance on deposits and
other receivables by individual assessment on 12 months’
expected loss basis as there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. These assets are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account past experiences, forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors and other factors. As at 31 March
2022 and 2021, the loss allowance for deposits and other

receivables was immaterial.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

Amount due from a joint venture is continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the counter party, taking into
account past experiences, forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors and other factors. During the year ended
31 March 2022, an impairment of amount due from a joint
venture of HK$9,910,000 (2021: Nil) was recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly placed with good credit
quality financial institutions so the credit risk is considered to be
low. No loss allowance had been provided under general ECL
assessment. The exposure to credit risks is closely monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group carries out regular review to
minimise exposure to credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, due from a joint venture and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5 BIXRERERE®
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REEZRE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient EENRDECREREIRIEEFTTEN
cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of iﬁi FBR BN AL EEMERE
committed credit facilities and its compliance with lending BESMNEEBTERZHENB R - K
covenants. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance EIE’] EF}%%LEFHJWE AR E
between the continuity of funding and the flexibility through use SEEMETEEM 2 ME A o b
of interest bearing borrowings. As disclosed in note 2.1, certain H2APTHE  EEEEREUE TREMN
measures have been taken by the Directors to manage the EERAEEFAEENREESMRN - B
liquidity position faced by the Group. As at 31 March 2022, the 2022F3A31H AEBEABEKRBAE
Group has available unutilised borrowing facilities of XA E 49 410,500,0007% 7T (2021 4F -
approximately HK$10,500,000 (2021: HK$12,238,000). Details 12,238,000/ 7T ) ° RITIERFBHRN
of bank borrowings are set out in note 26. The following table MfizE26 o TRIIRANEBNIETES R
shows the remaining contractual maturities (excluding BERRESHRNE T AR EE R
classification impact of repayment on demand clause) of the BRIRESREBERDEZE) - JIiEE
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities at the end of the AHRBRASRE (BEFEHASHT
reporting period, which are based on contractual undiscounted oy (g% 8) IR IE RS HIR eV BN ER A
cash flows (including interest payments computed using RABENF BN B -
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period):
At 31 March 2022
R2022F3A31H
Carrying
Total amount in
contractual the statement
Within Between Between Over undiscounted of financial
1year 1and2years 2and5years 5years cash flows position
AHAEE REBRRER
—FR -BZf —EEf BBRIF REREAE THEELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THx Tix FEL FEL FEL
Trade payables BHEMNHE 1,212 - - - 1,212 1,272
Lease liabilties REAE 45,057 33,122 92,346 124,153 294,677 233,005
Other payables and acoruals HEtENTEREASER 28,167 - - - 28,167 28,167
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T 8 ER1TE T 128,370 44,067 353,403 93,466 619,306 583,607
202,866 77,189 445,749 217,619 943,422 846,051
B E 2 R A R A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

RAEMATR
Heak

Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 52 BATHE

(c) Interest rate risk

AMENTRREHER

5 HIBERER@
(b) REEERMR#Z)
At 31 March 2021
R202153A31H
Carrying
Total amount in
On demand contractual  the statement
or within Between Between Over  undiscounted of financial
iyear 1and2years 2andbyears 5 years cash flows position
REREET BNRER  REBRAR
—FR -B2f ZERF BRLE RENELE THRISE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TR TR T T
2,426 - - - 2,426 2,426
24,631 20,362 25,072 7,898 77,963 76,080
14,640 - - - 14,640 14,640
80,704 89,887 413,903 57,131 641,625 602,935
122,401 110,249 438,975 65,029 736,654 696,081
(c) FIZEpk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to

the Group’s bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong

Interbank Offered Rate or the best lending rate. The Group

mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest

rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The Group has

not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest

rate risk.

Apart from the foregoing, the Group has no other significant

income-generating financial assets or interest-bearing financial

liabilities. The Group’s revenue, expenses and cash flows are

substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Effective interest rates analysis
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing
financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective

SR bR e ()

=@ ()

BIRRR AT

Eﬁ%ﬂi”ﬂ(i\ﬂ’]iﬂﬁ?&? SERAE
TRETRERNRE RO ERF

interest rates at the end of the reporting period: $ :
Effective interest rate
BEBRRI=
2021 2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000 % %
Interest rate risk F 2= 2 By FHIT
Floating rates: SFEFIE
Cash at banks FHRRITHER S 49,687 0.00 0.00
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEMER 583,607 602,935 1.07-3.50 0.90-2.75

As at 31 March 2022, if the interest rates on borrowings had
been 75 basis point higher/lower, which was considered
reasonably possible by the management, with all other variables
held constant, the profit after tax for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$3.7 million (2021: HK$3.8 million) as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2021.

M202243 A31 B - HERF XRigE
BERAAEAEMIE N 75
A MABEMEBHERFTE - AIF
R BR 2 1% s ) B SR AT 18 SRR BB S 1
m/omAmim A M3 TE BB T
(20214 : 3.8B@EBTT) °

i&%iﬁﬁﬁk%i ' ﬂzﬂﬁﬁﬁéésﬁﬁﬁgzﬁé‘%
I T 5 A 7 SR B OR 50 7 5% B 1 e )
REBNERTIA  BAREEMNBRTIL
a N R AR M E LR AR 2 - A
SERBEHRFAEN TSN EIETE
TRMEANRSRENEERMN S
B SR B B BR B8 M R AR B A R
BT RA BN REHE T SR
ABFEELE - ZHMLEL2021 F 18
[ HEEHETT o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly conducted in Hong Kong.
Therefore, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign
currency risk, and hence the Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the
Company and benefits for other stakeholders of the Group, and
to support the Group’s stability and growth, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholders
return, taking into consideration the future of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or new debt financing. The Group made no changes
to its capital management objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year. The capital of the Group comprises equity and
borrowings in consolidated statement of financial position.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A %5t 2 Bt 5t (48)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5 HREEBEE®
(e) Capital management (Continued) e) E£EE#)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as RREBARNEEBGBLLRNOT ¢
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 25) &t S #8471& 3 (FiEE 25) 583,607 602,935
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IReRESZEEY (29,083) (49,687)
Net debts FAE 554,524 553,248
Total assets BEWRER 1,088,910 927,034
Gearing ratio BEARLEX 50.9% 59.7%
B E 2 R A R A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ 6 WHE-  Httl AR KSR (EE)
(LOSSES), NET FRE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AREBWZEDTWMT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT Tt

Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWE

Rendering of senior care services RELERE K REZERS 237,276 218,734
Sale of senior care related goods HHE LB HERA E m 30,473 26,972
267,749 245,706
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEHWE
()  Disaggregated revenue information i)y DFBEER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Timing of revenue recognition: Wz R A R R
Goods transferred at a point in time EmRE—REER 30,473 26,972
Services transferred over time PR BE R 82 237,276 218,734
Total revenue from contracts with customers % P & #0481 & 267,749 245,706

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022



6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/
(LOSSES), NET (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Rendering of senior care services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered in which the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group.

Sale of senior care related goods

The performance obligation is satisfied when the Group delivers
the goods to the customers and the control of the goods is
transferred to the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied (excluding those related to the contracts with an
original expected duration of one year or less) as at 31 March are
as follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised
as revenue of rendering of senior
care services:

—FR

—Fi&

Within one year
After one year

As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
those unsatisfied contracts which have an original expected
duration of one year or less is not disclosed.

6
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

Wz

Htw AR Wi, ()

REE ()
I EE )

(i)

B ERSRERERE R
REEERBKRANSHE

BHEE
FRAAEEREAOETHERBURIT -

et L ElL & REEEERY
RHEERRERBSERER RET - &
By 2 5 [ B MR B £ P A 5% [ B2 (1 A )

<

E\

HELEER AR &0
BHOBEEAREERATPZNEME R
BEMEHIRER TEPEET -

M3A31A  DEEERBREHEECK
BRSO RELN) X ZERES R
T EERRAHMEA —FRIAT
BAHEREE)

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx THET
112,781 110,687
- 110,688
112,781 221,375

WMBEBMBHREEAF IR ET
AARBEDEERBHHE R —FHA
THRBHENNZZEHE

o i AR AR A
2022 F R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

6

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ 6 Wik HttWw ARz (EHE)
(LOSSES), NET (Continued) REE ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEANWE &)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised as
revenue after one year related to senior care services, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within three years.
All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be

iy BHNEEE)

recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed 8o

above do not include variable consideration.

Other income and gains/(losses), net

Other income
Bank interest income
Rental income

Gains/(losses)

Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract

Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Others

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BN —FRERRERE 2D SR
HRENEENZSERSEERERS
EEERRBAR HEOEEER
=FNET - PEERBEOEENMR
FHMZSBERSBEMEN —F AR
RBRWsE- REZRTEREAIER

H AR Wi, (B18) F88

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT T
Hitrr A
RITASUA _ 1
HEHA 628 358
628 359
Wz (ER)
REBRAWHERRRSEEE
L 118
A ER A B
SRMEAENAMEE - i
s 270 -
317 118
945 477
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

7

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the provision of senior care services. Since
this is the only operating segment of the Group, no further operating
segment analysis thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue was derived primarily from its operations in Hong
Kong during the year and the non-current assets of the Group were
mainly located in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of HK$110,509,000 was derived from the Hong Kong
Government under the Enhanced Bought Place Scheme (“EBPS”)
(2021: HK$109,747,000, of which HK$107,915,000) from the EBPS,
and HK$1,832,000 from the provision of care support services and
necessities to persons in decanting centre), which amounted to more
than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

e s HER

RERME  AEEES—AT2HELEH
B MEREEREREEEERY - BN
HAKEEK—EEHH  HESIE— 5

Ea D ERDAT o

FR AEENRSEFEREEREBENL
& M 20224 K% 202143 A 31 BALED
ERBEEETBMURES -

EBE—R2FEEFNER
110,509,000 8 7T ) W 2 T B & 78 BUT 8 2 &=
Bt B ([ & Bfrstdl ) &4 (20214 ¢
109,747,000 7t » H 7 107,915,000 7T &
ME BN EIEE) & 1,832,0008 LB I 5
TRARMEERLATIREEETERE R
WEREE - RAEEWEE 10% °

A A M A R 2 ]

2022 F 3}
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

8 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

8

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of goods and consumables sold
Amortisation

Depreciation on owned assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets — land
Depreciation on right-of-use

assets — buildings

Less: Amount capitalised

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Staff costs:
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions
Provision for long service payments
Share option expenses
Directors’ remuneration

Net of:
Government grants of Employment Support
Scheme
Other government grants*

Impairment of amount due from a joint venture
Impairment of assets classified as held for sale
Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract
Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Expenses relating to variable lease payments
depending on the turnover not included
in lease liabilities

EEEmMBERREA
B

BEEENE
EREEE — e
EREEE — BFTONE

W BEMeeE

Gl ]
— BEIR
— JEEER

BT
TERFE
LW%%%T;
= B AR A R
BRI X
BEEHH

el

[RFLZE ] 5T EIE BT 7 B

HA R AT #EBY

el —RABRES

RBEHNRRES
{Bﬁ@kﬁi

BAREAER
AIRIEE- 3

A AHEAGBN

IEEENRE RN

(RTEEEmE)

# Various government grants have been received for the welfare of the
elderly in the Group’s elderly home care centres and Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund. There are no unfulfiled conditions

or contingencies relating to these grants.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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KIE R E
DEAREHENEERE

SRS REE

BREAD (B51R), Al
AE BB ATBIR), R TR (HA)
TR TR RS

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
17,850 17,126
806 3,092
16,473 15,285
18,644 18,644
34,960 22,912
70,077 56,841
(12,830) -
57,247 56,841
1,434 1,150
381 334
121,771 110,871
4,341 4,147
538 400
968 -
2,374 1,082
129,992 116,500
= (16,322)
(12,189) (11,850)
117,803 88,328
9,910 -
5,814 -
(110) (118)
63 -
2,111 843

# ERAEELERERERBT RRAERE
T [R5 EIUR Z B IRATHBY © 45
BEARMZSHPNAN R BEEE -



v,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

9

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5%.

Frig®i
ERFESHEEFARBBELE 2 HrTER
it A LA 16.5% (2021 4F © 16.5%) K Bt R 51
RRE - EAREE BB AR - ZAF
REBREARTGHMRBIOELE o ZM
B2 2,000,000 7t (2021 4F : 2,000,000
P TT) B FERR B i Bl 12 8.25% I Bl RN - £%
T ERRR I BIIE 16.5% B F RBF o

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT

Current — Hong Kong BIER — &BH
Charge for the year FRZ 5,594 8,384
(Over)/underprovision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETR (54) 77
Deferred (note 30) JRAE (F7E30) 781 (993)
Total tax charge for the year FRRIBER B 6,321 7,468

B E 2 R A R A

2022 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

9 INCOME TAX (Continued) 9
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates, are as follows:

BBiAT (B518), R H
DME—REeELEBIE

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Share of loss of a joint venture

Tax at the applicable tax rates REAB R ENTIE
Income not subject to tax BAERTMA
Expenses not deductible for tax I kT

Tax loss not recognised RUER 2 B e 18

Tax loss utilised from previous
periods

Tax effect of two-tiered profits
tax regime

Tax reduction

Others

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

BESMRZESRRBER

MSHRRG 2 RGTE

T
Al

BASBEERBREFTER
RElha

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$2,384,000
(2021: HK$1,334,000) in respect of losses amounting to
HK$11,352,000 (2021: HK$5,410,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income due to uncertainty in utilising the unused tax losses, of
which, HK$5,191,000 (2021: HK$5,191,000) will expire up to and
including 2026 and HK$2,759,000 will expire up to and including 2027
(2021: N/A).

200 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Fri8®t (@)
BARTREADD M ED TR TEE
BB S MR T B R A E AR BB A O
1B),/HANBIERY - RRERH RS EY
PR OHERNTT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
(17,668) 10,682
13,327 15,838
(4,341) 26,520
(951) 3,935
(18) (2,775)
6,512 5,215
1,214 1,334
(164) -
(165) (165)
(170) (153)

63 77

6,321 7,468

HRNERARDARBERBROTETE A%
[E 37 4% 74 11,352,000/ 70 (20214 © 5,410,000
T ) KB IRRE SRR IE B 7 & EE 2,384,00008
JL(20214F : 1,334,000/ 7T) * EA5,191,000
7 0 (20214 : 5,191,000 T ) B R H &
2026 F (BIEEF) (2021 4 : @A) #fE
Bf - 2,759,000 ST N B £ 2027 FF (BIEE
) (2021 F - TEA) HAREH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions
Share option expenses

we

HAb &

¥rd o EREEEWEN
RIS ETBIHR
BRI

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees and pension scheme contributions paid to independent

non-executive directors during the year were as follows:

2022

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai"

Mr. Wong Kam Pui*

Mr. Wong Kit Loong”

2022 F

LR LE
MERLE
EEpmEAL"
EERL"

10

EEREETHRAEHH

BiE LR R BB Q&P E383(1)@)
O) O MOEEAR(REESNEER) R
PIF 2B EZFNEE RERTHRAB M

mT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TAET
320 344

720 720

18 18

1,316 -
2,054 856
2,374 1,082

(@ BUFPITES
FRXNFBULFATEENHRSE RR

KREFFBIHRFIT

Share option

Fee expense Total
wE BRERX st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FHERT FHET
80 35 115
80 35 115
80 35 115
80 35 115
320 140 460

A % AR A R A

2022 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 05 e A i vk ()

31 March 2022 202243H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (Continued)

2021 2021 F

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang? BREESES
Dr. Wong Ping San John# EHFILEAES
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing® BEERELT
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony BriER st E
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai" MEREE"
Mr. Wong Kam Pui =P E"
Mr. Wong Kit Loong" EEEESLE"

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

10

BEERFETHAETM 2
(@) BUFEHITES (&)

Share option

Fee expense Total
e BRERX BEt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET
44 - 44

44 - 44

44 - 44

80 - 80

36 - 36

36 - 36

36 - 36
320 - 320

FERRERN TIBILIERITEENE M
M (20214 : &) »
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

10

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 EERFETBAEHM @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) HITES FHTEERTE
the chief executive 1ITHAE
Salaries,
allowances Pension Share
and benefits scheme option
Fees in kind contributions expenses Total
e 2K BiRE
e BEYEF SHEMER BRERX st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TEx TER TER TR
2022 2022
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing HRa ks - - - 153 153
Mr. Chan Yip Keung PRE®REE - 720 18 511 1,249
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing BRETE - - - 256 256
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching B R E - - - 256 256
- 720 18 1,176 1,914

Non-executive director: HEHTES
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong HEAmt - - = = -

= 720 18 1,176 1,914

o i AR AR A
2022 F R 203
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 05 e A i vk ()

31 March 2022 202243H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 EBRFETHAEETFMH =
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) BITEE  FHTESREIE
the chief executive (Continued) ITHAE (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e MR BRIRE
we YRR FEGE 45T
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT T T FHEIT
2021 2021 F
Executive directors: PITES -
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing BB A - - - -
Mr. Chan Yip Keung® PREJ A - 720 18 738
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing BRELE - - - -
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching B4 B A - - - -
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei FRmEL S A 24 - - 24
24 720 18 762
Non-executive directors: EMITES -
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong B R HIH L - - - -
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbertt &= {#{& %4 ¢ - - - -
24 720 18 762

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 < i (4

31 March 2022 202243H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (Continued)

# Mr. Chan Yip Keung was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020.

* Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei is the former chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Yim resigned as director and the chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020.

" Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, Mr. Wong Kam Pui and Mr. Wong Kit Loong
were appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 19
October 2020.

& Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang, Dr. Wong Ping

San John, Dr. Liu Yuk Shing, resigned as directors of the Company
with effect from 19 October 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

10 EERFETHRAEHFMN =)

b) HITEE  kATESKFTE
THAE #®)

# PR 508 55 4 B 2020410 A 19 A #E
AR ARTIREE -

* BB RS EBARRARIITBE - B
S B 2020F 10 A 19 A BT AR
AIEERITREH -

" MER A - BRI AL RFEHERER
H£EH2020F10 A 19 HREZ T AXK
ANRIESE

6 BRERE  BEASE  ERLE
4 BERIEEH2020F10 A19R
RARBIARAES -

FA- ITEEFRT2THRAERER
A BRI H A 25

o i AR AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 hERSFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year include one director FRNRAEZEaTMEEBE — B ESE (2021
(2021: one director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note F:—REFR) HFEMNFBH R LXK
10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the non-director, 10-ERXN - IFEENTZTMEE NI L
highest paid employees are as follows: BT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREVET 3,757 3,300
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 72 72
Share option expenses B MR e 2 475 -
4,304 3,372
The number of the non-director, highest paid employees whose HMEBRATISEZIEFEESTaHEE AR
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: O
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTERT FAT
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7L % 1,500,000 % 7T 2
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or any of the non-director, highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office nor
has any director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

o & @

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 FINANCE COSTS 12
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITERFE
Interest elements of lease payments HENROFEHD
Total interest expense FlEFZ e
Less: Interest capitalised B BERMEFE
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing
costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable
to the entity’s general borrowings during the year, in this case 1.57%
(2021:nil).
13 (LOSS)/EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on the
loss for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$20,633,000 (2021: profit HK$5,860,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 902,880,000 (2021:
902,880,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss/earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021
because the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares during
2022 as the share options of the Company were anti-dilutive.

B 7 B AN
R AT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
8,898 12,150
6,575 2,393
15,473 14,543
(4,996) -
10,477 14,543

BEBTERMBNERKNEANERNELEL XA
FREANZEEERERNINEFIFE
FELIBER T A1.57% (2021 4F « &) -

ARmEBRERFEARGER
(B5#8]), &R

BREABBSENEARFERESFEA
JFE {5 5 [E 548 20,633,000 % 7T (2021 4F © 33 A
5,860,000/ 70) R F AN E 17T MR INETES

£§902,880,000 % (2021 4F : 902,880,000 A% )
g

R A& B 2022 FE AR A A B R B R #
SE A OB EE L E AR - MBI R 2022 F &
2021 F3 A3 RIEFELME MM TR
HABE B eEELAZ -

o i AR AR A
2022 F R
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31 March 2022 NQEI[3A
At 1 Aprd 2021: RONELR18:
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHHTE
Net carying amount EETE
Addltions e
Depreciation provided FNATERE
during the year
Transfer £
Transfer to assets BYRREEEN
held for sale (note 38) BE(WiE3s)
Exchange realignment S
At31 March 2022, netof 202263 A318 -
acoumulated depreciaton  JIBRZ5HTE
At 31 March 2022: RONEIAINE:
Cost s
Accumulated depreciation  Z:t47E
Net carrying amount FEFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

14 1% - BERRZE
Right-of-use asset Owned asset
fEREEE HE&E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and other Motor ~ Construction

Land Buildings Sub-total Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total Total

fih - 2R
1# | £ gt BF HELE AR fE ERIE it st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TEn TEn TEn TR TEn TEn TER

(note 1) (note 15)
(&£ 15) (W& 15)

598,810 107,738 706,548 148,968 107,848 48,266 1,957 5,209 312,358 1,018,906
(95,174) (44,641) (139,815) (6,366) (59,268) (40,073) (101) - (106,428) (246,243)
503,636 63,007 566,733 142,602 48,560 8,213 1,256 5,209 205,930 772,663
- 204,663 204,663 - 801 862 - 55,230 56,893 261,556
(18,644) (34,960) (53,604) (4,99) (8,619 (2,466) (392) - (16,473) (70,077)
- - - - 5,936 - - (5,936) - -
- (17,713 17,13 - (16,630) - - - (16,630) (34,343)
- 704 704 - 687 - - - 687 1,391
484,992 215,791 700,783 137,606 30,735 6,609 864 54,593 230,407 931,190
598,810 287,019 865,829 148,968 %412 49,148 1,957 54,593 348,078 1,233,907
(113,818) (11,228) (185,046) (11,362) (62,677) (42,539) (1,003) - (117,671) (302,717)
484,992 215,791 700,783 137,606 30,735 6,609 864 54,593 230,407 931,190

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 M2 - BWERRE @)

Right-of-use asset Owned asset
RREEE BEEE
Fumiture,
fixtures
Leasehold and other Motor  Construction
Land Buildings Sub-total Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total Total
fifl - RER
1 BF It 52 HEEE Ethife & ERIR gt @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TER TEr T T TEr TR FhRL FhR FEn iR
(note 15) [note 1)
(R 15) (HizE15)
31 March 2021 021538318
At1 Apri 2020: R0E4A1R:
Cost 7 598,810 105,734 704,544 148,968 87,149 48021 667 19,331 304,136 1,008,680
Accumulated depreciation  E5HTE (76,530) (21,729) 98,259) (1,370 (61,124 (38,328) (321) - (91,143) (189402
Net carrying amount FEFE 522,280 84,005 606,285 147,598 36,025 9,693 346 19,331 212993 819,278
Adattions NE - 409 409 - 16 265 1,290 5299 6,870 7,219
Depreciation provided FRAERRE
during the year (18,644) (22,912) 41,550) (4,99) (8,164) (1,745) (380) - (15,285) (56,841)
Transfer 1] - - - - 19,331 - - (19,331) - -
Exchange realignment EREE - 1,09 1,595 - 1,352 - - - 1,352 2,947
At31 March 2021, netof  H2021F3A318 -
accumulated depreciaion MR EFHE 503,636 63,097 566,733 142,602 48560 8,213 1,256 5,299 205930 772,663
At 31 March 2021: RN ESA3IA:
Cost A 598,810 107,738 706,548 148,968 107,848 48,286 1,057 5298 312,358 1,018,906
Accumulated depreciation  Z;H7E (95,174) (44,641) (139,815) (6,366) (59,288) (40,073) (701) - (106,428) (246,243
Net carrying amount SEFE 503,636 63,007 566,733 142,602 48,560 8,213 1,256 5299 205,930 772,663

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s land and buildings with a total carrying
amount of HK$617,313,000 (2021: HK$633,969,000) was pledged to

secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26(b)).

R202F3A3TA AEBEEERER
617,313,000/ 7 (20214F : 633,969,000/&7T)
ZEMERFE TEA  WERETASE
B —BERTTIEE (MI5E26(0)) °

A A M A R 2 ]

2022 F 3}
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

15 LEASES 15 #HE
The Group as a lessee REBIEAEBA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings
used in its operations. Leases of land and buildings generally have lease
terms between two and fifty-five years, except for some with lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets, including buildings, outside the Group. Extension and
termination options are included in a number of building leases across
the Group. The majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

(@) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April

New leases

Modification of lease

Interest elements of lease payments

Payments

Exchange realignment

Reclass to liabilities directly associated
with assets held for sale

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into:
Current portion
Non-current portion

R4A1BENEREE
e

HEERT
HENFEFE D
3%

BEE 3, SR

EFDBREREHEN

BEARARNARE

N3 A3 HNEAEE

DR
BIERER Y
SERNEREE >

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 5(b) to

the financial statements.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FEBEREEBLEEMAZZEALHEET
FEHAHEAN - THREFHHEHER—
BNF_E2R+HF HEHEHR12EARK
AT R/ SEBREEE THERN - —
gmE  AERETAAREEAIIALES
EAEHEEE(BEET) AEEZEE
FHESREARKLERE - FHOKR
DIEM T & DR R E T A AEE (IS H
HA)ITHE -

() HEEE
HEAENRRERFNEZSHNT

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
76,080 91,694
193,372 409
11,291 -
6,575 2,393
(25,592) (20,513)
1,149 2,097
(29,870) -
233,005 76,080
33,837 25,837
199,168 50,243

THE B E R E D 17 70 B 15 3R R MY 2

5(o) 2 7 ©



15 LEASES (Continued)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

15 #HE @)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERAEBA @)
(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (b) REZRNBIEBEEENSELOT :
are as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Interest elements of lease payments HENFHFEEHD
(included in finance costs) (Gt ARERKA) 6,575 2,393
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets ~ {# A& EFTELH 53,604 41,556
Less: Amount capitalised D= W N k= (12,830) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBRNERABEE 47,349 43,949

The total cash outflow for leases in the year is HK$29,388,000

(2021: HK$20,513,000).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2021, net of accumulated amortisation

Amortisation provided during the year

FREENIR ST 8358 429,388,000

7T (2021 4 : 20,513,000 7T) °

16 ELEE

Cost at 31 March 2022, net of accumulated amortisation ~ 7202243 A 31 BEIE AN » F1M 2 518 8

At 31 March 2022:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Licences
hEER
HK$°000
FET
202243 H31H
R2021E3A31BKR2021F4 /418 :
PR 15,464
REHE# (12,371)
BREFE 3,093
202164 A1 HHUKZA - 1Bk 25H#EH 3,093
FREIERE (806)
2,287
7202243 A31 8 :
PR 15,464
REHE# (13,177)
BREDFE 2,287
s LA MR AN

2022 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2020, net of accumulated amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

Cost at 31 March 2021, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 March 2021:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

16 EFREEE®)

2021%3H31H

4202043 4381 H k202054 A1H :
A
EE 3
BREFHE

MR20205F 4 A1 HHURMZ - 1Bk 25H#H
TR

R2021 63 A31 HMRA « 0Bk 25 65
R2021E3A31 8 :

BRAR

REtiEH

AREDFE

Licences
he R
HK$'000
FET

15,464
9,279)

6,185

6,185
(3,092)

3,093

15,464
(12,371)

3,093
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A %5t 2 Bt 5t (48)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM 17 R—RI&&XKRE W —H
A JOINT VENTURE BELENIE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Cost of investment in a joint venture R—EEEERERKN 21,726 21,726
Share of losses DEEE (21,726) (16,161)
- 5,565
Due from a joint venture W —H& & hERIE
Beginning of year F1) 21,976 8,921
Impairment A (9,910) -
Share of losses DIEEE (7,762) -
Net advance to joint venture AABDERT TR 72 13,055
End of the year FR 4,376 21,976
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: REESERPEFBNOT
Particulars Place of Percentage
of issued registration Nature of Measurement ~ Ownership of Voting Profit  Principal
Company name shares held and business  relationship method interest power sharing  activities
<2l i3 FE
Gk ERTRGFE XY BEEE SRR BRRERR BAl MEEN  FEEE
Patina Wellness Limited HK$42,600,000 Hong Kong Joint venture Equity method 51% 50% 51%  Investment
holding
AEREERAT 42,600,000/ 7T &R RERE ERE REER
The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the Lt —fE SR ERERRARBERS -
Company.
o B A AT R 2 13

2022 F 3}
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Summarised statement of financial position

Assets
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

aE
FERBEE
mBEE
HEE

aff
mBAE

HwaE

(Bf) EEFE

Reconciliations of the summarised financial information presented to the

carrying amounts of the investment in the joint venture are as follows:

Net assets at beginning of the year
Loss for the year

Net assets at end of the year

Shared by the Group

Offset against due from a joint venture

Interests in a joint venture

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FOMEEFE
FEEE
FROEEFE

REE DG

HIFHEW—E SR EFIE

R—Ha2hENER

op

HE

17

7\]—/\\\_ FEﬁ é‘% ﬁé%?&
AR )

g rel—m[E

AR R R E
2022 2021
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
222,596 257,378
7,312 11,939
229,908 269,317
(103,182) (92,993)
(245,127) (258,405)
(15,219) 10,912
KM BERBEENAECERERT
SEHEHERNAT :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
10,912 41,967
(26,131) (31,055)
(15,219) 10,912
51% 51%
(7,762) 5,565
7,762 -
= 5,565
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM 17

A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income

Loss before taxation KRR BT S 18
Taxation Bi1E
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEEREEEERE

loss for the year

Share by the Group of loss and AEBDHFEEBEENRETA
total comprehensive loss for the year 518 4a%E

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the joint venture.

Due from a joint venture

As at 31 March 2022, the amount due from a joint venture of
HK$4,376,000 (2021: HK$21,976,000) included in the Group’s non-
current assets is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The Group does not expect the amount due from a joint venture will be
repaid within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

R—BaEbx¥RE EW—’

SEEREE)

RERRREE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$000
THET FHET
(26,131) (31,055)
(26,131) (31,055)
(13,327) (15,838)

EERRREECEMBRRMEINNE
B UHAREEAECET MG BR
EREHAE -

FEW—BEaEhtERE

M202263A31H ' sFARKBEERBEE
B FE I — A & &1 2 584,376,000 7T (2021
21,976,000 ) HEER - £ S RAR
BEREE c AEBUAESEL —HAeEE
SIBA RS AR R R+ @A NEE -

o i AR AR A
2022 F R

215



216

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

B 5 R RIR

Trade receivables

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

Within one month —@AA
One to two months —Z=mMEA
Two to three months Mz =1 A

Over three months

HB=18A

The financial impact of expected credit losses for trade receivables
under HKFRS 9 is insignificant for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are mainly denominated in
HK$ and approximately their fair value.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

18

B 5 B0

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TETT
7,762 6,708

RN|EHR - EHEWFHIERERH B L

S
BERBENREOTIT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT TET
2,958 3,062
3,155 2,770
1,001 266
648 610
7,762 6,708

HE2022F K2021F3 A1 HILFE » B
IS REERIFZ O E E ZRINGIENTEHAE

EEBENMBTELTEX -

2

%
HARERE -

EUGRIEMEmETZAETE &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments (Note) TEfFRIE (M)

Deposits b

Other receivables H fth W R IE

Current portion included in prepayments, BNEAER 5 (FH ATERTZRIE
other receivables and other assets b ERIE R K B E)

Non-current portion FERNERER 5

Note:

The balance as at 31 March 2021 includes an amount of approximately
HK$5,513,000 prepaid for an acquisition of an equity investment.

The financial impact of expected credit losses on financial assets
included in the above balances is insignificant for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts. As
at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables are mainly
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

NI - RERAMERRIA

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
1,009 10,045
15,648 11,774
888 981
17,545 22,800
(3,101) (15,901)
14,444 6,899

Wi

MR2021F3A31H » G —ERERENRES
BB FIEH) 5,513,000 7T °

HZE2022F %2021 F3 A31HIEFE » 5t A
PSRN EREENBREEBENIE
FELTEK -

ol AR FT B B A B NP 4 T HR IR A9 R0 6%
RERIE R B R IER B - R2022F Kk
20213 A31H ' BEBELTEHAKREK -

e TR A B O e PR B 3 BB T
6 MEAREIRE -
B S TR 26

2022 F 3}
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20 GOODWILL
Cost AR
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE
Net carrying amount BREFE

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
business combinations is allocated to the cash-generating unit of senior
care services operated by Gericare Centre with a carrying amount of
goodwill of HK$31,300,000 and to the cash-generating unit of senior
care services operated by Hinta Enterprises with a carrying amount of
goodwill of HK$2,533,000 as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of Gericare Centre has been determined based on
a fair value less cost of disposal calculation whereas the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of Hinta Enterprises has been
determined based on value-in-use calculation covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rates
applied to the cash flow projections of the cash-generating unit in the
value-in-use calculation of Hinta Enterprises is 11.7%. The cash flows
of the cash-generating unit of Hinta Enterprises are projected using
revenue growth rate of 3.0% during the five-year period. The cash flows
of the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a growth rate of 1.8%.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

20 BHE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TETT
33,833 33,833
33,833 33,833
BB RER

SURMERE M S - 7202243 A31 B &% 2021
F3A3IB  BREBKEHAESZAED
EEREEEPLACEREEBRGEHE
AR M8 431,300,000 T IR & EE B
NEREADCEMEEREEEREHERR
{6/42,533,000/8TCH IR S EA BN - LUETT
AR

HZE2021F3A31HILEFE  RiEEZF D
MBESELSEMMAKRESEREAN
BEERAAEET  MBRALENRESE
EBEMRAKRESEDNRESRSERBIE
WAFHEREENEET - LT8R AD
¥MEREEN BeELABUNRSRE
TERFTRARATBEIRE B 11.7% - RAFH
M BACENREELEMNESRER
FA3.0% Mg R RFEA - BEEEBEMR
AFEHBEBENRERENFER1.8% g RE
HH o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

cash-generating units exceeded the respective carrying amounts.

Up to the date of this report there were no reasonably possible changes
in any of the key assumptions mentioned above that would have
caused the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of Gericare
Centre and Hinta Enterprises to be less than its carrying value.

20 GOODWILL (continued) 20 BHE )

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) R ERER R (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, for the cash-generating units of HE2022F3 A31 HILFE » piREEEF

Gericare Centre and Hinta Enterprises, the management has LDEBARCENRECELBEMME  BEE

determined the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units E2EBUMELEMMRESELEMNE

based on the fair value less cost of disposal calculation with reference AMEZTEMINEEERS  BERESESL
to the external valuation report issued by independent property valuer BUNAAERLEXANTEETRSESL
on the underlying properties of the cash-generating units. BRI UL O] & %8 -

Detailed parameters of the underlying properties in the cash-generating REEZRAODRBAPERSELEMHHAE

units of Gericare Centre and Hinta Enterprises are as follows: MY ENFEA2EMT ¢

2022
Fair value of Relationship of
the underlying Valuation Unobservable unobservable
properties Techniques inputs inputs to fair value
R Z FAIEE FABEERARE
ARE [ERKDS BABE HAREBENEER
HK$’000 Unit price
FET BuER

Gericare Centre REEZRL 363,460 Direct HK$14,040 psfto  The higher the unit
— Residential care — TERE (2021: 327,400) comparison HK$28,890 psf price, the higher
home for the elderly BELE (2021: HK$12,500 the fair value

psf to HK$38,800 EfEKHS @ AR

psf) EHS

FF¥ 75 R 14,040
BLTESFELIR
28,890 /& 1T
(2021 : &
FE R 12,500 % T
ZHEFR
38,8007 7T)

Hinta Enterprises WAL 99,700 Direct HK$11,250 psfto  The higher the unit
— Residential care —RERE comparison HK$18,757 psf  price, the higher
home for the elderly BEELE HFEHR11,250 the fair value

BREEEAR EBuEKHEs AR
18,7578t EHS

Based on management’s assessment, the recoverable amount of the RIBEEEEMN G REEEBMHNAUKE

SRBBEEREE

HEARERY  LREAETERIMES
BE Y BEREEEPOLRBAREE
R eEABMNATNESEENEREE -

o i AR AR A
2022 F 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

21

INVESTMENT IN INSURANCE CONTRACT 21 RAREBENNIRE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Insurance asset RBEE
At 1 April R4 /18 3,261 3,143
Change in cash surrender value of REEHMERRREEEH
insurance contract 110 118
At 31 March MR3A31H 3,371 3,261
Notes: BT
(@) The Group entered into a life insurance policy with an insurance company (@) AEEBR-FRBR ARG VERRE - BUR
to insure an executive director. Under the policy, the Group is the BE—ZHITEE - RIBZRE  AEFMAT
beneficiary and the policy holder. The carrying value of the life insurance BARREFAA - ASRBRENVNEEE
contract represented the cash surrender value of the insurance contract. ERBAEGHRFRSEE - ZIRBAL
This insurance contract is denominated in United States Dollars. EITEHE °
(b) The Group’s investment in insurance contract with a carrying amount of (b) M2022F3A31BE XK BEEMER
HK$3,371,000 (2021: HK$3,261,000) was pledged as security for the 3,371,0007% 7T (2021 4F : 3,261,000/ 7T ) &Y
Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2022, as further detailed in note 26(c) RBANKRECEREANEERBRITERD
to the financial statements. BiR S FBEHR M RERMEE26 ()

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22 A AEIAEZNESREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Fair value hierarchy (@ 2REEHK
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINAEESHRIANAAERTE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: E0 -
Assets measured at fair value: BRARBEITENEE
As at 31 March 2022: A2022F3H31H :

Fair value measurement using

ARARESEZSE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATHE ERFABE
ERTISRE BAYE BAYE
(B5—4) (B=8) (B=H) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR
Financial asset at fair value BRAAEFTABER
through profit or loss SEEE
Unlisted equity investment JEETRRERE - - 15,448 15,448
Unlisted convertible bonds FEmABRRES = = 9,489 9,489
- - 24,937 24,937
Prices of the unlisted equity investment and convertible bonds Ik EMARIEIRE RATRRESHERYE
are derived from unobservable recent market transactions. The TR BEUA M ISR 5MIE - L Em S
higher prices in recent market transactions, the higher the fair RHMERDR - ARBERRS -
value.
At 31 March 2021, the Group had no investment in financial R2021F3A31 8 AEBMELRE
assets at fair value through profit or loss. REAREFABRHNSREE -
During the year, there was no transfer of fair value measurements FA - pepiEReREENS  #
between level 1 and level 2 and no transfer into or out of level 3 *Z&Eﬁ% ) ALV R A

CMABEAE=FHEFE=FER
(é&zizom FEIASIHILEE: &#)-

for both financial assets and financial liabilities (year ended 31
March 2021: Nil).

o i AR AR A
2022 F 3 221
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 4 it i (A

31 March 2022 202243H31H

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22 BAAETAEENSREE®)
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
(b) Fair value measurements using significant (b) EABERFAHE@MAHREN
unobservable inputs (level 3) DNREFE(E=ZR)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial TRIREZ 2022 F K 20214 3 A 31
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021: AtFEE=R&mTANEE) :

Financial
assets at

fair value
through

profit or loss
RARETA
BaleREE
HK$’000
FHET

As at 1 April 2020 and 1 April 2021

Acquisitions

Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 March 2022

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

MR2020F4 A1 KX2021 4 A1 H -

Wi
BRARBEFABRGNEREE

N

R2022%43 831 H

25,000

(63)

24,937
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S 25 e o Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22 BRAREIT A AEZNESREE®)

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(c) Valuation techniques, inputs and relationships
to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements (see (b) above) for the valuation techniques

(€ DREMBERMN  BARER
A
TRELE = RAR B BFAEAT
ABRHAENOEEERN (FAHE
AT 2B £ (b)) -

adopted:
Description Fair value at  Valuation Relationship of
31 March 2022  technique Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
b 20226 3A31H
NARE fAERE FTBRRAABE TIBRRRABERAAENEY
HK$'000
THET
Unlisted convertible bonds 9,489 Monte Carlo  Risk-free rate 1.843%  Anincrease/decrease in the risk-free
FEmTRRES Simulation ~ EERF= rate by 1% would decrease/
Method increase the FV by HK$114,000/
SR EEEE HK$73,000 respectively

Volatility
RiE

For the investment in unlisted equity securities of
HK$15,448,000, the cost of investment was considered as a
reasonable approximation to the fair value as at 31 March 2022
taken into consideration the investment was made during the
third quarter of 2021 and there is not material change in the
business environment or management of the entity.

BRI R M, WD 1% -
ARER DB #hn
114,000 7 7T 73,000 % 7T

89.234%  Anincrease/decrease in the risk-free

rate by 5% would increase/
decrease the FV by HK$74,000/
HK$131,000 respectively

fisl B B BRI R 0, R 5% 0 A
AAERIZ B i F 4> 74,000
787t &% 131,000 %8 7T

B IE b T AR A 1% & 15,448,000 7 ST 1M
= R2022F3A31H ERRER
2021 F = F[EE I M & IR 3% %
FENTEETESEAEE  RERA
WARBAEEIIANE-

o i AR AR A
2022 F 3 223
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24

Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHEH

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are mainly
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within one month —@AA

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have
payment terms of 30 days.

The carrying amounts of trade payables are mainly denominated in HK$
and approximate their fair value.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

23

24

RERREEEY

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
29,083 49,687

BHUNBAT M0 £ 1048 B IR1T 7 B 407
B EHRA L - BTEBTHAEERYT
B R TR IR T

RekReEBYNREETIZNETHE -
WEHRRERE °

B S BIIE
REBEFR B HEN SRS A
BEER ST -

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TET
1,272 2,426

BZRNFBENHNE - BNFE—RA30
H e

BHRNFRENEREEEZZEETTAE I
IHARERE -

\]
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

25 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables Hith B 5RIE

Accruals EEt &R

Contract liabilities (note) AHaE M)

Long service payment RERBE

Portion classified as current liabilities PEARSAEBENRY
Non-current portion IEMENER

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average payment
terms of one to three months.

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals are mainly
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

Note: Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance as
at beginning of the year is HK$952,000 (2021: HK$637,000).

v,

A (@ G
A e

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25

Hit B RIER BT E A

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
3H31H 3A318
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
13,870 7,716
14,297 6,924
899 952
5,982 5,444
35,048 21,036
(29,066) (15,592)
5,982 5,444

HiENRELFHNE  FHANFEMAE—=

=f@EA -

Hip e s kg &S

WEREEEZE

JLRHE - WEERAERE

MaE: st AFNANARSEHRNERABEER

952,000 7% 7T (2021 F

: 637,000 7T) °

A A M A R 2 ]

2022 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26 FTEBITER
2022 2021
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) HK$’000 rate (%) HK$’000
BT (%) FERT BEFR A (%) FAT
Current TED
Bank borrowings — secured HRITIER — 1.07-3.50 125,102 0.9-2.75 84,648
Non-current R ED
Bank borrowings — secured HRITIER — 1.07-3.50 458,505 0.9-2.75 518,287
583,607 602,935
Notes: BT
(@) The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. (@) AEBERBITHERABITEE ©
(o) The Group'’s bank borrowings are secured by a mortgage over certain of (o) REE AR ITE AR L ER20224
the Group’s land and buildings, which had an aggregate carrying amount 3A318 4 A617,313,000/% 7T (20214 :
as at 31 March 2022 of approximately HK$617,313,000 (2021: 633,969,000/ 7T) < AN L EE T Lith RIEF
HK$633,969,000) (note 14). PEHRAR (BIFE14) ©
() Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a pledge over the (€ AEBEME TIRITEFTARMER 202243
Group’s investment in insurance contract with a carrying amount as at 31 A31H 438,371,000/ 7t (20214 : 3,261,000
March 2022 of HK$3,371,000 (2021: HK$3,261,000) (note 21). B ZAEBERBRELHIREERT (M
21)
(d) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are jointly guaranteed by certain (d) AEBHETRITERBARRNE TH B

subsidiaries of the Company.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RAFEEHER o



v,

o N %q«%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

26 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26 FTERITER @
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) sk : (&)
(e The amounts payable of the bank borrowings are analysed as follows: (e) SRITEROENRIBONTIT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Bank borrowings: RITERK
Within one year or on demand —FERNFIRER(EE 125,102 84,648
In the second year FoF 151,779 143,200
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERF(BREEEMRTF) 303,559 372,539
Beyond five years HBARF 3,167 2,548
583,607 602,935
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Authorised: JETE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000 & &R E1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT E AR 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
902,880,000 ordinary shares of 902,880,000 I & A&
HK$0.01 each 0.01 /BT E A% 9,029 9,029
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the RRREARAFE B EFEWEEE) o

current and prior years.

o i AR AR A
2022 F R 227
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

28

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the directors, including independent non-executive directors, executives
or officers of the Group, full-time or part-time employees of the Group,
and advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such
other persons who, in the sole opinion of the directors, will contribute or
have contributed to the Group. The Scheme became effective on 23
January 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue of the Company immediately following
completion of the Company’s initial public offering, i.e. 86,400,000
shares. The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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BT a8l
ARRRABRETE(TRE])) EEXD
ARERZEER/AEBENGRETEARRER
MR - ARSI RBERS GG RHANEE
RESBREHERNZERERZEE LI
Hph NERERFIHENEBBE - 513
MEER2RESEES (BREBYIFNTE
=) AEETBRARKSARE - AEER
BERBIER RERM  BRA HfER T
P DHAREZERA/KBEXAEHAE
EFEHEMOEREMAL - FTEIB2017F
1ABRBAERN  BRIERTTHHEHIET &
AEEHRERARTEF -

R IR T8I AT 86 15 ) a0 BE IR AE AT 38 RO AR 19
ELREXETSHBBEBEANRBERAMRE
ERRENERAR D EITRMAEA10%
B186,400,000 & f% 153 © 1T AR R 5T &1 5% H
B RITE 2 FTA RIT{EREAR A T AT A T LA
BITHORMNEE LRTEBBAARTRE
BTN EI30% M+ =E AR - 1R
B BIRNBRIET RSN BB EEET
MRHEE ERANRKEEBARRE#ET
BRADEI1% o (E IR 1t 1% IR AR ARFE B
BB BRERERSEREAE -

MEE - ARAEBTHRABREERRK
HEMBEARDERE BAELLBIIE
MITESEHE - W BEMAARRETE
BRFBIIFRITEELHEMBREARLH
BB - NEMT AR BHANBBRARA
TREETRHM0I%HEAERELE
FARFRNERFTE)SNcAERET A
RERAE E BRI

RARAZINE BT ZRBARER - &K
HERENZOATNEREE AE21AR
E@e RHNBRETEHAESET X
RETHBHEMAL  ARENBREED
BHEA 2 BEm
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

28

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors, but
must be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The Group granted share options under its share option scheme during
the year ended 31 March 2022. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The fair value of the options granted is measured at grant
date using the binomial option pricing model.

The grant of the Share Options to the Grantees is primarily to recognise
and acknowledge their contributions that have been made to the
Group, and to motivate them to optimise their future performance and
efficiency to the Group (in particular, those consultants among the
Grantees who have been providing their expertise to the Group in the
areas of corporate finance, capital market/strategic investor
management and the real estate market), which are conducive to the
strategic planning and long-term development of the senior care
business of, as well as value-creation for, the Group.

On 2 September 2021, the Company offered to grant share options (the
“Share Options”) to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,100,000 new
ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company to certain eligible employees and participants (the
“Grantees”) under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 23 January 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”), at exercise price of
HK$1.10 per Share with validity period from 2 September 2021 to 1
September 2031 (both dates inclusive). The Share Options can be
exercised at anytime after the expiration of 18 months from the date of
grant, i.e. 1 March 20283. The fair value of the Share Options at the
grant date was estimated at approximately HK$8,543,000, with (i)
approximately HK$3,384,000 for directors, chief executive and
controlling shareholder of the Company; (ii) approximately
HK$2,489,000 for employees of the Group; and (iii) approximately
HK$2,670,000 for the consultants to the Company. The fair value is
determined using inputs including share price of HK$1.07 per Share,
exercise price of HK$1.10 per Share, volatility of 48.67%, risk-free rate
of 1.00% and dividend yield of 0%.

28

BRESTE
O MR - AT EER T
FIBEE (AR RAROREREEHE R
BRAKTE  ()ARARGREEBLH A
82 BTEIER 5 B 2B AU ¢ R (i)
AR ABAD WO EE

PR B IR TR A AT R B SRR R
RE ERROER

HZE2022F3A831HILLFE "EERKERE
MR B L ERE - BB ABEUR TER
EMRENREHAAERRAER B
HERENALERRHBHER —BHE
TEEBAGE -

MEARABRTERENIZEENRRARSE
EREHAEEELNER  WHBEEE
{EARREAEBMOHRRRBE (CERAEA
FHER-—BERAEERECERE AR
MG/ REEEETEREHET S AN
BEME) BAREREEEESARBEAS
REERER  WAKAEERIEEE -

M2021F9A28 KRB REARD AR
201761 A 23 BiRMmm B AR e 5t &1 ([ B AR A
FrEDmE JFAQWEE&/A%W%&M)
REFLERE(ERE]D  URBARQ
A& A & $£19,100, ooontHxﬁﬁo 01 ,%73
g (TR ) - FTEEAERRM 1.10
BT B EI B 202149 A28 £203149
B1B(BEERMA) - BIRETREL B
HEt18EAEm%Z (BI2023F3 A1 HR)BE
FITE - EREERENREBHNANE
15;#”]7%8543000/%75 H AR (1) 493,384,000
BIRTARRES - (THAHRIZERRE
(i 492,489,000 B IR T ALEEE © i) 4
2,670,000 LE FARRIER - BEAAE
REROBASERBERESRRMN1.07E
T ITEESRI1108 T KIE48.67% « &
B FI1 2R 1.00% KA B 2R 0% -

o i AR AR A
2022 F 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

28 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28

Details of the shares outstanding on which options are granted as at 31

BRETE
202293 A31H - FFEIETE K HERE
HEARITERG BT T

March 2022 under the scheme are as follows:

Number of options (in thousands)

BREHE (TH)
granted
held at during heldat Exercise
1April  theyear 31 March price
2021 (Note (1)) 2022 HK$ Grant date Exercisable from Exercisable until
02021 % 02022 F
4818 HFrEE 3A31AH T8 BETIBREE

BE  (M&EQ) BB BT ®EBH K TEZTIEE
Executive directors
WTES
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing - 900 900 110 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
HiRR Sk E 2021F9A2H 2023%3A1H 203149A1H
Mr. Chan Yip Keung - 3,000 3,000 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
BR¥8SE 202149 A2H 2023%3A1H 2031F9A1H
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing - 1,500 1,500 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
BRREE 202159/ 2H 20233818 2031F9A1H
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching - 1,500 1,500 110 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
LIF 300 e 2021F9A2H 2023%371H 2031F9A1H
Independent non-

executive directors
BUkNTES
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony - 200 200 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
B & 20219 A2H 2023%3A1H 203149A1H
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai - 200 200 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
WEREE 202159A2H 2023F3A1H 20316 9H1H
Mr. Wong Kam Pui - 200 200 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
it 202159/ 2H 20233818 2031F9A1H
Mr. Wong Kit Loong - 200 200 110 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
EERERE 2021F9A2H 2023F3A1H 2031497818
Continuous contract employees - 5,500 5,500 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
EENERADES 202149 A2H 2023F3A1H 203159710
Consultants - 5,900 5,900 1.10 2 September 2021 1 March 2023 1 September 2031
EaR 2021%F9A2H 202343818 2031F9A1H
- 19,100 19,100

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

28 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Note:

(1) At 1 September 2021, the date before the options were granted, the
market value per share was HK$1.07. The value of the options granted to

the respective parties is as follows:

£

. Tang Yiu Sing

. Chan Yip Keung

. Yeung Ka Wing

. Cheng Wai Ching

. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Lam Cheung Wai

. Wong Kam Pui

Wong Kit Loong

EEEE

M
M
M
Continuous contract employees
Consultants

= 5 5

@A LLE
REERELE
Bt

R EE
MEETLE

BRI AL
mARESRAE
BEEERANIES
]

The Group recognised a total expense of approximately HK$3,322,000

in FY2022 in relation to share options granted by the Company in

which, as to (i) approximately HK$1,316,000 was included in the

directors’ remuneration; (i) approximately HK$968,000 was included in

staff costs; and (i) approximately HK$1,038,000 was included in legal

and professional expenses.

29 RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(b) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the

reorganisation of the Group in the prior years.

28 ERESTEI )
B sE

1) MR2021F9 /18 (R ERERANBE) -
FRBHMEARI1.07TET - BTEHOBRK
EEBEWT

HK$'000
TR

394
1,314
657
657
91

91

91

91
2,488
2,669

8,543

ANE B 2022 B R EBEAN A AR & BB AR
T R 4B X 493,322,000 7T 0 H ()4
1,316,000/ 7t E & A & F & B (i) &
968,000 T B &F A B T Ak AN Rl 49
1,038,000 L E T AERE R BEME ©

29 f#fE
(@) AEHE
AEER A A B EFENHEESER
HEBRUBRENGAREEDRF

E R

(b) EOHEME
APHEEREA R BB B E
2 G

o i AR AR A
2022 F R
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

30 DEFERRED TAX 30

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE BB R ERH
consolidated statement of financial position BEERIAE E

Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERA AR R IERE
consolidated statement of financial position BLEHEAE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are
as follows:

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R2020F 3 A31HX

2020%F 4 A1 H
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FERNFAGEEBERD
statement of profit or loss during the year EERTE

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 MR2021 331 A K

20214 A1H
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFFAGZEEREXN
statement of profit or loss during the year IEIEFRIE

At 31 March 2022 7202243 431 H

232 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

IEFER I

AR A [A) BB BRI A BB I £ B s A ) P AS

D2

2022 2021
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
4,621 6,222
(12,420 (13,240)
(7,799) (7,018)

REN  EERBEERBBNEZHOT

Depreciation

allowance

in excess

of related
Tax losses depreciation Total

FrERE
BIEEE BBHEBENE &t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
3,872 (11,883) (8,011)
356 637 993
4,228 (11,246) (7,018)
(434) (347) (781)
3,794 (11,593) (7,799)
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

DIVIDEND 31 KE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiEIT
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 20203 A31 BILFE
of HK0.68 cents (2019: HK0.78 cents) per fully KR EEFRAE LB
paid ordinary share 0.68 71l (20194 : 0.78711l) - 6,140
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z= 202243 831 HIFFE 2
of nil (2021: Nil) per fully paid FHREERFTEBRAT
ordinary share (20216 : &) = -
Total dividend paid BRIRE LT - 6,140
No dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil) RABEEEW N EBIREEE 202243 A

was proposed by the board of directors of the Company.

31 HIEFERIRE (2021 F « &) ©

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32 HMEBRERERMET

OF CASH FLOWS

(@ Major non-cash transactions (@)
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$204,663,000 and
HK$204,663,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for land and buildings (2021: HK$409,000,000 and HK$409,000,000,
respectively).

FEFRERS
R AEBBR T RIEFOEELH
ZERAEEAERTEERBRNIERS LN
2 Bl 204,663,000 7T & 204,663,000
7 7T (20214 : 409,000,000 T M
409,000,000 7T) °

o i AR AR A
2022 F R
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

34

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 31 March 2020

Changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

New leases

Interest expense
Exchange realignment
Final dividend

Interest elements of lease payments

At 31 March 2021

Changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

New leases

Interest expense
Exchange realignment
Interest capitalised

Transfer to liabilities held for sales
Interest elements of lease payments

At 31 March 2022

32 @#E

b2 Ny =1

BERERMT 2

(b) BEETBHELNEEOUER
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable
HEAE RITHEM EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FA&T
R2020F3A31H 91,694 599,251 -
RERSREE (18,120) 3,684 (6,140)
Hh
e 409 - -
FEFXE 2,393 - -
ME 3, FE B 2,097 - -
NEAPR B - - 6,140
HEN BT EERD (2,393) - -
MR2021 63 A31H 76,080 602,935 -
BMEREREF (19,017) (19,328) -
Hb &g
g 204,663 - -
FERX 2,053 - =
& 5 R 1,149 - -
BB 4,522 = -
EREREHENEE (29,870) = =
HENZRF2EHBH (6,575) - =
R2022F 3 A31H 233,005 583,607 -

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end of the

reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s interest-bearing

bank borrowings are included in note 26 to the financial statements.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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35

36

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital and other commitments as at the

end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Unlisted Investment
Property, plant and equipment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

— Trade receivables

— Financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables

— Due from a joint venture

— Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

o N7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

REEAR - AERE S T 5 E AR R E A

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT

EEFEIOES 2

FELEMRE - 9,688

M - BB &R 6,011 -

36 TRTH

HREHRSEN SR ITANKEAENT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
REBHERRIENSBIA
— B 5 RWGRIE 7,762 6,708
— AR S REMEKIEN
SRVEE 16,536 18,568
— A EERE 4,376 21,976
— REeRRSEEY 29,083 49,687
57,757 96,939
BAREFABENEREE
24,937 -
82,694 96,939
REBHERARIENSREE
B 5N 3R 1,272 2,426
FTAE fh A 3 K
ErERNSRAasE 28,167 14,640
ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁ 583,607 602,935
HEAE 233,005 76,080
846,051 696,081
mEEEEAE R LA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

37

38

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties:

AR A B ER PR 2

Rental payment to a company

controlled by controlling INCIFZ NP AT
shareholders
Note:

(i) The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed by the
relevant parties.

(b)  The compensation of key management personnel of the Group
for the year represented the directors’ emoluments as disclosed
in note 10 to the financial statements.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD
FOR SALES

The Group owned 51% equity interest in Pine Care Yada Elderly
Services Limited (“Pine Care Yada HK”) which has set up a wholly
owned subsidiary in Zhejiang Province of the PRC (“Yada PRC”) to
operate Pine Care Yada (Wuzhen) Elderly Centre to provide elderly care
home services.

In March 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Yada International (HK) Limited (“Yada HK”) to purchase 49% of
Pine Care Yada HK for a cash consideration of HK$100, subject to
certain conditions precedent which include the disposal of 100%
interests in Yada PRC from Pine Care Yada HK to Yada HK or its
related entities for RMB1 and the provision of funding by the Group to
Yada PRC of HK$4.8 million.

The assets and liabilities relating to Yada PRC are classified as assets/
liabilities held for sale and a loss of approximately HK$5.8 million arising
from the write down of Yada PRC’s assets to fair value less cost of
disposal was recognised in FY2022. The disposal was completed in
April 2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

37 BEAEXRS

(@) BEBHREREMIBD RO HIN -
AR EITA TR S

2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M5t FET T
(i) 283 83

) THE AR B E L REE -

(b) AEEFZERABRFEANTHEY
BHREME 0B EEME

38 FEHEMEE S FEHEN

EEHEEMEBENAE

AEBBEARKRIEELERBER 2B (R
BRIBEEE])61% M - ARNPBEITIER
YEEKNBEAR([HZEHE]) - HEENRK
HEE(SE) BEPOARH L ZR R -

2022563 A » 7N E B ERR S B (/)
BERAB([HEBEDITLEEHZE @ BH
SRE10BTHENRIFEERTH49% ' 2
PRAE T RGNS BIENRRIEES B MK
ERBNHARER N EREPBI100% #
R AR TR AN EERETRIEHE
4 4,800,00078 7T °

HEFEEBEEERBES EARKFEHEER
E/JRE EXAMBHREPREEEZEAR
BRI B AR /9 548 49 5,800,000 78 JT 72 2022
W E MR o HESBIEMR2022F 4 AR °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

38 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD

FOR SALES (continued)

Assets and liabilities of the disposal group are classified as held for sale.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents

Less: Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Assets classified as held for sale
Liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

Liabilities classified as held for sale

A%
M - BB Rk
ReRALEED

B BB RRERE

DERFHEHENERE

afE
Hofth FE A 5008 S e F T B
HEAE

DEARFHENAE

39 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Except for the completion of disposal of Zhejiang Pine Care Yada

Elderly Services Limited in April 2022 (note 38), there is no significant

events after the end of the reporting period.

38 FFHEMERE EFFHEN
EEHEABENEE®

HERENEERABENERFFHE -
2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$°000
faE FERT TET

14 34,343 -
325 -

34,668 -

(5,814) -

28,854 -

3,179 -
15 29,870 -

33,049 -

39 WEMKESMH

PR 2022 4 AR ENTITIRER HEEEE
RIS ER AR (KizE38) 4h » WHEERREH
RIBEMF -

o i AR AR A
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COMPANY

40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

Total non-current asset

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from a subsidiary

Total current assets

Net assets

Equity
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Less than HK$1,000

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FRBEE
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FERBDEELE

RBEE
RekAeEEY
FEW —FEIFT 8 A B 3RIA

MBEERR

BEFE

R
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2022
HK$’000
FET

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

ARRERROFTBHRRARER AT

2021

HK$°000

TET

12 12
158,763 158,763
158,775 158,775
158,775 158,775
9,029 9,029
149,746 149,746
158,775 158,775
71,0008 7T
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

40 AR RM AR IR @)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: fisT -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATREEEEOT ¢
Share premium Retained
account profits Total
BRBRER BT “st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT
At 1 April 2020 20204 A1 H 148,770 7,116 155,886
Profit and total comprehensive income FEBMNRE2EBALE
for the year - - -
Final dividend REARR S - (6,140) (6,140)
At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and R2021F3A31H »
31 March 2022 20214 A1 B &
20223 A31H 148,770 976 149,746

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 21 June 2022.

41 HOEBTEIRER
K GHARPR2022F6 A21 HEE S S HE
NARRET)E o

A A M A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P vk (%80)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES 42 BEMBARIMNER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RATFEWBATIBEBWOT -
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
it 2ET ERREMN
NRER R ERERAK ERBEAL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE R
Pine Care Health Initiative British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands (the “BVI")
RERTES E REER
((RBREXES])
Prime Health Holdings Limited  Hong Kong HK$98,418,468 - 100 Investment holding
FRRER AR AT EE 08,418,468 87T BB
Pine Care Elderly Home Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited and provision of
management
services
MiREERERARAF EE 40,000,000/ 7T BB R IR G
EERHB
Pacific First Limited Hong Kong HK$1,070 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
KEFBRAF EE 1,070 7T REREEERS
Besting Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$120,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
BEEEBRAT B 120,0007% 7T R REEERS
Hinta Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
(“Hinta Enterprises”) services
BARLEBRRA Bt 10,0007 7T REUREERRS
(DBARED
Fitbest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
BB AT Bt 500,000 7T REEREERRY
240 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec) 42 BEMBARNER @

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARL 28T ERREMN
NEER —ESiE EERA BRmEI TEER
Direct Indirect
HE 5%
Masswell Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
Limited services
BEEERBRAR B 10,000787C R REEERS
Gericare Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of senior care
(“Gericare Centre”) services
REEZPOERAF &BE 1007 REUREERRS
(MREZEEFL])
Fitgarden Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
BEERRAF i 2,500,000 7T MERE
Mainfield Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property investment
RIBERAA] 6 28T MERE
Chun Fai Development Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited
EBERERDA] Bt 100,000 7T MERE
Grant Smart Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited
ERERARANF EE 10,000 % 7T MERE
Wellfield Properties Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Development
HEMEERERAF B 10,000 7T MERE
Ruby International Hong Kong HK$5 - 100 Property investment
Investment Limited
(“Ruby International”)
AEORFKREBRARA &BE 587 MERE
(TALERBIE )
A % AR A R A 241
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o5 Wik (78)

31 March 2022 202243H31H

42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary

42 FEMBEARNER @

Percentage of equity

Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML, 2RT A E L
DNRIARE —ES$iE EERAK EEAEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE i
Manchester Rehabilitation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of rehabilitation
Services Limited and physiotherapy
services
ST ERRS B 18T REEERYE
BRAAE A RS
Witmart Design & Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of repair and
Construction Co. Limited maintenance services
B REEETE B% 28T REEERRERS
BRAE
Fully Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
mRE R AR BE 10,000 7T MERE
Pine Care Elite Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
REREEER AR B 10,000/87C R REERRY
Pine Care Elegance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
iR EE B R AR Bk 10,0007 7T REER
Grand Prosper Holdings BVI US$3 - 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited
RERETES KE REER
One Affinity Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERLES 17T REER
Lorient Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 - 100 Property investment
RERETES 1%7T MERE
Tsuen Wan Elderly Care Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
Services Limited services
SEEZIRBAERAR BE 10,000 7T REREERRS

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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31 March 2022 202243H31H

42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec)

42 FEMBEARNER @

Place of

incorporation/

Issued
ordinary

Percentage of equity

Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARL 28T ERREMN
NEER —ESiE EERA BRmEI TEER
Direct Indirect
HE 5%
Pine Care Point Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
UN:y RN Bk 100/87T R REEERS
Pine Care Yada Elderly Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 - 51 Investment holding
Services Limited
RiREEEERBERRFT  FE 14,000,000% 7T REER
Zhejiang Pine Care Yada the People’s HK$12,000,000 - 51 Provision of senior care
Elderly Services Limited* Republic of China services
(the “PRC")/
Mainland China
IR ESERS hEARKEME 12,000,000/ 7T REUREERRYE
BRAF ([+E]),/
IR RE
Giant Success International Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Property investment
Holdings Limited
(“Giant Success”)
EEBERERRRARF 6 1,000 7T MERE
(IZE&D
# Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under the PRC law. # RIEPRAZFMANIEREEDRE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

ERITEERAREFANEEELEATE
SR AEBEEFEEZERID KB
RE-BERR BAMHEGHEBRARSE
HIRHMERBNILE

A A M A R 2 ]
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S 5 B

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenue

(Loss)/profit before tax from
continuing operations

Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Wy i
REFELEEBH
BuiAT (B518), s A
PRSRFX
REFHBEEEEBD
FE(BE),EF
FE(HR) 57

Btk
ARBEBEFEA
SRR R

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Net debt
Gearing ratio

Note: Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing

UL
T
=

momy @
ot

oy

Er
TH

HEERRBDAE

FRBEE

RAEEmITHE AR
e

FEER R

REAE

FER

BERMELE

current assets and non-current assets).

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Year ended 31 March

BE3HIIHLFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
267,749 245,706 217,363 186,782 170,688
(17,668) 10,682 17,122 15,150 18,915
(6,321) (7,468) (8,546) (1,690) (2,509)
(23,989) 3,214 13,576 13,460 16,406
(23,989) 3,214 13,576 13,460 16,406
(20,633) 5,860 13,584 13,435 16,418
(3,356) (2,646) 8) 25 (12)
Ra IEAROR
As at 31 March
A3A31H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FAT FHET FAT
1,019,059 831,536 896,850 787,906 697,554
40,997 95,498 46,528 56,840 82,241
196,301 135,633 455,978 76,061 38,011
892,609 791,401 487,400 768,685 741,784
905,425 587,214 280,749 561,604 533,665
182,880 200,209 200,253 200,208 203,231
605 3,978 6,398 6,873 4,888
183,485 204,187 206,651 207,081 208,119
554,524 553,248 571,484 542,637 459,826
51% 60% 61% 64% 59%
MisE : BEABLERDRFER (BT BRITERINBRRE
RESEBYIBRAREE(BRBEERFEREE

E)HE -
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